OFFERING CIRCULAR

750 B STREET, SUITE 3110
SAN DIEGO, CALIFORNIA 92101
1,043,479 to 1,304,348 Shares of Common Stock, no par value, $11.50 per Share
Total Proceeds: $12,000,000 to $15,000,000
Minimum Purchase: 2,174 Shares ($25,001)
Endeavor Bank is offering for sale a minimum of 1,043,479 shares and up to a maximum of 1,304,348 shares of its
no par common stock, subject to our right to increase the maximum shares by up to an additional 10 percent (130,435
shares) in the event the offering is oversubscribed, with potential additional proceeds of up to $1,500,000, subject to
all necessary regulatory approvals. Subscribers must purchase a minimum of 2,174 shares. Existing shareholders
who submit completed subscriptions by October , 2019 will be given a preference over other investors in the event
of oversubscription (see “The Offering”).
Price to Investors
Per Share (Minimum)
Per Share (Maximum)
Total Minimum
Total Maximum3

$11.50
$11.50
$12,000,000
$15,000,000

Underwriting
Discounts and
Commissions1
None
None
None
None

Gross Proceeds to
Bank

Net Proceeds to
Bank2

$11.50
$11.50
$12,000,000
$15,000,000

$11.24
$11.29
$11,730,000
$14,730,000

1

The offering is made on a best efforts basis by us. We have not engaged an underwriter or placement agent.
We anticipate other offering expenses of approximately $270,000 including legal fees of $100,000, subscription agent fees of $66,000, accounting
and other professional fees of $37,000, printing and postage costs and filing fees of $17,000, and sales event and marketing costs of $50,000.
2

3

We may, in our discretion, elect to accept subscriptions totaling more than 1,304,348 shares, up to a maximum of 1,434,783 shares, pursuant to
the Over Subscription Option. The subscription price of $11.50 per share has been determined by our board of directors, and no independent
valuation of the shares has been conducted. (See “Risk Factors”)

Our common stock is quoted on the OTC Pink® under the symbol “EDVR.” At present there is no active public
market for our common stock. This offering is scheduled to end on December 9, 2019, but we may decide to
terminate this offering earlier or extend it. We reserve the right to reject any subscription in whole or in part.
––––––––––––––––––––
Investing in our common stock involves risks.
See “Risk Factors” beginning on page 8.
––––––––––––––––––––
THESE SECURITIES ARE NOT DEPOSITS. THESE SECURITIES ARE NOT INSURED BY THE FDIC
OR ANY OTHER AGENCY, AND ARE SUBJECT TO INVESTMENT RISK,
INCLUDING THE POSSIBLE LOSS OF PRINCIPAL.
THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE FEDERAL
DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION NOR HAS THE FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE
CORPORATION PASSED ON THE ADEQUACY OR ACCURACY OF THIS OFFERING
CIRCULAR. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS UNLAWFUL.
Neither the California Department of Business Oversight, nor any state securities regulator, nor
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation has approved or disapproved of, or recommended
or endorsed, these securities or determined if this offering circular is truthful or complete.
This offering circular does not constitute an offer to sell or solicitation of an offer to buy
any of the securities offered in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful
to make such offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction.
The effective date of this offering circular is 6HSWHPEHU , 2019
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Forward-Looking Statements
YOU SHOULD READ THE FOLLOWING OFFERING CIRCULAR TOGETHER WITH THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE RELATED NOTES APPEARING ELSEWHERE IN
THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR. THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR CONTAINS FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS THAT INVOLVE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES. STATEMENTS THAT EVENTS OR
OUTCOMES “WILL,” ARE “EXPECTED,” OR ARE “PLANNED,” TO OCCUR, AND SIMILAR PREDICTIVE
LANGUAGE, ARE SUCH FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. OUR ACTUAL RESULTS COULD DIFFER
MATERIALLY FROM THOSE ANTICIPATED IN THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AS A
RESULT OF THE FACTORS DESCRIBED UNDER THE HEADING “RISK FACTORS” AND ELSEWHERE IN
THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR. WHETHER ANY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS WILL ULTIMATELY
PROVE ACCURATE IS HIGHLY SPECULATIVE.
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OFFERING CIRCULAR SUMMARY
THE FOLLOWING SUMMARY SUPPLIES PERTINENT HIGHLIGHTS OF THE MATERIAL
CONTAINED IN THE BODY OF THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR. YOU ARE URGED TO READ THIS ENTIRE
OFFERING CIRCULAR CAREFULLY BEFORE MAKING A DECISION TO PURCHASE OUR SHARES
CONSISTING OF OUR COMMON STOCK. REFERENCES IN THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR TO “US,” “WE,”
“OUR,” OR THE “BANK” REFER TO ENDEAVOR BANK.
The Development of the Bank
Most banks in the San Diego region, like Endeavor Bank, provide banking services to businesses located in
greater San Diego. However, few if any are as singularly focused on serving owner managed operating companies
the way Endeavor Bank does it.
San Diego has always been a local banking community. In the 1980’s, our region headquartered 48 local
banks. Since then, the industry has consolidated across the country, and San Diego’s local headquartered banks
followed that trend, reducing to 28 by the 2000’s. Now that number is down to nine. When Endeavor Bank’s
organizers considered starting the Bank four years ago, we characterized that trend as creating a “hole in the market.”
The organizers saw an opportunity for a new, locally headquartered bank, owned by local business owners, managed
by local bankers, with all decision-making domiciled here in San Diego, close to our clients.
Over that same roughly 30-year period of consolidation, the banking business in the San Diego region has
grown. Total regional deposits were approximately $22 billion in the early 1990’s (the earliest data available). That
number has increased to over $89 billion as of 2018, all while local banks were disappearing. A very small handful
of large financial institutions focused nationwide and outside the United States now hold most of our region’s deposits.
San Diego’s business has grown, but banks headquartered outside our community have benefited more than our few
remaining local banks.
Endeavor Bank’s unique approach to filling the “hole in the market” begins with our ownership structure.
We involved a broad spectrum of the local business community as investors. We accomplished several important
goals with this structure. First, we do not want any one person, or any very small group of individuals, to be able to
exert influence that would make it more difficult for the board of directors to serve the long-term interests of all of the
shareholders. We furthered our goal by subscribing 452 initial shareholders in our initial public offering. The initial
shareholders were drawn primarily from the San Diego business community, none of them purchased more than
$1,000,000 of stock in the initial public offering, and the average investment was $59,040.
Second, from the outset, our stock has been publicly traded on the OTC Pink®. We wanted to create a public
market for the stock in case any individual shareholder wants liquidity. Third, and this point is key to our growth
strategy, by having over 450 shareholders based mostly in San Diego, our shareholders are a strong affinity group
with a stake in our success. We created an advisory board consisting of client/shareholders and hold recurring
client/shareholder networking events. A substantial proportion of our client referrals come from this affinity group,
validating our vision of creating an investor led bank.
Another way we are filling the “hole in the market” is our singular focus. The large institutional banks that
own most of our region’s banking market have more business silos spread around the world than we can take space to
enumerate. Endeavor Bank focuses on serving local operating businesses and their owners. We manage the breadth
of business banking needs for our clients, but our focus is solely on them and their needs. We do not try to be all
things to every business strategy around the world like the large institutional banks. Our clients know they receive
100% of our focus and we believe our clients experience a superior result.
Endeavor Bank brands our approach to serving the banking needs of local businesses and their owners in our
communications as “Consultative Banking.” Consultative Banking covers a wide array of topics and how we apply
the term differs from one client relationship to the next. Our management team has entrepreneurial experience in
starting banks, successfully growing/scaling organizations, and exiting these companies. We have raised capital and
acquired businesses in our industry. In addition to our own first-hand experience growing banking businesses, we
have also worked with hundreds of niche companies in hundreds of industries and played various roles in helping the
management teams of these companies successfully navigate these businesses all the way from start up to eventual
exit. Along the way, issues and opportunities arose that we had the pleasure of witnessing, learning from, and in many
cases playing key roles by identifying how these companies could perform and thrive through the events and over
time. Experience sharing and brainstorming, drawing upon years of experience and wisdom serving mid-sized
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businesses has culminated into what is now a highly valuable service that we offer to our clients and they have come
to rely upon. Some business owners have compared the role we serve as similar to being part of their advisory board.
When clients and prospects call upon us to operate in the capacity of a key advisor, we view this trusted role
as part sounding board to brainstorm ideas. We use a whiteboard approach to visualize and to offer
suggestions. Typically, these whiteboard sessions involve discussions about opportunities or business decision points
that clients may be considering. It is common for a business owner to face a situation that for them could be new, but
our team may have encountered the situation repeatedly over the years and may know different approaches to manage
it.
Consultative Banking also involves our role as “centers of influence” in the business community. Clients
often ask us to make a key introduction to individuals and businesses where we have developed deep relationships in
a wide array of business niches. This can take the form of a simple introduction where we may be able to identify
a good fit for our clients that have a need to meet a fractional CFO firm, an accounting professional, lawyers,
commercial insurance brokers, real estate brokers, and so on. Or, a client might be looking for an introduction to a
firm or professional in a particular specialty.
Quite often clients ask us to play a role in helping them grow revenues & profits by making introductions to
prospective customers, or helping with strategic ideas to improve sales, reduce expenses, or increase profits. We strive
to go outside the mainstream of traditional banking relationships (or the vendor role where many banks limit
themselves). By contrast, we see our consultative role as the most important part of the value we add to our clients.
It is how we work daily to give Endeavor Bank a competitive edge. Our management team’s “cultural” mission is to
seek out opportunities to add value to clients that are not merely product or loan centric. The real value of the culture
comes from the unique knowledge and collective experiences our individual bankers bring to the team and to our
clients. That is not easy to mimic or replicate as it all stems from the depth of knowledge found in our team of bankers
and that is our key competitive edge.
We believe the results since we opened for business on January 22, 2018, prove that our region wanted a
local bank to fill the “hole in the market.” Based on our initial offering results, the Bank is approximately 90% owned
by local business owners. Our client relationships are 95% local Southern California businesses. Our Board and
management team are local. All our decision-making is local. The Bank was locally conceived, was locally
capitalized, and is locally managed by and for local businesses and their owners. We believe the success we
experienced in our initial ramp-up proves our premise that local businesses want to deal with local decision-makers.
A little noticed fact about local banking is the mutual benefit to every San Diego based businessperson. When
an out-of-market bank opens a regional office in San Diego, that bank does not necessarily re-invest San Diego based
deposits back into our region. Not so with Endeavor Bank. We raise almost 100% of our deposits from local businesses
and their owners and we invest virtually all of those deposits back into our region in terms of local lending. This
circulation of our local economy is another reason local matters.
Endeavor Bank’s management team is unparalleled in terms of its experience. Our team produced four
CEO’s at prior institutions. Our team started six de novo banks in prior employments. Our team produced seven
successful capital raises. Four of our management team members are lifelong San Diego bankers or spent most of
their careers in San Diego. Our relationship managers are all senior, well known in San Diego, and bring with them
strong client followings.
To illustrate our points, see our consistent record of growth in loans, deposits, assets since we opened on
January 22, 2018 through June 30, 2019:
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Our lending reflects our focus both on business lending, and, in line with our owner-managed focus, loans to
owner-managed businesses as of June 30, 2019. The following table represents management’s segmentation of loans
by the categories indicated (this analysis does not track our financial statement or call report loan categories):
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San Diego continues to grow and create new opportunities for bankable businesses. With breakthrough
technology and biotechnology companies and research organizations, a large defense industry and military presence,
and a strong tourism industry, the San Diego region has one of the most diverse, dynamic economies in the country.
According to information released by the U.S. Census Bureau on April 18, 2019, as of July 1, 2018, San Diego County
was ranked as the second largest county in California and the fifth largest county in the nation with approximately 3.3
million residents. As reported by the California Employment Development Department, the April 2019
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unemployment rate for San Diego County stood at 3.0% compared to 3.9% and 3.3%, respectively, for California and
the U.S. San Diego County’s economic base is heavily dependent on small and medium-sized businesses (according
to California Employment Development Department 2017 third quarter data, 35,316 businesses in San Diego County
have between 5 and 99 employees), providing us with a market rich in potential customers. The area also continues
to experience rapid population growth, resulting in a growing number of jobs and an increased need for housing.
Reasons for the Offering
We believe there is a window of opportunity for us to “fill the hole” in San Diego County with our new
business-focused community bank. Interested local bankers regularly approach us about joining the bank because
they see the need and the opportunities we can create for them to serve their clients and build for the future that other
banks do not offer. The additional capital from this offering will allow us to provide our existing and new bankers
with a stronger foundation on which to grow and enable us to selectively choose the best bankers to join our team,
grow our deposit and loan business, and further our Consultative Banking model.
Some other de novo banks that have raised their initial capital since the beginning of 2017 have raised more
than the $26,398,375 in net proceeds that we did. Four of these banks raised between $39 million and $50 million
before they opened. Given that the market opportunities we have identified are simply larger than we believed when
we were organizing the bank, the additional capital we seek in this offering, in our view, will bring us more in line
with those higher-capitalized de novo banks.
With the support of our board, advisory council, shareholders and customers, our business has consistently
grown, validating the assumptions behind our initial offering of stock. Our board believes that the best opportunity
to create long-term shareholder value is to focus on the opportunities currently available in the marketplace to grow
the Bank over the next few years. With the proceeds of this offering we can enhance our foundation for additional
growth by:
x

providing a platform to attract and add strong, experienced bankers to our team;

x

increasing the amounts we can loan to local businesses; and,

x

broadening our local shareholder base.

We are excited about the future of this Bank for our shareholders, customers, and the San Diego community
that has been supportive of this effort over our first year and a half of operations. We trust that you will take advantage
of this opportunity to join other San Diegans in developing San Diego’s next valuable institution.
This offering represents the second opportunity to invest in our mission to build a San Diego based bank serving San
Diego businesses and their owners. We are here, we are growing, and we look forward to you joining our Endeavor.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL DATA
The following financial data with respect to our statement of financial condition as of December 31, 2018
and our statement of operations for the period January 22, 2018 (Inception of Business) through December 31, 2018
have been derived from the audited financial statements included in this offering circular beginning at page F-1. This
information should be read in conjunction with such financial statements and the notes thereto. The financial data with
respect to our statements of financial condition as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 and our statements of operations for the
six month period ended June 30, 2019 and the period January 22, 2018 (Inception of Business) through June 30, 2018
are unaudited and have been derived from our books and records. This information should be read in conjunction with
our condensed financial statements and the notes thereto which are included in this offering circular beginning at page
F-7. See also “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” below.
At or For Period Ended June 30,(1)
Provision for Loan Losses
Net Loss
Loss per Share – Basic
Loss per Share – Diluted
Book Value per Share
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding – Basic
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding – Diluted
Total Assets
Total Deposits
Total Shareholders’ Equity
Shareholders’ Equity to Deposits
Loans, net of Deferred Fees and Costs to Deposits
Shareholders’ Equity to Assets

2019
$ 383,000
(1,890,349)
$(0.71)
$(0.71)
$7.11
2,668,595
2,668,595
$105,504,607
85,389,385
18,962,563
22.21%
77.36%
17.97%

2018
$ 206,000
(2,410,684)
$(0.90)
$(0.90)
$8.40
2,668,595
2,668,595
$50,253,058
26,811,286
22,417,918
83.61%
49.47%
44.61%

At or For
the Period Ended
December 31, 2018(1)
$ 667,000
(4,847,646)
$(1.82)
$(1.82)
$7.70
2,668,595
2,668,595
$87,240,460
65,779,533
20,552,110
31.24%
66.03%
23.56%

(1) The period ending June 30, 2018 and the period ending December 31, 2018 commenced on January 22, 2018, at inception of
the Bank.
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Offering Summary
Name

Endeavor Bank

Address and Phone Number

Headquarters
750 B St #3110
San Diego, CA 92101
619.329.6565

OTC Pink® Trading Symbol

EDVR

Website

https://www.bankendeavor.com/ (information contained in our
web site is not part of this offering circular)

Securities Offered

1,043,479 to 1,304,348 shares of our common stock, no par
value, subject to the Over Subscription Option described
below.

Existing shareholder preference

Existing shareholders that subscribe by October , 2019 will
be preferred over other subscribers. In the event that
subscriptions in excess of the maximum amount of the offering
(including if the Over Subscription Option is exercised) are
received, the subscriptions of existing shareholders who
subscribed during that time period will be the last subscriptions
reduced, if at all.

Over Subscription Option

In the event the Bank receives subscriptions to purchase shares
in an amount exceeding in the aggregate 1,304,348 shares, we
reserve the right in our sole discretion to accept all or a portion
of such excess subscriptions in an amount not greater than 10
percent of the maximum number of shares issuable in this
offering (130,435 shares) with potential additional proceeds of
up to $1,500,000.

Offering Price Per Share

$11.50 per share.

Minimum Subscription

2,174 shares ($25,001).

Expiration Date

'HFHPEHU, 2019 at 5:00 p.m. Pacific Time, unless, in our
sole discretion, we extend this offering, it is fully subscribed
before that date or we close this offering, and, in any event,
this offering may be closed without further notice.

Subscriptions by Bank Directors

We have been advised that all of the members of our board of
directors intend to invest in this offering, with a total
investment of at least $442,564 for 38,485 shares.

6

Administration and Loan
Production
6183 Paseo Del Norte #260
Carlsbad, CA 92011
760.795.0102

How to Subscribe

Each subscriber must deliver the completed Subscription
Application together with the full subscription price to the
Subscription Agent, described below, on or before 'HFHmber
, 2019, or such later or earlier date as the Bank may
designate.
If we decide to accept your subscription, your funds may be
immediately transferred to us once the minimum offering
amount is reached. After this offering concludes, our transfer
agent will issue your shares in book entry, or uncertificated,
form, meaning that you will receive a direct registration
account statement from our transfer agent reflecting ownership
of these shares. However, if your Subscription Application
instructs us to issue shares to your brokerage account, as a
courtesy, our transfer agent will coordinate with your broker to
effect the crediting of your shares to your brokerage account,
although this may result in a delay between the time the shares
would otherwise be issued and the time they are credited to
your brokerage account.
If you have any questions about subscription procedures,
please contact Danna M. Murphy at (760) 795-1254 or by
email at dmurphy@bankendeavor.com.

Subscription Agent

Subscriptions will be deposited in an impound account with
Computershare Inc., pending the sale of at least 1,043,479
shares in this offering. If at least 1,043,479 shares are not sold
by the Offering Expiration Date (as the same may be
extended), all of the funds will be returned to subscribers,
without interest and without any expense deduction.

For Information Contact:

Dan C. Yates, CEO, at (858) 230-5185, or Steve Sefton,
President, at (858) 230-4243.

Use of Proceeds

The proceeds of this offering will be used to finance our
growth by:
•
increasing our capital;
•
increasing our lending limits, which enables us to
broaden our customer base by allowing us to offer larger
credits; and
•
enabling us to add bank operations and business
development employees.
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RISK FACTORS
You should carefully consider the following risk factors and all other information contained in this
offering circular before investing. Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. The risks and
uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known
to us or that we currently believe are immaterial also may impair our business. If any of the events described in the
following risks occur, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely
affected. In addition, the trading price of our common stock could decline due to any of the events described in
these risks, and you may lose all or part of your investment.
Risks Related to the Bank
We have a limited operating history.
We have only been operating since January 22, 2018 and as a relatively new bank are subject to significant
risks that we may not succeed. In addition to the specific risks described elsewhere below, in general there is a risk
that we may not succeed because of our relative newness in a competitive marketplace and the need to generate
consistent earnings to be successful. Events that we cannot predict and do not expect could cause us to fail because of
our increased vulnerability at this stage in our development.
We have never been profitable.
As a start-up bank, we did not expect to generate, and have not generated profits yet. We have had and
continue to have noninterest expenses (employee, leasehold (two offices) and other operating expenses), which when
added to the cost of our deposits, have resulted in net losses. See “Selected Financial Data” below. We had an
accumulated deficit of $8,790,281 as of June 30, 2019. In order to become profitable our strategy is to focus on and
invest in growth to create long-term shareholder value, which is the overall rationale for this offering. Our investment
in growth may either speed or postpone the time when we may become profitable, and there are no guarantees as to
when or if we will become profitable.
We are dependent on the skills and performance of management.
Our business is essentially a service business. Our Consultative Banking business model, in particular, is
dependent on personal relationships with our customers. Many of those relationships are currently originated or
managed through our senior management team. If any of our senior officers were to leave us or if they fail to perform
adequately, our business would suffer.
We face limits on our ability to lend.
The size of loans we can make is limited by regulation based upon the amount of our capital, except to the
extent we can find other banks to participate in larger loans that we originate. As of June 30, 2019, the maximum we
could lend to one borrower was approximately $5.0 million for secured loans and approximately $3.0 million for
unsecured loans. As a result of this offering, the maximum size of loan we can make will rise, but will still be very
small compared to our much larger competitors. These limits restrict our ability to make loans to businesses that need
to borrow higher amounts, unless we can find other banks to participate in such loans, and there is no assurance that
we will be able to do so.
Our success will depend upon our ability to recruit and retain qualified employees, especially seasoned
relationship bankers.
A key use of proceeds of this offering will be to fund the acquisition of additional bankers. We are optimistic
that we will be able to do so as we are frequently approached by bankers who want to join our team, unsolicited, but
we may have to compete for quality candidates. Our business, especially as a growing new bank, is dependent upon
hiring and retaining highly qualified and motivated executives and employees at every level in order to deliver the
Consultative Banking service we strive to provide. From time to time, the Bank may recruit or utilize the services of
employees who are subject to limitations on their ability to use confidential information of a prior employer, to freely
compete with that employer, or to solicit customers of that employer. Although the Bank has procedures in place to
screen candidates for these issues and protect the Bank in this area, if the Bank or its employee is found to have
violated any nonsolicitation or other restrictions applicable to it or its employees, the Bank or its employee could
become subject to litigation or other proceedings.
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Competition with other banks and other financial institutions could adversely affect our business.
We face vigorous competition from other banks and other financial institutions, including savings and loan
associations, savings banks, finance companies and credit unions. A number of these financial institutions have
substantially greater resources and lending limits, the ability to offer better pricing and terms than we can, larger
branch systems and a wider array of banking services than we offer. We compete largely on the basis of service and
our Consultative Banking approach. While we believe our approach will be successful, many potential customers will
choose the larger institutions based on pricing and terms or other factors.
If the local economy declines, our financial results would suffer.
Since much of our business is in San Diego County, if business and/or real estate market conditions
deteriorate in this area, our business, particularly our lending business, will suffer and our loans may not be fully
repaid.
Failure to maintain and implement adequate programs to combat money laundering and terrorist financing
could have serious reputational consequences for us.
The Bank Secrecy Act, or BSA, the USA PATRIOT Act and other laws and regulations require financial
institutions, among other duties, to institute and maintain effective anti-money laundering programs and file suspicious
activity and currency transaction reports as appropriate. The federal Financial Crimes Enforcement Network,
established by the U.S. Treasury to administer the BSA, is authorized to impose significant civil money penalties for
violations of those requirements and has recently engaged in coordinated enforcement efforts with the individual
federal bank regulators, as well as the U.S. Department of Justice, Drug Enforcement Administration and Internal
Revenue Service. There is also increased scrutiny of compliance with the rules enforced by the Office of Foreign
Assets Control, or OFAC. Federal and state bank regulators also have begun to focus on compliance with BSA and
anti-money laundering regulations. If our policies, procedures and systems are deemed deficient, we could be subject
to liability, including fines and regulatory actions such as restrictions on our ability to pay dividends and the necessity
to obtain regulatory approvals to proceed with certain aspects of our business plan, which could negatively impact our
business, financial condition and results of operations. Failure to maintain and implement adequate programs to
combat money laundering and terrorist financing could also have serious reputational consequences for us.
Our business and that of many San Diego customers is indirectly or directly tied to United States federal
government funding.
A large portion of the San Diego economy is dependent on Federal government funding. San Diego is home
to many military installations and a large defense contracting industry. In addition, many of San Diego’s technology
and biotech companies and nonprofit research and educational organizations depend on Federal government research
funds. In the past, government shutdowns have adversely affected business in San Diego, and future shutdowns or
government funding cutbacks in these areas would adversely affect the San Diego economy and our customers’ ability
to repay loans and borrowing plans.
A decline in real estate markets would adversely affect us.
Although the focus of our lending is on owner-operated businesses, the real estate associated with those
businesses is often an important form of security for our loans, and we make other loans as to which the real estate
collateral is the primary security for the loans. As of June 30, 2019, 63.9% of our gross outstanding loan portfolio
was collateralized by real estate. If real estate values decline the risk of default increases and makes it more likely that
we would suffer losses on loans that go into default.
Our operations are subject to interest rate risk.
We make money on the difference between the interest we pay on deposits and the interest we collect on
loans and investments. If the difference in these rates narrows we will make less money. This could occur, for instance,
if the rates we pay depositors rises, but the rates we charge on loans fall or rise to a lesser degree. Among other things,
rapid changes in interest rates could cause this to occur.
We may have to pay interest rates on deposits higher than other banks in order to fund our lending.
We have run one deposit “campaign” for several months and may do so again in the future. As of June 30,
2019, substantially all of our certificates of deposit were derived from that campaign. During a campaign we would
offer rates higher than those we would otherwise make available, in order to increase our liquidity to fund our loans.
9

In addition, we also provide unpublished rate concessions on deposits from time to time. Although, as a de novo bank,
regulations somewhat restrict our ability to increase deposit rates, we may still find it necessary to raise deposits in
such campaigns and/or make rate concessions, which will increase our cost of deposits.
A portion of our deposits are concentrated.
As of June 30, 2019, the Bank had 14 deposit relationships that exceeded 2.0% of total deposits, collectively
aggregating $37,848,001 and representing 44.3% of the total deposits of the Bank. Should these depositors withdraw
their deposits, we would have to find a way to replace them, perhaps at higher cost.
We could suffer losses if we do not properly assess lending risks.
Each loan involves inherent risk that the borrower will not be able to repay the loan. Although we attempt to
evaluate the risks related to each loan we make, if we do not adequately assess and protect ourselves against these
risks, we may not be fully repaid. We could suffer significant loan losses if there is a systemic fault in our loan
underwriting or if we have not identified all of the important risks of different types of lending.
We are subject to a number of cyber and data security risks that could cripple our operations.
Our business is heavily dependent in part upon the use of the Internet and online services as a medium for
banking and commerce by customers and third party vendors. As the Bank outsources many of its functions to third
parties over the internet, its information and the personal information of customers is subject to risk of infiltration,
hacking and loss of data security in transmission. A key data breach or destabilization of the Bank’s systems could
result in the Bank becoming unable to operate and result of potential liability to customers and other third parties. The
occurrence of any cyberattack or information security breach could result in potential liability to clients, reputational
damage and the disruption of the Bank’s operations, and regulatory concerns, all of which could adversely affect the
Bank’s business, financial condition or results of operations.
We rely heavily upon third party service providers.
The Bank depends on a number of relationships with third-party service providers. Specifically, the Bank
receives core systems processing, essential web hosting and other Internet systems, deposit processing and other
processing services from third-party service providers. If these third-party service providers experience difficulties, or
terminate their services, and the Bank is unable to replace them with other service providers, particularly on a timely
basis, the Bank’s operations could be interrupted. If an interruption were to continue for a significant period of time,
the Bank’s business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected, perhaps materially.
Even if the Bank is able to replace third-party service providers, it may be at a higher cost to the Bank, which could
adversely affect the Bank’s business, financial condition and results of operations.
We cannot predict whether we can find alternative providers, what the cost of alternative services would be
or how quickly service might be restored.
If national economic conditions decline or policies change our business would suffer.
Our operations could be adversely affected by changes in monetary policy (set by the Board of Governors of
the Federal Reserve System) or other economic trends over which we have no control, such as unemployment,
inflation, California and Federal tax and spending policies, and government trade policies.
We operate in a highly regulated industry, which adds significant costs to our operations.
Banking is a heavily regulated industry and the costs of regulatory compliance are rising. Because we are a
relatively small bank, we expect to incur increased costs for the monitoring and reporting on some customer banking
transactions to the Federal government, and protecting customer privacy, among other things.
If our allowance for loan losses is insufficient we may not be able to generate earnings.
We create an allowance for loan losses on our balance sheet that is intended to absorb future loan losses. We
make a number of assumptions and evaluations of our loan portfolio and specific loans in determining the adequacy
of our allowance for loan losses. If our assumptions or evaluations prove incorrect we could suffer loan losses in
excess of the allowance, which would immediately reduce any earnings we might otherwise have.
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Our small business customers may lack the resources to weather a downturn in the economy.
Small businesses generally have fewer financial resources in terms of capital or borrowing capacity than do
larger businesses. If economic conditions are generally unfavorable in San Diego County, our small business
customers may not be able to fully repay their loans and we could suffer loan losses as a result.
We must effectively deploy technology to meet customer demands, keep pace with competitors and succeed.
The financial services industry is undergoing rapid technological changes with frequent introductions of new
technology-driven products and services. In addition to better serving clients, the effective use of technology increases
efficiency and enables financial institutions to reduce costs. The Bank’s future success will depend in part upon its
ability to address the needs of its clients by using technology to provide products and services that will satisfy client
demands for convenience as well as to provide secure electronic environments and create additional efficiencies in its
operations as it continues to grow. Many of the Bank’s larger competitors have greater resources to invest in
technological improvements and have invested more than the Bank in technological improvements. As a result, they
may be able to offer additional or more convenient products compared to those that the Bank will be able to provide,
which would put the Bank at a competitive disadvantage. Accordingly, the Bank may not be able to effectively
implement new technology-driven products and services or be successful in marketing such products and services to
its clients, which could impair its growth and profitability.
The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, addressing corporate and auditing scandals will result in increased costs of
compliance.
The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and related regulations are increasing the costs of all companies that file
registration statements under the Securities Act of 1933 or file reports under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and
have imposed new requirements on their auditors. Although we are not subject to these filing requirements, bank
regulators are increasingly seeking bank compliance with this act. We expect to bear increased costs as a result,
whether or not we are required to comply with these filing requirements.
Endeavor Bank follows a relationship-based Consultative Banking operating model and its ability to maintain
its reputation is critical to the success of its business.
The Bank is a community bank, and our reputation is one of the most valuable components of our business,
especially given our Consultative Banking approach. As such, the Bank strives to conduct its business in a manner
that enhances its reputation. We accomplish this by, in part, recruiting, hiring and retaining bankers who share our
core values and can adopt our consultative banking business model. Furthermore, maintaining the Bank’s reputation
also depends on its ability to protect its brand name and associated intellectual property. If the Bank’s reputation is
negatively affected by the actions of its bankers, and by any banker turnover, its business and operating results may
be materially adversely affected.
The Bank could be subject to environmental risks and associated costs on its other real estate owned assets.
A portion of the Bank’s loan portfolio is comprised of loans collateralized by real estate. There is a risk that
hazardous or toxic waste could be discovered on the properties that secure the Bank’s loans. If the Bank acquires such
properties as a result of foreclosure, it could be held responsible for the cost of cleaning up or removing this waste,
and this cost could exceed the value of the underlying properties and materially and adversely affect the Bank.
Changes in accounting standards could materially impact the Bank’s financial statements.
From time to time, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, or the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or SEC, may change the financial accounting and reporting standards that govern the preparation of the
Bank’s financial statements. Such changes may result in the Bank being subject to new or changing accounting and
reporting standards. In addition, the bodies that interpret the accounting standards (such as banking regulators or
outside auditors) may change their interpretations or positions on how these standards should be applied. These
changes may be beyond the Bank’s control, can be hard to predict and can materially impact how the Bank records
and reports its financial condition and results of operations. In some cases, the Bank could be required to apply a new
or revised standard retrospectively, or apply an existing standard differently, also retrospectively, in each case resulting
in the Bank’s need to revise or restate prior period financial statements. In addition, the FASB has adopted new
accounting standards for the recognition and measurement of credit losses for loans and certain other instruments. The
new standards will be effective for the Bank beginning January 1, 2021. While the Bank is still evaluating the impact
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of these new accounting standards, it expects that the allowance for loan losses will be higher under the new standard
and as such, could have an impact on the Bank’s results of operations.
Regulatory initiatives regarding bank capital requirements may require heightened capital.
Regulatory capital rules adopted in July 2013 implemented higher minimum capital requirements for bank
holding companies and banks. These rules, which implement the Basel III regulatory capital reforms from the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision, include a common equity Tier 1 capital requirement and establish criteria that
instruments must meet to be considered common equity Tier 1 capital, additional Tier 1 capital or Tier 2 capital. These
enhancements were intended to both improve the quality and increase the quantity of capital required to be held by
banking organizations, and to better equip the U.S. banking system to deal with adverse economic conditions. The
capital rules require bank holding companies and banks to maintain a common equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 4.5%, a
minimum total Tier 1 risk based capital ratio of 6%, a minimum total risk based capital ratio of 8%, and a minimum
leverage ratio of 4%. Bank holding companies and banks are also required to hold a capital conservation buffer of
common equity Tier 1 capital of 2.5% to avoid limitations on capital distributions and discretionary executive
compensation payments. The revised capital rules will also require banks to maintain a common equity Tier 1 capital
ratio of 6.5% or greater, a Tier 1 capital ratio of 8% or greater, a total capital ratio of 10% or greater and a leverage
ratio of 5% or greater to be deemed “well-capitalized” for purposes of certain rules and prompt corrective action
requirements.
The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”) may also set higher capital requirements for banks
whose circumstances warrant it. Our capital requirements are enhanced for our first three years of operations under
the FDIC’s order permitting us to open for business and under the California Department of Business Oversight’s
(“DBO’s”) issuance of our bank charter. See “Supervision and Regulation – Capital Standards.” Our regulatory
capital ratios currently are in excess of the levels established for “well-capitalized” institutions. Future regulatory
change could impose higher capital standards.
The “Economic Growth, Regulatory Relief, and Consumer Protection Act” directed the federal bank
regulatory agencies to develop a “Community Bank Leverage Ratio,” calculated by dividing tangible equity capital
by average consolidated total assets, of not less than 8% and not more than 10%. In November 2018, the federal
banking agencies proposed a Community Bank Leverage Ratio of 9%. If a “qualified community bank,” generally a
depository institution or depository institution holding company with consolidated assets of less than $10 billion, has
a leverage ratio which exceeds the Community Bank Leverage Ratio, then such bank will be considered to have met
all generally applicable leverage and risk based capital requirements; the capital ratio requirements for “well
capitalized” status under Section 38 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, or the FDI Act, and any other leverage or
capital requirements to which it is subject. We do not expect to qualify for this simplified regime due to our business
model, and even if the Bank qualifies for this simplified capital regime, there can be no assurance that satisfaction of
the Community Bank Leverage Ratio will provide adequate capital for its operations and growth, or an adequate
cushion against increased levels of nonperforming assets or weakened economic conditions.
Any new or revised standards adopted in the future may require us to maintain materially more capital, with
common equity as a more predominant component, or manage the configuration of our assets and liabilities to comply
with formulaic liquidity requirements. We may not be able to raise additional capital at all, or on terms acceptable to
us. Failure to maintain capital to meet current or future regulatory requirements could have a significant material
adverse effect on the Bank’s business, financial condition and results of operations.
The soundness of other financial institutions may adversely affect the Bank.
Financial services institutions are interrelated as a result of trading, clearing, counterparty, or other
relationships. The Bank has exposure to many different industries and counterparties, and routinely executes
transactions with counterparties in the financial services industry, including commercial banks, brokers and dealers,
investment banks, and institutional clients. Many of these transactions expose the Bank to credit risk in the event of a
default by a counterparty or client. In addition, the Bank’s credit risk may be exacerbated when the collateral held by
the Bank cannot be realized upon or is liquidated at prices not sufficient to recover the full amount of the credit
exposure due to the Bank. Any such losses could have a material adverse effect on the Bank’s financial condition and
results of operations.
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The increasing use of social media platforms presents new risks and challenges and the inability or failure to
recognize, respond to, and effectively manage the accelerated impact of social media could materially adversely
impact the Bank’s business.
There has been a marked increase in the use of social media platforms, including weblogs (blogs), social
media websites, and other forms of Internet-based communications which allow individuals access to a broad audience
of consumers and other interested persons. The Bank has a social media presence through its “TeamVibe” networking
site, which facilitates communications among the Bank, its shareholders and others in the San Diego business
community. Although we monitor the TeamVibe site, it is possible that posts by participants on the site could result
in liability or adverse publicity for the Bank.
Social media practices in the banking industry are evolving, which creates uncertainty and risk of
noncompliance with regulations applicable to the Bank’s business. Consumers value readily available information
concerning businesses and their goods and services and often act on such information without further investigation
and without regard to its accuracy. Many social media platforms immediately publish the content their subscribers
and participants post, often without filters or checks on accuracy of the content posted. Information posted on such
platforms at any time may be adverse to the Bank’s interests and/or may be inaccurate. The dissemination of
information online could harm the Bank’s business, prospects, financial condition, and results of operations, regardless
of the information’s accuracy. The harm may be immediate without affording the Bank an opportunity for redress or
correction.
Other risks associated with the use of social media include improper disclosure of proprietary information,
negative comments about the Bank’s business, exposure of personally identifiable information, fraud, out-of-date
information, and improper use by employees and customers. The inappropriate use of social media by the Bank’s
shareholders, customers or employees could result in negative consequences such as remediation costs including
training for employees, additional regulatory scrutiny and possible regulatory penalties, litigation, or negative
publicity that could damage the Bank’s reputation adversely affecting customer or investor confidence.
Risks related to specific segments of our loan portfolio may result in losses that could affect our results of
operations and financial condition.
General economic conditions and local economic conditions affect our entire loan portfolio. Lending risks
vary by the type of loan extended.
Collectability of our Commercial and Industrial (“C&I”) loans, including Small Business Administration
(“SBA”) loans and loans partially guaranteed through the California Southern Small Business Development
Corporation program may be adversely affected by risks generally related to small and middle market businesses, such
as:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Changes or weaknesses in specific industry segments, including weakness affecting the business’
customer base;
Changes in consumer behavior;
Changes in a business’ personnel;
Increases in supplier costs that cannot be passed along to customers;
Increases in operating expenses (including energy costs);
Changes in governmental rules, regulations and fiscal policies; and
Increases in interest rates, tax rates.

As of June 30, 2019, 63.9% of our gross outstanding loan portfolio was collateralized by real estate. Payment
performance and the liquidation values of collateral properties may be adversely affected by risks generally incidental
to interests in real property, such as:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Declines in real estate values;
Declines in lease rates;
Continued reduction in consumer patronage of retail stores due to use of the internet to make
purchases;
Declines in occupancy rates;
Increases in other operating expenses (including energy costs);
The availability of property financing;
Changes in governmental rules, regulations and fiscal policies, including rent control ordinances,
environmental legislation and taxation; and
Increases in interest rates, real estate and personal property tax rates.
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Collectability and the liquidation values of collateral properties for our construction loans may be adversely
affected by risks generally related to consumers (for residential construction loans) or incidental to interests in real
property (for commercial real estate construction loans), such as:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Declines in real estate values;
Declines in lease rates;
Declines in occupancy rates;
Increases in other operating expenses (including energy costs);
The availability of property financing;
Changes in governmental rules, regulations and fiscal policies, including rent control ordinances,
environmental legislation and taxation; and
Increases in interest rates, real estate and personal property tax rates.

Our ability to profitably make and sell loans guaranteed in part by the SBA and the California Southern Small
Business Development Program is dependent on government funding.
The availability of the SBA guaranty program is subject to federal funding of the program. Loss of that
funding would mean that we would no longer be able to make these types of loans. There have been times in the past
where for relatively brief periods the program was unavailable. It is possible that as a result of changes in federal
government priorities, this program could cease to be funded.
The availability of the California Southern Small Business Development Program is dependent on funding
from the State of California. We have recently been advised that the maximum amount the guarantee provided under
this program was cutback from $2,000,000 to $1,000,000. Such cutbacks may reduce the volume of loans made under
this program. There is also a risk that the State of California might not honor its guaranties, which would adversely
affect our ability to collect on loans made under this program.
Variations in interest rates may negatively affect our net interest margin.
Changes in the interest rate environment may reduce our net interest income, and therefore our income. We
expect that we will continue to realize income from the differential or “margin” between the interest earned on loans,
securities and other interest-earning assets, and interest paid on deposits, borrowings and other interest-bearing
liabilities. Net interest margins are affected by the difference between the maturities and repricing characteristics of
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. We may be unable to minimize this type of interest rate risk.
Accordingly, changes in levels of market interest rates could materially and adversely affect our net interest margin
and income.
Declining interest rates may adversely affect us.
As the Federal Reserve has implied an openness to reduction in interest rates following its June 19, 2019
meetings, and lowered the target range for the federal funds rate by one-quarter of a point on July 31, 2019, there is
more risk of declining interest rates than in the recent past. The interest rates on our adjustable rate loans adjust more
quickly than rates on our deposits. In addition, our non-interest bearing deposits and our equity capital do not have
interest rates at all, so will never adjust downward. The interest rates on our interest-bearing deposits also adjust less
than rates on our loans because they continue to be at historically low levels. For these reasons, as interest rates
decline our interest income decreases incrementally more than our interest expense declines.
Rising interest rates may adversely affect our access to deposits and reduce our income from lending activities.
United States interest rates in general have been rising for the past three years, although following the Federal
Reserve meeting concluded on June 19, 2019, the Federal Reserve implied it will be open to considering potential
reductions in rates, and lowered the target range for the federal funds rate by one-quarter of a point on July 31, 2019.
Rising interest rates could have the following adverse effects upon us:
•
•
•

As interest rates rise we could suffer “disintermediation,” meaning that customers move money into
higher interest rate products of our competitors and other interest-bearing products.
As interest rates rise our cost of deposits grows and the risk of non-interest bearing deposits being
reallocated by customers into interest bearing deposits rises.
Our real estate lending may suffer as a result of increasing rates, as real estate construction and finance
may slow because rising rates have a direct negative effect on the returns on real estate investments.
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•
•

Commercial and other borrowers may reduce or forego borrowing due to the increased cost of
borrowing from us.
Changes in interest rates also affect the fair value of the securities portfolio. Generally, the value of
securities moves inversely with changes in interest rates.

The Bank has liquidity risk and may not be able to satisfy its future financial obligations as a result, and may
not have sufficient funds available to make loans.
Liquidity risk is the risk that we will have insufficient cash or access to cash to satisfy current and future
financial obligations, including demands for loans and deposit withdrawals, funding operating costs, and for other
corporate purposes. At June 30, 2019, our loan to deposit ratio was 77.4%, and we had a liquid asset ratio of 36.7%,
principally driven by on-balance sheet liquidity comprised of interest bearing deposits at other banks, primarily the
Federal Reserve Bank, of $38,190,800. As of June 30, 2019, we had no borrowings from other liquidity sources. An
inability to raise funds through deposits, borrowings, the sale of loans and other sources could have a material adverse
effect on liquidity. Access to funding sources in amounts adequate to finance business activities could be impaired
by factors that affect either entity specifically or the financial services industry in general. Factors that could
detrimentally impact access to liquidity sources include a decrease in the level of business activity due to a market
downturn or adverse regulatory action against the Bank. Our ability to acquire deposits or borrow could also be
impaired by factors that are not specific to the Bank, such as a severe disruption of the financial markets or negative
views and expectations about the prospects for the financial services industry as a whole.
The effects of changes to FDIC insurance coverage limits and assessments are uncertain and increased
premiums may adversely affect us.
FDIC insurance premium assessments are uncertain and increased premium assessments may adversely
affect our earnings. The FDIC charges insured financial institutions premiums to maintain the Deposit Insurance Fund
(“DIF”). Bank failures increased significantly during the economic downturn, causing the FDIC to take control of
failed institutions and guarantee payment from the DIF up to the insured limit for deposits held at such failed
institutions. The sustainability of the economic recovery is uncertain and a deterioration of economic conditions may
cause losses which require premium increases to replenish the DIF.
It is uncertain what effect the implementation of the changes to the insurance assessments will have upon the
Bank’s costs of operations in the future, but a deterioration in the economic conditions impacting financial institutions
or a significant number of failed institutions might necessitate increases in premium assessments to maintain the DIF
which could adversely impact the Bank.
We may be subject to potential claims and litigation pertaining to intellectual property.
We rely on technology companies to provide information technology products and services necessary to
support our day-to-day operations. Technology companies frequently enter into litigation based on allegations of
patent infringement or other violations of intellectual property rights. In addition, patent holding companies seek to
monetize patents they have purchased or otherwise obtained. Competitors of our vendors, or other individuals or
companies, may claim to hold intellectual property sold to us by our vendors. Such claims may increase in the future
as the financial services sector becomes more reliant on information technology vendors. The plaintiffs in these actions
frequently seek injunctions and substantial damages.
Regardless of the scope or validity of such patents or other intellectual property rights, or the merits of any
claims by potential or actual litigants, we may have to engage in protracted litigation. Such litigation is often
expensive, time-consuming, disruptive to our operations, and distracting to management. If we are found to infringe
on one or more patents or other intellectual property rights, we may be required to pay substantial damages or royalties
to a third party. In certain cases, we may consider entering into licensing agreements for disputed intellectual property,
although no assurance can be given that such licenses can be obtained on acceptable terms or that litigation will not
occur. These licenses may also significantly increase our operating expenses. If legal matters related to intellectual
property claims were resolved against us or settled, we could be required to make payments in amounts that could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.
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Federal and state banking agencies periodically conduct examinations of our business, including compliance
with laws and regulations, and our failure to comply with any supervisory actions to which we are or become
subject as a result of such examinations could result in regulatory action or penalties.
As part of the bank regulatory process, the FDIC and the DBO periodically conduct examinations of our
business, including our compliance with laws and regulations. If, as a result of an examination, the FDIC or the DBO
were to determine that our financial condition, capital resources, asset quality, earnings prospects, management,
liquidity, or other aspects of any of our operations had become unsatisfactory, or that we were in violation of any law
or regulation, it may take a number of different remedial actions as it deems appropriate. These actions include the
power to enjoin “unsafe or unsound” practices, to require affirmative action to correct any conditions resulting from
any violation or practice, to issue an administrative order that can be judicially enforced, to direct an increase in our
capital, to restrict our ability to pay dividends, to restrict our growth, to assess civil monetary penalties against us, or
our officers or directors, to remove officers and directors and, if it is concluded that such conditions cannot be corrected
or there is an imminent risk of loss to depositors, to terminate our deposit insurance and place the Bank into
receivership or conservatorship. Any such regulatory action could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations, and financial condition.
Risks Related to This Offering
We are selling our securities on a “best efforts” basis.
The shares are being offered on a “best efforts” basis by our directors and officers. None of our directors or
officers has made any commitment to sell any number of shares on our behalf. We can sell any number of shares in
this offering between the minimum up to the maximum.
Our offering is not underwritten.
This offering is not being underwritten, and the pricing was not determined by an underwriter or third party.
Thus, there has not been an independent review of matters covered by this offering circular as might be conducted by
an underwriter had one been affiliated with this offering. For instance, the determination of the offering price was
not subject to underwriter review. It was determined by our board of directors with the advice of its financial advisors.
There is a limited market for our common stock.
Because our stock is not listed on a recognized stock exchange and is very thinly traded on the OTC Pink®
under the symbol EDVR, you may not be able to sell your shares should you desire to do so. In addition, the price at
which you may be able to sell your shares is very unpredictable because there are very few trades in our stock.
We do not intend to pay dividends and our ability to pay dividends is limited.
We do not intend to pay any dividends to our shareholders. Management of the Bank presently intends to
follow a policy of retaining earnings, if any, for the purpose of increasing the Bank’s capital and supporting further
growth during not only its first three years of operation but likely for several years thereafter. As a newly chartered
banking institution insured by the FDIC, the Bank will follow the FDIC’s requirement that we not pay cash dividends
for at least its first three years of operation. In addition, the California Financial Code places further restrictions on
the payment of dividends by California state-chartered banks, including the Bank. Accordingly, it is anticipated that
no cash dividends will be declared during the foreseeable future.
You will experience immediate dilution in the book value of the shares you purchase in this offering.
Investors purchasing common stock in this offering will pay more for their shares than the amount paid by
existing shareholders who acquired shares prior to this offering. Your share of the equity of the Bank will be diluted
immediately upon your investment as your share of the Bank’s equity will be less than the purchase price for the
common stock you purchase. You will incur immediate dilution of approximately $3.23 per share at the minimum
offering, and $3.02 per share at the maximum, if you purchase common stock in this offering. Such amounts represent
the difference between the price per share in this offering and our adjusted tangible book value per share after giving
effect to the minimum offering and maximum offering, respectively.
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Our Equity Incentive Plan permits the issuance of awards of up to 30% of our outstanding shares, which would
dilute investors in this offering.
In 2018 the shareholders approved the adoption of our 2017 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan
permits the issuance of awards of up to 30% of the outstanding shares of stock at any particular time. Our Board has
the power to set the limit on awards up to that level, but is not required to do so. The total number of awards permitted
under the Plan at this time is 800,578 of which 495,666 have been issued in the form of stock options to directors,
officers and employees. We plan to increase the number of shares available for issuance under the Plan, as needed,
primarily to attract additional bankers we need to facilitate our growth, and at the minimum and maximum offerings
the total number of awards permitted could be up to 30% of the outstanding shares. Additionally, we need to maintain
a sufficient number of awards available to accommodate potential issuances of stock options to the organizers of the
Bank after our third year of operations. The issuance and/or exercise of awards under the Plan would dilute the
percentage ownership of investors in this offering and, as to awards that are currently outstanding, would dilute the
per share equity of investors in this offering.
We may have to raise additional capital in the future.
Even with the additional capital we hope to raise in this offering, we will likely need additional capital in the
future to finance our growth, which we believe to be imperative to our ability to effectively compete. In order to raise
additional capital we may have to issue securities that will dilute the investors in this offering and it may not be
possible for us to raise capital in any case.
We may issue shares of preferred stock in the future, which could make it difficult for another company to
acquire us or could otherwise adversely affect holders of our common stock.
Although there are currently no shares of our preferred stock outstanding, our articles of incorporation
authorize us to issue up to 20,000,000 shares of one or more series of preferred stock. The board of directors has the
power to set the terms of any series of preferred stock that may be issued, including voting rights, conversion rights,
preferences over our voting common stock with respect to dividends or in the event of a dissolution, liquidation or
winding up and other terms. If we issue preferred stock in the future that has preference over our common stock with
respect to payment of dividends or upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, or if we issue preferred stock with
voting rights that dilute the voting power of our common stock, the rights of the holders of our common stock or the
market price of our common stock could be adversely affected.
We have limited the circumstances in which our directors will be liable for monetary damages.
We have included in our articles of incorporation a provision to eliminate the liability of directors for
monetary damages to the maximum extent permitted by California law. The effect of this provision will be to reduce
the situations in which we or our shareholders will be able to seek monetary damages from our directors.
Our articles of incorporation also have a provision providing for indemnification of our agents to the fullest
extent permitted or required by California law. We have also entered into agreements with our executive officers and
directors in which we similarly agree to provide indemnification that is otherwise discretionary. Such indemnification
may be available for liabilities arising in connection with this offering.
An investment in our common stock is not an insured deposit and is subject to risk of loss.
Your investment in our common stock will not be a bank deposit and, therefore, will not be insured against
loss or guaranteed by the FDIC, any deposit insurance fund or by any other public or private entity. Investment in our
common stock is inherently risky for the reasons described herein, and is subject to similar market forces that may
affect the price of common stock in any other company. As a result, if you acquire our common stock, you could lose
some or all of your investment.
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TERMS OF THE OFFERING
General
We are hereby offering a minimum of 1,043,479 and up to 1,304,348 shares of our common stock, no par
value, at a cash purchase price of $11.50 per share for an aggregate subscription of $12,000,000 to $15,000,000,
subject to the Over Subscription Option. The minimum subscription that will be accepted by the Bank is 2,174 shares
for a total price of $25,001, unless a subscription for fewer shares is approved by the board of directors in its discretion.
It is our current intention that no entity will be permitted to purchase shares that would result in that entity holding
more than 4.9% of our outstanding shares after the offering, and no individual will be permitted to purchase shares
that would result in that individual holding more than 9.9% of our outstanding shares after the offering. Both
limitations may be increased in the sole discretion of the board of directors, subject to any required regulatory
approvals.
Existing shareholders that subscribe by October , 2019 will be preferred over other subscribers. In the
event that subscriptions in excess of the maximum amount of the offering (including if the Over Subscription Option
is exercised) are received, the subscriptions of existing shareholders who subscribed during that time period will be
the last subscriptions reduced, if at all. Subscriptions of existing shareholders received after that time period will be
considered like any other subscriptions without any preference.
Applications for subscriptions to purchase shares will be received until 5:00 o’clock p.m., California time,
on 'HFember , 2019, which will be the expiration date of the offering, unless the offering is extended or terminated
earlier by the Bank at its sole discretion with or without notice to subscribers and without regard to the number of
subscriptions then received.
The Bank is not obligated to obtain or accept subscriptions for the maximum number of shares offered, and
if subscriptions for 1,043,479 or more shares are received at any time, the Bank may, in its sole discretion, terminate
this offering by accepting all or a portion of such subscriptions, as long as it accepts subscriptions for at least 1,043,479
shares. The Bank is required to sell at least 1,043,479 shares at a minimum. If the Bank does not sell at least 1,043,479
shares, all amounts paid by subscribers for shares, without interest and without any deduction for expenses, will be
returned to them.
IN DETERMINING WHICH SUBSCRIPTION OFFERS TO ACCEPT, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, THE
DIRECTORS WILL TAKE INTO ACCOUNT SHAREHOLDER STATUS, AND MAY TAKE INTO ACCOUNT
A SUBSCRIBER’S BUSINESS WITH THE BANK AND POTENTIAL TO DO BUSINESS WITH, OR TO
DIRECT CUSTOMERS TO, THE BANK, AND THE ORDER IN WHICH SUBSCRIPTION OFFERS ARE
RECEIVED.
We have been advised that all of the members of our board of directors intend to invest in this offering, with
a total investment of at least $442,564 for 38,485 shares, which on a pro forma basis, when added to shares owned by
all directors and executive officers as a group on August 30, 2019, will represent approximately 5.82% of the
outstanding shares if the minimum offering is sold and 5.44% if the maximum offering is sold. These pro forma
ownership percentages do not take into account any shares of our common stock that have been or may be issued after
August 30, 2019 pursuant to the exercise of outstanding stock options.
No discounts or commissions will be paid in connection with the sale of the shares. The offering will be made
by the Bank through its officers and directors, who will solicit subscriptions from prospective shareholders. Directors
and officers will be reimbursed for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses they may incur in connection with this offering,
including marketing events they may host.
The offering price of the shares of our common stock was determined by our board of directors. While we
consulted with our financial advisors, no independent investment banking firm has been retained to assist in the
determination of the offering price. In determining the offering price, we considered a variety of factors, including
prevailing market conditions, our historical performance, estimates regarding our business potential and earning
prospects, an assessment of our management, and these factors in relation to the market valuation of other companies
in similar businesses.
We expect to accept subscriptions for shares from time to time during this offering. However, we do not have
to notify subscribers of acceptance or rejection of their subscription until after this offering is concluded.
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We may also, in our sole discretion, close this offering by accepting all or a portion of such subscriptions in
any number after we have obtained and accepted subscriptions for the minimum offering. With the concurrence of the
California Department of Business Oversight, we may be permitted to sell up to an additional 130,435 shares, as well,
which we refer to as the “Over Subscription Option.” If this offering is oversubscribed, we intend to seek approval to
accept such subscriptions. WE SPECIFICALLY RESERVE THE RIGHT TO REJECT ANY SUBSCRIPTION IN
OUR SOLE DISCRETION.
How to Subscribe
Prospective subscribers who desire to purchase shares need to complete a Subscription Application that will
indicate the number of shares he or she is offering to purchase and submit it on a website provided by Computershare,
Inc., our subscription agent and transfer agent (the “Subscription Agent”). Alternatively, subscriptions may also be
submitted by mail. Payment must be made by wire transfer according to the instructions below, or, in the case of a
mailed Subscription Application, by check. If the subscription funds are wired to the Subscription Agent (see
instructions below), the wire must be received on or about the same date as the Subscription Application is submitted
electronically or mailed to the Subscription Agent. The Subscription Agent will inform us of the receipt of the funds
and the Subscription Application. The Bank will then inform the Subscription Agent of the Bank’s intent to reject,
accept, or accept in part, the subscription, and the Bank may notify any prospective subscriber whose Subscription
Application will be rejected, at that time. Once the minimum offering is achieved, the Bank will notify other
subscribers of acceptance, partial acceptance or rejection, or complete rejection, and if the offering continues to be
open will notify other subscribers up to the end of the offering. If any subscriptions are rejected or accepted only in
part, the Bank so notifies the Subscription Agent and the Subscription Agent then refunds the appropriate amount to
the subscriber. Funds received by the Subscription Agent will be deposited pending completion or earlier termination
of the offering.
To wire funds to the Subscription Agent, the subscriber should use the following instructions:
Wire Instructions to Computershare, Inc.
Bank Name: JPMorgan
Account Name: Computershare Inc aaf Corporate
Actions funding account
ABA Routing: 021000021
Account Number: 657579038
Ref: Endeavor/[Subscriber name]
The website address where a Subscription Application may be submitted is: www.edvrstockoffer.com. If
you have questions regarding the login process, or completion of the Subscription Application online, please contact
Danna M. Murphy at (760) 795-1254 or by email at dmurphy@bankendeavor.com.
The address of the Subscription Agent where Subscription Applications and the Subscription Price may be
sent by mail or overnight delivery service is:
Computershare
Attn Corp Actions – Suite V
150 Royall Street
Canton MA 02021
IMPORTANT: In order for a Subscription Application to be valid, the full Subscription Price specified
therein must be remitted with or at the same time the Subscription Application is submitted to the Subscription Agent,
by wire, or, in the case of a mailed Subscription Application by wire or check so that the wire or check is received on
or about the same date as the Subscription Application is submitted to the Subscription Agent. To determine the
Subscription Price, multiply the number of shares you are subscribing to purchase (as set forth in your Subscription
Application) by $11.50. The Subscription Price must be paid in United States Currency. If paid by check the check
should be made payable to “Computershare.”
The Subscription Price will be deemed to have been received by the Subscription Agent only on (i) the
clearance of any uncertified check; (ii) receipt by the Subscription Agent of any certified check; or (iii) the receipt of
collected funds in the Impound Account designated above by wire.
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Please note: Uncertified checks will take at least five business days to clear and, accordingly, subscribers
are urged to mail any uncertified checks sufficiently in advance of the Offering Expiration Date to ensure that the
Subscription Price is received and clears by no later than that date or, in the alternative, to use one of the other
methods of payment described above.
The method of delivery of the Subscription Application and the payment of the Subscription Price to the
Subscription Agent is at the election and risk of subscribers. If sent by mail, subscribers are urged to send their
Applications and payments by registered mail, properly insured, with return receipt requested.
Each Subscription Application will constitute an irrevocable offer by the subscriber to purchase the number
of Shares that he or she is subscribing to purchase, as set forth in his or her Subscription Application. The Bank
reserves the right in its sole discretion, to reject any Subscription Application, either in whole or in part. If any
Subscription Application is rejected, in whole or in part, the Bank will cause the Subscription Agent to refund to the
subscriber all of his or her Subscription Price in the case of a rejection in whole, or the portion of the Subscription
Price that represents the payment for the Shares as to which the Subscription Application is rejected, in the case of a
partial rejection and, in either instance, without interest and without any deduction for expenses. The Bank will decide
in its sole discretion which Subscription Applications to accept and whether any Subscription Applications should be
accepted only in part, subject to the preference described above for existing shareholders who subscribe by October
25, 2019.
After this offering concludes, our transfer agent will issue your shares in book entry, or uncertificated, form,
meaning that you will receive a direct registration account statement from our transfer agent reflecting ownership of
these shares. However, if your Subscription Application instructs us to issue shares to your brokerage account, as a
courtesy, our transfer agent will coordinate with your broker to effect the crediting of your shares to your brokerage
account, although this may result in a delay between the time the shares would otherwise be issued and the time they
are credited to your brokerage account. In this case, the Depository Trust Company will credit your account with your
broker.
In the event this offering is terminated prior to the receipt of Subscription Applications for 1,043,479 shares,
the minimum offering, then all subscription funds will be returned to the subscribers, without interest and without any
deduction for expenses.
Over Subscription Option
In the event the Bank receives subscriptions to purchase shares of Common Stock in an amount exceeding
in the aggregate 1,304,348 shares, we reserve the right in our discretion to accept all or a portion of such excess
subscriptions in an amount not greater than 130,435 additional shares, or 10 percent of the maximum number of shares
issuable in the offering, for a total of 1,434,783 shares, subject to all necessary regulatory approvals (the “Over
Subscription Option”).
Handling of Stock Sale Proceeds
In connection with the sale of Common Stock by the Bank, subscription funds shall be deposited in one or
more bank accounts to be maintained by Computershare in its name as agent for Company (the “Impound Account”).
Under the Bank’s agreement with the Subscription Agent (the “Impound Account Agreement”), subscription funds
will be deposited in (i) bank accounts (drawable without penalty), bank repurchase agreements, and disbursement
accounts with commercial banks with Tier 1 capital exceeding $1 billion and a Tier 1 Leverage Ratio exceeding 9.00%
and with an average rating above investment grade by S&P (LT Local Issuer Credit Rating), Moody’s (Long Term
Rating) and Fitch Ratings, Inc. (LT Issuer Default Rating) (each as reported by Bloomberg Finance L.P.),or (ii) funds
backed by obligations of, or guaranteed by, the United States of America (drawable or liquidatable without penalty).
COMPUTERSHARE, INC. IS ACTING ONLY AS A SUBSCRIPTION AGENT IN CONNECTION
WITH THIS OFFERING AND IS NOT ENDORSING OR RECOMMENDING THE PURCHASE OF ANY
SHARES IN THIS OFFERING, HAS NOT PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS
OFFERING CIRCULAR, AND IS NOT GUARANTEEING ANY OBLIGATIONS OF THE BANK TO
SUBSCRIBERS.
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USE OF PROCEEDS
If this offering is consummated, the net proceeds from the sale of the minimum offering of 1,043,479 shares
for total consideration of $12,000,000, and from the sale of the maximum offering of 1,304,348 shares for total
consideration of $15,000,000 are estimated to be approximately $11,730,000 and $14,730,000, respectively, after
giving effect to estimated expenses in connection with this offering of approximately $270,000, including, but not
limited to, legal fees of $100,000, subscription agent fees of $66,000, accounting and professional fees of $37,000,
printing and postage costs and filing fees of $17,000, and sales event and marketing costs of $50,000.
The capital raised in this offering will be used for general corporate purposes. We believe that to effectively
compete and become profitable we must continue to grow. The capital raised in this offering will facilitate that growth
in a number of ways due to the immediate increase in our capital resulting from the proceeds of this offering. The
proceeds of this offering, if the minimum and maximum shares are sold, respectively, will increase our shareholders’
equity from $18,962,563 as of June 30, 2019 to approximately $30,692,563 at the minimum offering and $33,692,563
at the maximum.
We currently exceed all minimum risk-based capital and leverage capital ratios applicable to us and are
classified as “well capitalized” under applicable definitions. See “Supervision and Regulation – Capital Standards,”
below. However, we believe it is prudent to have sufficient capital to support continued growth in the future, especially
as it is critical for us to continue to grow as a new bank. Furthermore, we desire to remain “well capitalized” under
regulatory guidelines in order to continue to pay the lowest available rates on deposit insurance premiums, among
other reasons.
The additional capital raised in this offering will result in an immediate increase in our lending limits, which
are based primarily on the amount of our capital. By increasing our lending limits, the proceeds of this offering will
also allow us to grow and compete for client relationships with larger borrowing needs. With the additional capital,
we hope to be able to both afford and attract additional bankers that will help us grow. See “Offering Circular
Summary.”
We hope that these consequences, in turn, will help us retain our existing customers and expand our customer
base. If the minimum and maximum shares are sold, respectively, our lending limits are anticipated to increase from
approximately $3,001,884 as of June 30, 2019 to approximately $4,761,384 or $5,211,384, respectively, for unsecured
loans combined to any one borrower and from approximately $5,003,141 as of June 30, 2019 to approximately
$7,935,641 or $8,685,641, respectively, for secured loans combined to any one borrower.
The following tables set forth our capitalization, capital ratios and lending limits as of June 30, 2019, adjusted
to give effect to the sale of all the minimum offering of 1,043,479 shares and the maximum offering of 1,304,348
shares. The financial information included in this section and throughout this offering circular should be read in
conjunction with our financial statements and the notes thereto which are included in this offering circular beginning
at page F-1.
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Pro Forma Capitalization (1)

Common Stock(3)
Additional Paid In Capital
Retained Earnings (Deficit)
Total Shareholders’ Equity
Shareholders’ Equity Per Share

Shareholders’ Equity
2,668,595 shares
outstanding June 30, 2019

Pro Forma (as
adjusted) assuming
1,043,479 shares
sold(2)

Pro Forma (as
adjusted) assuming
1,304,348 shares
sold(2)

$26,398,375
1,354,469
(8,790,281)
$18,962,563
$7.11

$38,128,375
1,354,469
(8,790,281)
$30,692,563
$8.27

$41,128,375
1,354,469
(8,790,281)
$33,692,563
$8.48

(1) This table is provided for illustrative purposes only. We reserve the right to sell any number of shares of our
common stock in this offering. This table does not take into account any shares of our common stock that have
been or may be issued after June 30, 2019 pursuant to the exercise of outstanding stock options.
(2) The figures shown are net of estimated expenses in connection with this offering of approximately $270,000.
(3) 20,000,000 authorized shares of common stock, no par value, 2,668,595 shares issued and outstanding as of June
30, 2019 and 3,712,074 shares and 3,972,943 to be issued and outstanding after completion of the minimum and
maximum offering, respectively, excluding any shares of our common stock that have been or may be issued after
June 30, 2019 pursuant to the exercise of outstanding stock options.
Pro Forma
Capital Ratios and Lending Limits
Pro Forma (As Adjusted)(1)
Assuming 1,304,348
Assuming 1,043,479
shares of Common
shares of Common
Stock Sold(2)
Stock Sold(2)

As of June 30,
2019
Capital Ratios:
Total Risk-based Capital (to riskweighted assets)
Tier 1 Risk-based Capital (to riskweighted assets)
Tier 1 Leverage Capital(3) (to
trailing three month average assets)
CET 1 Capital (to risk-weighted
assets)
Legal Lending Limits:
Unsecured
Secured

24.13%

38.28%

41.90%

22.87%

37.01%

40.63%

19.70%

31.89%

35.00%

22.87%

37.01%

40.63%

$3,001,884
$5,003,141

$4,761,384
$7,935,641

$5,211,384
$8,685,641

(1) This table is provided for illustrative purposes only. We reserve the right to sell any number of shares of our
common stock in this offering. This table does not take into account any shares of our common stock that have
been or may be issued pursuant to the exercise of outstanding stock options after June 30, 2019. These ratios are
calculated based on the assumption that all of the net proceeds from the offering are initially invested in overnight
deposits in an excess balance account at the Federal Reserve Bank that have a zero percent risk weighting. The
effect of deploying the net proceeds from the offering into higher risk weighted assets, including future loan
growth and the effect of recording additional loss reserves related to such loan growth has not been taken into
consideration.
(2) The figures shown are net of estimated expenses in connection with this offering of approximately $270,000.
(3) Assumes that the net proceeds of the offering were not included on the balance sheet for the three month period
ending June 30, 2019.
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DILUTION
The book value per share of our common stock as of June 30, 2019, was $7.11. The book value per share of
our common stock as of June 30, 2019, adjusted to give pro forma effect to the issuance and sale (after deducting
estimated expenses of $270,000) of the minimum of 1,043,479 shares and of the maximum of 1,304,348 shares of our
common stock would be $8.27 and $8.48, respectively. Consequently, purchasers of shares of our common stock will
experience a $3.23 per share dilution relative to our pro forma book value for each share purchased if the minimum
offering is sold, and a $3.02 per share dilution relative to our pro forma book value for each share purchased if the
maximum offering is sold. Current holders of our common stock will experience a $1.16 per share increase in pro
forma book value per share if the minimum offering is sold, or a $1.37 per share increase in pro forma book value per
share if the maximum offering is sold; however, they will also experience a dilution of voting power to the extent they
do not participate in this offering and purchase sufficient shares to maintain their ownership percentage.
The table below illustrates (i) the percentage of the outstanding shares of our common stock to be held,
respectively, by existing shareholders before this offering and by investors in the shares of our common stock offered
hereby at the minimum and maximum offerings, respectively, (ii) the difference between book value per share before
this offering and pro forma after completion of this offering at the minimum and maximum offerings, respectively,
and (iii) certain other pertinent information. The table is based on our capitalization as of June 30, 2019, and assumes
the issuance of 1,043,479 shares of our common stock in the minimum offering and 1,304,348 in the maximum
offering, but does not take into account shares of common stock that have been or may be issued upon the exercise of
options since June 30, 2019.

2,668,595

As to investors in this
offering at the
minimum offering
1,043,479

As to investors in
this offering at the
maximum offering
1,304,348

71.89%

28.11%

NA

67.17%

NA

32.83%

$7.11
N/A

N/A
$11.50

N/A
$11.50

$8.27

$8.27

N/A

$8.48

N/A

$8.48

$1.16

N/A

N/A

$1.37

N/A

N/A

N/A

$3.23

$3.02

As To Existing
Shareholders
Number of shares issued
Percentage of outstanding common stock
owned after the minimum offering,
adjusted to give pro forma effect to the
sale of shares of common stock
Percentage of outstanding common stock
owned after the maximum offering,
adjusted to give pro forma effect to the
sale of shares of common stock
Book value per share prior to this offering
Offering price per share of our common
stock
Book value per share as of June 30, 2019,
adjusted to give pro forma effect to the
sale of shares of our common stock in
the minimum offering
Book value per share as of June 30, 2019,
adjusted to give pro forma effect to the
sale of shares of our common stock in
the maximum offering
Increase in book value per share held by
existing shareholders as a result of the
minimum offering
Increase in book value per share held by
existing shareholders as a result of the
maximum offering
Excess purchase price over book value
per share as to investors in this
offering
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Our articles of incorporation authorize us to issue a total of 20,000,000 shares of common stock and
20,000,000 shares of preferred stock. See “Description of Capital Stock,” below. As of June 30, 2019, we had
2,668,595 shares of common stock issued and outstanding. We also had 800,578 shares of common stock reserved for
issuance under our Plan, of which options covering 495,666 shares have already been granted as of June 30, 2019.
After this offering, there will be up to an additional 1,043,479 shares of common stock issued and outstanding if the
minimum offering is sold, and an additional 1,304,348 shares of common stock issued and outstanding if the maximum
offering is sold. In addition, the pro forma balance of our authorized but unissued shares of common stock as of June
30, 2019, 15,487,348 shares of our common stock, if the minimum offering is sold, or 15,226,479 shares of our
common stock if the maximum offering is sold, would be available for future issuance for proper corporate purposes,
including increasing the number of shares of common stock reserved for issuance under our Plan. We are not required
to obtain your permission before we issue additional authorized shares, including shares issued pursuant to our Plan.
Consequently, any shares of our common stock that we issue in the future may reduce your proportional ownership
interest in the Bank.
In 2018 the shareholders approved the adoption of our Plan. The Plan permits the issuance of awards of up
to 30% of the outstanding shares of stock at any particular time. Our Board has the power to set the limit on awards
up to that level, but is not required to do so. The total number of awards permitted under the Plan as of June 30, 2019
was 800,578 of which 495,666 have been issued in the form of stock options to directors, officers, and employees.
We are not required to obtain your permission before we increase the number of shares of common stock reserved for
issuance under the Plan up to 30% of our issued and outstanding shares at any particular time, and we expect to do so.
Any shares of our common stock that we issue in the future pursuant to the Plan may reduce your proportional
ownership interest in the Bank. The pro forma total number of awards permitted under the Plan available for issuance
as adjusted for the effect of the minimum and maximum offering would be 1,113,621 and 1,191,882 shares,
respectively, if we increase the number of shares reserved for issuance to 30% of the outstanding shares after the
offering, not taking into account shares of common stock that have been or may be issued upon the exercise of options
since June 30, 2019Following the close of the offering, our Board’s intention is to increase the awards available
to accommodate potential issuances of stock options to certain organizers of the Bank after our third year of
operations and to attract additional bankers we need to facilitate our growth.
Once the Bank is no longer considered a de novo institution by the appropriate regulatory authorities, which
the Bank believes will be three years after the Bank opened for business and assuming no regulatory action has been
taken which would preclude the following action, it is presently the intention of the Board to grant nonqualified options
to all qualifying Bank organizers to purchase the Bank’s common stock at an exercise price equal to the fair market
value at the time of grant. All options granted to organizers will be issued in accordance with the Plan. The number
of options to be granted to organizers after the de novo period, if any, shall be determined by the Board in its discretion.
In making that determination, the Board may consider the amount of funds placed at risk by the organizer, the length
of time such funds were placed at risk, and other factors deemed relevant by the Board.
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TRADING HISTORY
Trading in our common stock has not been extensive and such trades cannot be characterized as constituting
an active trading market. Our common stock is not listed on any exchange or quoted by the Nasdaq® Stock Market
(“Nasdaq”), although it is quoted on the OTC Pink® (“OTC Pink”) under the ticker symbol “EDVR.” The OTC Pink
is a regulated quotation service that displays real-time quotes, last-sale prices and volume information in over-thecounter equity securities. Unlike the Nasdaq, however, the OTC Pink does not impose listing standards and does not
provide automated trade executions. We believe that it is unlikely that an active trading market will develop as a result
of this offering. Any investment in our common stock should be considered a long-term investment. Sale of any shares
of our common stock may not be possible, even in the event of an emergency. In addition, the price you may obtain
is unpredictable. If a large block of shares is placed for sale, this can cause the price to decline.
The following table sets forth the high and low trading prices and the trading volume of our common stock
for the periods indicated. Our common stock was first listed on the OTC Pink on June 4, 2018, and there were no
reported trades in our common stock prior to that date. Trading prices are based on information received from the
OTC Pink based on all transactions reported on the OTC Pink and do not include retail markups, markdowns or
commissions and may not reflect actual transactions.
Trading Prices
2019
Third Quarter (through 9/5/2019)
Second Quarter
First Quarter
2018
Fourth Quarter
Third Quarter
Second Quarter

Share Volume

High

Low

$10.18
$11.50
$11.95

$9.58
$9.90
$10.50

21,663
30,333
7,900

$11.05
$10.70
$11.20

$11.05
$10.70
$10.45

650
1,250
10,000

According to information provided by the OTC Pink, the most recent trade in our common stock prior
to the date of this offering circular occurred on September 5, 2019 for 100 shares at a sales price of $10.18 per
share. The “bid” and “asked” prices as of September 5, 2019 were $10.00 and $10.20, respectively.
As of June 30, 2019, we had approximately 373 shareholders of record. Although this number is
smaller than the 452 subscribers in our initial offering, we believe many of the subscribers have simply moved their
shares into “street name.” The shareholder of record number includes, as a single shareholder, CEDE & Co., as
nominee for The Depository Trust Company, representing 557,855 shares.
Our Plan, approved by the shareholders in 2018, provides for the issuance of equity incentives to
plan participants, including officers, directors, employees and organizers. The following table sets forth, as
of December 31, 2018, certain information regarding the Plan. Although the Plan permits the issuance of
various forms of equity compensation under specified conditions, as of December 31, 2018 only stock options
had been issued under the Plan. Note that as a result of this offering, our board will have the authority to
increase the shares available for issuance under the Plan to 30% of our outstanding shares. See “Dilution.”
Equity Compensation Plan Information
as of December 31, 2018
Number of securities to be
issued upon exercise of
outstanding options

Weighted-average exercise
price of outstanding options

Number of securities remaining available for
future issuance under equity compensation plans
(excluding securities reflected in column (a))

(a)

(b)

(c)

485,666

$10.00

314,912
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DIVIDENDS
To date, we have not paid any dividends. Payment of stock or cash dividends in the future will depend upon
our earnings and financial condition and other factors deemed relevant by our board of directors, as well as our legal
ability to pay dividends. During the first three years of our operations payment of a dividend would require the
approval of the DBO and FDIC. It is our current intention to follow our strategic plan of retaining any earnings to
increase capital and provide additional basis for growth. Accordingly, no assurance can be given that any dividends
will be declared in the foreseeable future and no dividends should be expected.
Holders of our common stock will be entitled to receive dividends, on a pro rata basis, as and when declared
by our board of directors, out of funds legally available for the payment of dividends and as specified and limited by
the California Financial Code. As a general matter, because the Bank has not been profitable to date and as long as it
continues to be unprofitable the Bank does not and will not have funds legally available to pay dividends. Under
Section 1132 of the California Financial Code, neither a bank nor any majority-owned subsidiary of a bank may make
any distribution to its shareholders in an amount which exceeds the lesser of a bank’s retained earnings or a bank’s
net income for its last three fiscal years (less any distributions to shareholders made during such period). Under
Section 1133 of the California Financial Code, a bank or a majority-owned subsidiary of a bank may, with the prior
approval of the Commissioner, make a distribution to its shareholders in an amount not exceeding the greater of: (a)
the bank’s retained earnings; (b) the bank’s net income for its last fiscal year; or (c) the bank’s net income for its
current fiscal year. Under Section 1134 of the California Financial Code, a bank may: (a) with the prior approval of
the Commissioner, make a distribution to its shareholders by means of redeeming its redeemable shares; and (b) with
the prior approval of the Commissioner as well as the bank’s outstanding shares, otherwise make a distribution to its
shareholders in connection with a reduction of its contributed capital.
If the DBO finds that our shareholders’ equity is not adequate or that the payment of a dividend would be
unsafe or unsound for us, the DBO may order us not to pay a dividend to our shareholders. We cannot currently pay
cash dividends because we have no retained earnings.
The FDIC also has the authority to prohibit a bank from engaging in business practices considered by the
FDIC to be unsafe or unsound. It is possible, depending upon our financial condition and other factors, that the FDIC
could assert that the payment of dividends or other payments might under some circumstances be such an unsafe or
unsound practice and thereby prohibit such payment, even if its own guidelines would otherwise be met. Certain
federal regulatory agencies also retain discretion to prohibit the payment of cash dividends in appropriate
circumstances in order to, among other things, preserve our capital base. See “Supervision and Regulation,” below.
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BUSINESS OF THE BANK
See the “Offering Circular Summary” for information on “- The Development of the Bank” and the “Reasons for the Offering.” These sections provide important information regarding our business, as do the “Risk
Factors” above.
General
The Bank is headquartered in downtown San Diego and has an administrative and loan production office in
the city of Carlsbad. The Bank’s website is www.bankendeavor.com. The Bank primarily focuses on serving the
banking needs of the small and mid-market business community throughout San Diego County.
The Bank’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Dan C. Yates, the Bank’s President, Steven D. Sefton, the Bank’s
the Bank’s Chief Credit Officer (CCO), Scott Parker, and the Bank’s Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Danna M.
Murphy, are long-time commercial bankers, each with extensive experience in similar executive management
positions with commercial banks operating in the San Diego marketplace. In addition, three of the Bank’s four
executive officers (all but the President) have prior “de novo” banking experience in San Diego County.
The board of directors believes that the Bank’s success will ultimately be built on the quality of the people
associated with the Bank – directors, officers, employees, shareholders and non-director and non-officer organizers
of the Bank. The Board also believes that the Bank’s unique business development strategy (see “Business
Development Strategy,” below) differentiates the Bank from its large bank competitors. In addition to the business
development strategy, the following is an overview of the aspects of the Bank that the Board believes are contributing
to its early success to date and expected future success.
As a community bank, the Bank directs its credit extension primarily to meet the needs of businesses rather
than toward consumer credit, where the Bank cannot compete with the large-scale operations that deliver consumer
credit at lower costs than a community bank. Small businesses, however, require special attention to their cash
management and credit requirements. This is a level of service that is often not provided by larger banks. The Bank
understands that local business owners need prompt and personalized attention to their credit and other banking service
requests. Larger banks currently serving the Bank’s market area may not view the credit needs of small businesses to
be large enough to warrant the time and attention of their senior management; accordingly, these small business
owners may be directed to less experienced staff members. The Bank fills this need by providing prompt and
personalized service to the small businesses in its market area. The Bank devotes special attention to local businesses,
recognizing that helping a small business succeed within the community is a win-win situation for the community and
the Bank. The Bank does not consider any of its product offerings to be non-traditional banking activities.
The Bank provides an array of financial services tailored to the unique needs of its customer base. The
products and services are offered by a knowledgeable and professional staff with an understanding of customers’
needs, providing the Bank with the ability to supply answers and to deliver service aimed at providing solutions. The
Bank believes that its experienced management team has the financial and managerial background to provide extensive
insight into complex financial transactions for the small to medium sized business. The Bank believes that this
expertise allows the Bank to analyze prospective clients’ credit needs and to provide appropriate banking solutions.
The Bank provides traditional business banking products and services. Loan products consist of commercial
and industrial loans and lines of credit, commercial real estate loans (including SBA 504 and 7(a) and California
Southern Small Business Development Corporation program loans and multi-family loans), and a limited amount of
loans to finance the construction of real estate projects (primarily owner occupied, with a limited number of “spec”
projects). While, in general, the Bank does not promote single family residential mortgage and other consumer loans,
including installment loans, home equity loans, and home equity lines of credit, such products are offered on a very
selective basis to accommodate the personal credit needs of the Bank’s business clients’ owners and/or employees.
We also take a security interest in single family residential property to collateralize commercial purpose loans when
warranted. Deposits are generated from the Bank’s targeted local business customers, non-profits and other
individuals. The deposit products offered by the Bank include noninterest-bearing demand deposit accounts, interestbearing checking accounts, money market accounts, regular savings, and time certificates of deposit.
The Bank offers fee-based services to its customers, including cash management and merchant banking
products and services. The Bank provides fee-based commercial Demand Deposit Account Analysis to assist
companies in the effective management of cash. The Bank supports the payment processing needs of its business
customers with remote deposit capture, wire transfer services, ACH transaction support, electronic bill payment and
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presentation, lockbox service, automatic payment deposit, automatic transfer from deposit accounts, cash and coin
ordering, cashier checks and direct and automated treasury tax processing.
Believing that direct calls by Bank staff and directors may be more effective and less costly than print media
campaigns, the Bank attempts to achieve its marketing objectives by means of direct calls, meetings with prospective
customers, organization sponsorships, management appearing as guest speakers at universities and business
organizations, and hosting events that build our brand. Personal referrals of quality customers by directors, organizers
and shareholders of the bank, we believe, also reduce the cost of attracting new customers.
We believe that a well-managed, “consultative” community bank will succeed in San Diego. Although there
is significant competition from much larger institutions as well as non-bank financial services competitors, the
following are the reasons we believe the Bank has been successful in its initial ramp-up and will be successful in the
future:
Management
9
9
9

9

Strong management team with significant in-market experience, four of which have 30 years or more
banking experience.
Experienced board of directors with solid business acumen and significant board governance experience.
The Board includes the CEO and the President, and seven outside directors who are local business
owners and business professionals.
Three of the outside directors have prior bank board/banking experience. Two of the directors, James
W. Ledwith and Joyce A. Glazer, have successfully launched “de novo” banks in San Diego. Another
San Diego based director, Christopher J. Woolley, was a founding executive officer of a “de novo” bank
with a national coverage area.
Cohesive culture: the CEO, President and many other officers and employees have worked together in
the past, eliminating some of start-up risks associated with bank culture and communication; many of
the Board members are well known to the management team.
Market Opportunity

9

9
9

9
9

With breakthrough technology and biotechnology companies and research organizations, a large defense
industry and military presence, and a strong tourism industry, the San Diego region has one of the most
diverse, dynamic economies in the country. According to information released by the U.S. Census
Bureau on April 28, 2019, as of July 1, 2018, San Diego County was ranked as the second largest county
in California and the fifth largest county in the nation with approximately 3.3 million residents. As
reported by the California Employment Development Department (“EDD”), the April 2019
unemployment rate for San Diego County stood at 3.0% compared to 3.9% and 3.3%, respectively, for
California and the U.S. San Diego County’s economic base is heavily dependent on small and mediumsized businesses (according to EDD 2017 third quarter data, 35,316 businesses in San Diego County
have between 5 and 99 employees), providing us with a market rich for potential clients.
Diversified economy of San Diego market with solid growth in population, businesses, and deposits.
The County is the second most populous in California.
Abundance of local commercial enterprises, including small to medium sized businesses and
professional concerns—more than 100,000 businesses with fewer than 100 employees in San Diego
County, according to EDD, with a growing pool of manufacturing, distribution, and service businesses
in the Bank’s target markets serving the growing “tech” industry, including biotech and cleantech
industries and smaller firms operating in the maritime industry (commonly referred to as the “Blue Tech
cluster”), the action sports industry, the craft beer industry, and other targeted industries.
Diverse economy with business and professional services representing the largest share of total
businesses in the County, over 66,000 (or close to two-thirds) of such businesses, according to EDD.
Expanding deposit base, totaling $89.5 billion as of June 2018, an 87% increase since 2008 and a 256%
gain over the last 20 years, according to data provided by the FDIC.
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Competitive Factors
9

9
9
9
9
9

Attractive competitive environment as recent acquisitions have significantly reduced the number of San
Diego based community banks. Based on data provided by the FDIC, as of year-end 2018 there were
only ten such banks (including the Bank), versus the peak of 48 in the 1980’s and the near term high of
31 in 2004.
Prior to the establishment of the Bank, the last bank headquartered in the County opened in 2008.
19 San Diego County based banks have merged or otherwise been acquired since 2008 creating a void
in the provision of community banking services.
The County’s deposits per branch averaged $151,700,000 in 2018, up 200% from 1998, (based on data
provided by the FDIC’s Deposit Market Share Reports).
Large commercial banks continue to dominate the County’s deposit market share with the top five
institutions holding 72% of total deposits in the market. The Board believes that this concentration
provides an opportunity for a locally-based service oriented bank to capture market share.
Most competitors are larger institutions and are not as focused, if focused at all, on delivering
relationship-based products and services with the added value of a business advisory approach. They
look to compete more on transaction terms, conditions, and pricing to win and retain business whereas
the Bank will focus on developing business advisory relationships to differentiate its value proposition.
Competition

Major banks dominate the commercial banking industry in California and, more specifically, in the Bank’s
intended primary service area, the San Diego metropolitan area. By virtue of their greater capital, such institutions
have substantially greater lending limits than the Bank and may be able to perform certain functions for their
customers, including trust services, investment services and international banking, which the Bank is not be equipped
to offer directly (although the Bank offers some of these services through its correspondent bank). In addition to
commercial banks, the Bank competes with other traditional and nontraditional financial institutions and investment
companies, such as savings and loan associations, credit unions, stock brokerage firms, insurance companies and
money market and other mutual funds, in obtaining deposits, making loans and providing other financial services.
Based on loan composition data provided by S&P Global Market Intelligence (“MI”), of the ten locally based
banks currently serving the San Diego County (other than the Bank), eight have lending focuses or business models
that are different than those undertaken by the Bank. They are Balboa Thrift & Loan, Home Bank of California,
Neighborhood National Bank, Seacoast Commerce Bank, Silvergate Bank, Hatch Bank (formerly Rancho Santa Fe
Thrift & Loan), C3bank, National Association (formerly First National Bank of Southern California) and Axos Bank
(formerly BoI Federal Bank).
Even though, based on US Census information, the city of San Diego was the nation’s eighth most populous
city as of July 1, 2018, with a growing population (ranked eight among cities with the largest numeric increase between
July 1, 2017, and July 1, 2018, with populations of 50,000 or more on July 1, 2017) and an expanding economy (as
indicated by growing employment and low unemployment rate according to the EDD), the number of commercial
banks headquartered in the city has declined steadily over the past ten years and is now proportionally very small
compared to other metropolitan areas. San Diego County is the fifth largest in the US and currently has only ten
commercial banks headquartered in the County, compared to 40 and 18 such banks in Los Angeles County and Orange
County, respectively.
The city and county of San Diego have historically had a number of highly successful locally-based
commercial banks, well supported by the business community. Over time, as a result of their success, many of these
banks were acquired by larger, out-of-area financial institutions. The M&A ebb and flow has resulted in a relatively
limited number of financial institutions today, especially for a county and city with populations of 3.3 million and 1.4
million, respectively.
Based on information provided by the FDIC, of the ten locally based banks currently serving the San Diego
County, there are only five locally-based commercial banks in the City of San Diego (including the Bank), a significant
decline from near term highs of 31 commercial banks in the County (2004) and 15 commercial banks in the city of
San Diego (2008).
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This reduction in the number of banks is in sharp contrast to the County’s economic growth. Based on the
data provided by the EDD referenced above, the number of businesses in the County have been growing relatively
steadily over the ten year period between 2007 and 2017 (18,300 or a 20% growth rate).
While the County continues to experience strong growth in the number of businesses and deposits, as stated
previously, the number of local banks has dropped significantly primarily due to merger and acquisition activities.
More specifically, the number of local banks has dropped from a near term high of 31 in 2004 to only ten currently
(including the Bank), a 68% reduction.
Based on data provided by the FDIC, since 2008, total deposits in San Diego County have increased by 87%
to nearly $89.5 billion as of June 2018. With a reduced number of local banks, the deposit market has become very
concentrated among larger out-of-area financial institutions. Deposits at the top five institutions have grown by 111%
from $30.5 billion or 63.8% of total as of June 2008 to $64.3 billion, or 71.8% of the total market as of June 2018.
Overall, the decline in the number local banks is in sharp contrast to the population and economic growth
experienced by the County over the last decade. As a result, the Bank believes there is significant opportunity to
capture local market share, despite the competition from major banks and other financial services providers.
We believe that, in addition to the historic support of locally based banks, the confluence of the economic
rebound, continued deposit growth, and the reduction in the number of locally-based banks provides an excellent
opportunity for the successful establishment, by a competent, experienced, and well-connected board of directors and
management team, of a “high touch” business bank with a consultative focused and proven marketing strategy.
Business Development Strategy
The Bank provides a broad range of traditional banking services, using our Consultative Banking approach,
with a strong commitment toward supporting the credit needs of small and medium-sized businesses and business
service professionals. Deposit relationships are a key component of as many lending relationships as possible. Many
of the prospective customers of the Bank are known to the management team from previous banking assignments.
The Bank’s customer and prospect base is built upon the contacts of clients, management, the board of directors and
shareholders.
It is management’s experience that the success of a community business bank typically does not come at the
expense of competing directly against other community banks. Most of the success comes from competing against
the largest money center banks and regional banks that are headquartered outside the Bank’s market area but have
branches in the Bank’s market area. It is those two categories of banks that have most of the market share. The San
Diego market is large in both geographic size and in potential bank customers. Community banking clients usually
are attracted through the personal relationships/business development activities of the management team, organizers
and board of directors.
The marketing model focuses on the generation of comprehensive banking relationships with customers,
including business deposit, cash management services, and use of credit lines. The Bank is responsive to the fullservice credit needs of its business customers, offering C&I loans, including credit for working capital, equipment
financing, and commercial real estate loans. Commercial loans and owner occupied commercial real estate loans
account for, are and are expected to continue to account for, a significant portion of the Bank’s loan portfolio. The
Bank also provides access to SBA 7(a) and 504 related lending products and California Southern Small Business
Development Corporation loan programs, primarily in San Diego County. The CEO, President, and several board
members have long histories of active engagement in non-profit entities in San Diego. The Bank seeks to serve this
market by leveraging its relationships to provide deposit and loan products to qualified non-profit organizations.
The Bank uses a Consultative Banking strategy successfully implemented by the CEO and the President
throughout their careers in San Diego and elsewhere in southern California. This business model is similar to that
implemented by prior successful community banks in southern California. The model creates a bond between the
client and the bankers – the Bank becomes a trusted advisor to the client for its banking needs as well as other strategic
plans.
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Dan C. Yates, the CEO, and Steven D. Sefton, the President, have had successful track records of recruiting
skilled bankers and mentoring bankers in order to further enhance their credit, business development, and consultative
skills. The end goal will be to maximize their effectiveness and results as measured by:
1)

Developing quality new business relationships,

2)

Maximizing the profitability of those relationships,

3)

Creating above average client retention levels,

4)

Minimizing credit losses by understanding the clients’ business at a far deeper, more sophisticated
level than what is the industry norm and then helping clients to thrive by overcoming challenges
and seizing upon opportunities, and

5)

Establishing a culture where business is neither won nor lost based on pricing, underwriting, or
“buying or renting the business until another bank undercuts the deal” - or what some refer to as
more of a transactional strategy to grow a bank. Instead the Bank’s approach will be focused on
building deeper relationships with clients where they come to rely upon the Bank as a key business
advisor rather than just a vendor of loans and bank products/services.

The mentoring typically takes many forms from player-coach training on business calls to developing sales
and marketing strategies using a variety of marketing and underwriting tools. Tools such as customized business
development templates, software such as Ibisworld (which provides key industry specific questions to ask a client for
underwriting and business development advisory purposes), and business development networking events
demonstrating industry subject matter expertise by inviting key business authors, and other speakers, to talk to clients
and prospects.
Each banker creates a unique personal business development-marketing plan that emphasizes business
advisory techniques working under the mentorship of the CEO and the President. This approach has historically
resulted in the development of highly profitable C&I relationships throughout the CEO’s and the President’s careers
with consistent results. The personal marketing plans enable each of the Bank officers to target firms where they have
some industry niche expertise, and, where they have a deep bench of professional referral sources connected to the
niche. The bankers are then expected to use best practice types of questions, ideas and suggestions drawn from their
knowledge of the niche industry to help identify credit/business risks associated with a prospective Bank client (this
is done during the initial underwriting process as well as on an ongoing basis) to assist the business owner with advice
and guidance, key networking introductions, identifying opportunities, and solving business issues that challenge the
business owner. Taken together, this all serves to add value in ways that are not typically available when dealing with
larger banks.
The overall strategy involves coaching the team on how to use a consultative business advisory strategy to
compete against banks that use less sophisticated marketing approaches (transactional banking, for example) in order
to source and retain business. This style of business development often represents a cultural shift for many seasoned
and junior bankers but once they embrace it the results are impressive.
To be most effective, the bankers deploying this strategy need to have highly developed credit skills, coupled
with well-honed business development instincts in order to assist clients in identifying the key business and industry
risks they are facing, which helps the client and the Bank both by ensuring that the client’s business thrives as a result
of the banker’s feedback, and, in turn, the Bank benefits from the resulting reduction in problem credits, which goes
hand in hand with businesses that are successful.
The Bank intends to continue recruiting relationship managers with proven business generation capabilities,
in-market experience and strong credit skills. These individuals will deploy their knowledge of and connections with
the market area to help achieve the forecast volumes for both loans and deposits. Mr. Yates and Mr. Sefton will further
hone their skills with targeted credit and business development training both in the Bank and as “player coaches.”
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While the Bank faces competition from various participants in the banking and financial services industries,
we believe that the following are the key drivers of the Bank’s success:
1)

Overall economic diversity and strength of the San Diego market,

2)

Significant reduction in locally owned community business banks in San Diego County,

3)

Ties of directors, organizers, advisory committee members and management to the business
community,

4)

Management’s start-up banking experience in San Diego,

5)

Management’s demonstrated experience in customer generation and retention in the Bank’s target
market, and

6)

Provision of professional, service-oriented commercial banking products and services.
Premises

Our target market focus is on businesses located in the San Diego County metropolitan marketplace and its
surrounding areas. In order to serve the customers in our target market, we operate from two locations, as follows:
Downtown San Diego Lease
We lease our headquarters office located at 750 B Street, Suite 3110, in the City of San Diego, San Diego
County, California. The building is commonly known as Symphony Towers and is one of Downtown San Diego’s
best located office towers, in the epicenter of San Diego’s Financial District, with easy access to the 5, 163 and 94
freeways and only minutes to the historic Gaslamp Quarter East Village, Little Italy and Horton Plaza, featuring
premium shopping, dining and entertainment. The landlord is Symphony Towers LLC. We occupy approximately
4,180 rentable square feet in Suite 3110 on the 31st floor of this 34-story building. The lease commenced on August
1, 2017, and was originally entered into by CBB Venture Group, LLC (the “LLC”), formed by the organizers of the
Bank to facilitate the organization of the Bank and, upon the inception of business on January 22, 2018, we assumed
the lease from the LLC. We invested $112,541 in leasehold improvements. The term of the lease extends through
July 31, 2022, with one (1) option to extend the term for an additional five (5) years at the higher of then-current
market rates and the base rent for the month preceding the renewal.
We currently pay monthly base rent of $12,665 per month, increasing by approximately four and one-half
percent (4.5%) on each August 1. To the extent that certain operating expenses of the landlord exceed a base year
threshold amount as defined in the lease, we also pay our pro-rata share of such operating expenses of the landlord,
primarily for property taxes and all other expenses pertaining to the operation, management, maintenance, and repair
of the building and all appurtenant common areas as additional rent, currently amounting to $573 per month.
Additionally, pursuant to the terms of the lease, we are also required to pay our pro-rata share of the “Symphony
Contribution” that the landlord is required to pay to the San Diego Symphony Orchestra Association pursuant to an
underlying easement agreement, currently amounting to $158 per month, and subject to future adjustment based on
changes in the Consumer Price Index as published by the United Sates Department of Labor. The following sets forth
the base rent for each year, with each year commencing on August 1 of that year:
Year
1**
2
3
4
5

Monthly Lease Payment
$12,122
$12,665
$13,251
$13,836
$14,463

** Monthly base rent for months 2 and 3 in Year-1 (i.e., the two month period from September 1, 2017
through October 31, 2017 ) was abated pursuant to the terms of the lease.

32

Existing Carlsbad Lease
The LLC also entered in a sublease with California Business Bank for 5,369 rentable square feet at 6183
Paseo del Norte, Suites 260 and 270, Carlsbad, California 92011, for our administrative and loan production office,
commencing on April 25, 2017. We assumed the sublease at the inception of business on January 22, 2018. We
invested $86,759 in leasehold improvements. The term of this sublease will expire coterminous with the master lease
on October 31, 2019 (the “Carlsbad Lease”), at which time, subject to certain conditions, we will have one (1) option
to convert the sublease to a direct lease with the landlord and extend its term for an additional sixty (60) months.
We currently pay monthly base rent of $11,962 per month. To the extent that certain operating expenses of
the master lessor exceed a base year threshold amount as defined in the sublease, we are also required pay our prorata share of such operating expenses of the master lessor, primarily for property taxes and all other expenses
pertaining to the operation, management, maintenance, and repair of the building and all appurtenant common areas
as additional rent. There are currently no payment amounts due pursuant to this sublease provision.
We decided not to exercise our option to convert and extend. In October 2018 the ownership of the building
changed and the new owner expressed an intention to convert the building to “medical usage.” In our view, that usage
of the building would be largely inconsistent, for several reasons, with our anticipated uses for the office. In addition,
we believe that this change in occupancy would result in higher rents at some point should we remain in the building.
For these reasons, we decided to seek alternative space in Carlsbad, and we have entered into a new lease, described
more fully below under “New Carlsbad Lease.”
New Carlsbad Lease
As a result of our decision not to convert and extend the Carlsbad lease, we searched for and found other
space more appropriate to our business. On April 18, 2019, we entered into a new lease of approximately 5,774
rentable square feet at 703 Palomar Airport Road, Suite 165, Carlsbad, California 92011, where we plan to relocate
our administrative and loan production office. The landlord is Brookwood Pacific Office I, LLC and Brookwood
Pacific Office II, LLC. We anticipate that the tenant improvement allowance provided by the landlord will be
sufficient for the construction of our leasehold improvements. However, certain leasehold improvement costs,
primarily data line and communications cabling costs, will be incurred that are outside the scope of the tenant
improvement allowance, which we currently estimate will be approximately $25,000. The lease is expected to
commence on November 1, 2019. The term of the lease extends through January 31, 2027, with one (1) option to
extend the term for an additional five (5) years. The following sets forth the base rent for each year, with the first year
commencing on the expected commencement date of the lease, and each successive year on the anniversary date of
the commencement date of the lease, currently expected to be November 1 of that year:
Year
1**
2**
3
4
5
6
7
8 (3 months)

Monthly Lease Payment
$15,590
$16,052
$16,514
$17,033
$17,553
$18,073
$18,592
$19,170

** Monthly base rent for months 2 through 15 in Years 1 and 2 (i.e., the 14 month period expected to be
from December 1, 2019 through January 31, 2020) will be 50% abated pursuant to the terms of the lease.
In addition to our monthly lease payments, to the extent that certain operating expenses of the landlord exceed
a 2020 calendar base year threshold amount as defined in the lease, we will also pay our pro-rata share of such
operating expenses of the landlord, primarily for property taxes and all other expenses pertaining to the operation,
management, maintenance, and repair of the building and all appurtenant common areas as additional rent. The
amount of such payments, if any, is dependent upon future events and cannot be estimated at this time.
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Additional Branches and Expansion Plans
At this time, there are no specific plans to open additional branches or offices. However, if this offering is
successful, we expect to add experienced bankers to our team. These additions, coupled with the growth of the Bank,
are likely to require that we add adjacent space to our existing leaseholds or add an additional office in 2020. At this
time we do not anticipate adding any other additional offices or branches.
The Bank seeks to grow organically and does not intend to grow through mergers and acquisitions during the
initial years of operations.
Employees
On June 30, 2019, we had 25 full time employees. Our employees are not represented by any union or other
collective bargaining agreement, and we consider our relations with our employees to be excellent. If this offering is
successful we expect to hire additional employees.
Litigation
In the ordinary course of business, we may be subject to claims, counter actions and other litigation of a nonmaterial nature that are typical in the business of banking. To the best of our knowledge, we are not currently a party
to any pending legal or administrative proceedings and no such proceedings are contemplated.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The following selected financial data with respect to our statement of financial condition as of December 31,
2018 and our statement of operations for the period January 22, 2018 (Inception of Business) through December 31,
2018 have been derived from the audited financial statements included in this offering circular beginning at page F-1.
This information should be read in conjunction with such financial statements and the notes thereto. The summary
financial data with respect to our statements of financial condition as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 and our statements
of operations for the six month period ended June 30, 2019 and the period January 22, 2018 (Inception of Business)
through June 30, 2018 are unaudited and have been derived from our books and records. This information should be
read in conjunction with our condensed financial statements and the notes thereto which are included in this offering
circular beginning at page F-7. See also “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations,” below.
At or For Period Ended June 30,(1)
2019
Summary of Operations:
Interest Income
Interest Expense
Net Interest Income
Provision for Loan Losses
Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses
Noninterest Income
Noninterest Expense
Loss Before Income Taxes
Income Taxes
Net Loss

$ 2,063,424
458,712
1,604,712
383,000
1,221,712
26,312
3,137,573
(1,889,549)
(800)
$(1,890,349)

2018

At or For
the Period Ended
December 31, 2018(1)

$ 280,021
39,461
240,560
206,000
34,560
773
2,445,217
(2,409,884)
(800)
$(2,410,684)

$ 1,627,009
325,434
1,301,575
667,000
634,575
9,220
5,490,641
(4,846,846)
(800)
$ (4,847,646)

Share Data:
Loss per Share – Basic
Loss per Share – Diluted
Book Value per Share
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding – Basic
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding – Diluted

$(0.71)
$(0.71)
$ 7.11
2,668,595
2,668,595

$(0.90)
$(0.90)
$ 8.40
2,668,595
2,668,595

$(1.82)
$(1.82)
$ 7.70
2,668,595
2,668,595

Balance Sheet Summary:
Total Assets
Investment Securities
Loans, net of Deferred Fees and Costs
Allowance for Loan Losses (“ALL”)
Total Deposits
Total Shareholders’ Equity

$105,504,607
0
66,061,451
1,050,000
85,389,385
18,962,563

$50,253,058
0
13,263,257
206,000
26,811,286
22,417,918

$87,240,460
0
43,436,054
667,000
65,779,533
20,552,110

Selected Ratios(2):
Return on Average Assets
Return on Average Shareholders’ Equity
Net Interest Margin
ALL to Loans, net of Deferred Fees and Costs
ALL to Non-performing Loans
Loans, net of Deferred Fees and Costs to Deposits
Shareholders’ Equity to Assets
Shareholders’ Equity to Deposits
Total Risk Based Capital Ratio
Tier 1 Risk Based Capital Ratio
CET 1 Risk Based Capital Ratio
Tier 1 Leverage Capital Ratio
Tangible Equity to Total Assets

( 4.18%)
(19.22%)
3.61%
1.59%
n/a
77.36%
17.97%
22.21%
24.13%
22.87%
22.87%
19.70%
17.97%

(15.92%)
(23.38%)
1.69%
1.55%
n/a
49.47%
44.61%
83.61%
131.16%
129.91%
129.91%
55.34%
44.61%

( 9.82%)
(22.95%)
2.74%
1.54%
n/a
66.03%
23.56%
31.24%
38.93%
37.68%
37.68%
25.64%
23.56%

(1) The period ending June 30, 2018 and the period ending December 31, 2018 commenced on January 22, 2018, at inception of
the Bank.
(2) Ratios and yields for the short operating period have been annualized where applicable.

35

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Introduction
The following discussion is designed to provide a better understanding of our financial condition, results of
operations, liquidity, capital resources and interest rate sensitivity. It is principally derived from our audited financial
statements and notes thereto for the period from January 22, 2018 (the inception of our business) through December
31, 2018, which are included in this offering circular beginning at page F-1. This discussion and analysis of financial
condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements, the notes thereto,
Selected Financial Data and other financial information appearing in this offering circular. The financial data with
respect to our statements of financial condition as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 and our statements of operations for the
six month period ended June 30, 2019 and the period January 22, 2018 (Inception of Business) through June 30, 2018
are unaudited and have been derived from our books and records and should be read in conjunction with our condensed
financial statements and notes thereto which are included in this offering circular beginning at page F-25.
This discussion also contains a number of “forward-looking” statements. These are statements stating or
implying that events will occur or actions will be taken in the future. Here and elsewhere in this offering circular you
should understand that the matters described in the “Risk Factors” section, above, could cause these statements to be
untrue. As a general matter, you should understand that although we anticipate that our continued growth will enhance
the results of our operations, our future results of operations could materially differ from those suggested in the
following discussion as a result of the “Risk Factors” identified above.
Overview
We began operations on January 22, 2018 and, as is common in the community banking industry, we incurred
and continue to incur operating losses during our initial operating period. During this period, our focus has been on
establishing an infrastructure, developing and expanding our customer relationships, deploying our capital to develop
a well diversified core deposit funding base, and growing our balance sheet to achieve the asset level and composition
necessary to become profitable. Accordingly, financial information for the period ended December 31, 2018 relates
to the approximately eleven-month operating period from January 22, 2018 through December 31, 2018. Net loss in
2018 was $4,847,646. The fully diluted per share loss in 2018 was $1.82. Our 2018 loss was primarily due to employee
compensation, ongoing occupancy and operating expenses, expensing of stock options granted to directors, officers,
and employees of the Bank, and marketing activities – while over the same span of time, average loan and deposit
balances were insufficient to generate a level of net interest income to cover these non-interest expenses.
Net loss for the six months ended June 30, 2019 was $1,890,349, or $0.71 per diluted share compared to a
loss of $2,410,684, or $0.90 per diluted share for the period from January 22, 2018 through June 30, 2018. We do not
believe the comparisons of these two periods are meaningful. The following table sets forth several key operating
ratios:

Return on Average Assets
Return on Average Equity
Average Shareholders’ Equity to Average
Total Assets

For Period Ended
June 30,(1)
2019
2018
(4.18%)
(15.92%)
(19.22%)
(23.38%)
21.72%

68.10%

At or For
the Period Ended
December 31, 2018(1)
(9.82%)
(22.95%)
42.81%

(1)
The period ending June 30, 2018 and the period ending December 31, 2018 commenced on January 22,
2018, at inception of the Bank. Ratios and yields for the short operating period have been annualized where
applicable.
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Statement of Condition Summary
Our assets at June 30, 2019 were $105,504,607; an increase of $18,264,147 compared to $87,240,460 at
December 31, 2018. This increase in assets was centered primarily in loans, which increased $22,625,397, net of a
decrease in cash and cash equivalents of $3,854,925. This net increase in assets was funded by deposits, which
increased $19,609,852 to $85,389,385 at June 30, 2019 compared to $65,779,533 at December 31, 2018. Included in
the $22,625,397 of total loan growth, commercial real estate loans, commercial loans and loans secured by residential
properties were responsible for $5,061,719,$8,232,695 and $6,348,938 of this growth, respectively. Included in the
$19,609,852 of overall net deposit growth, non-interest bearing demand deposits, and time deposits increased
$16,691,346 and $2,534,214, respectively.
Our assets at December 31, 2018 were $87,240,460, compared to zero when the Bank opened for business
on January 22, 2018. This increase in assets was centered primarily in loans, which increased $43,436,054, and cash
and cash equivalents, which increased $42,597,644. This increase in assets was funded by the net proceeds from the
initial capitalization of the Bank of $26,398,375, and deposits of $65,779,533, compared to zero when the Bank opened
for business on January 22, 2018. Included in the $43,436,054 of total loan growth, commercial real estate loans,
commercial loans and loans secured by residential properties were responsible for $17,355,051, $11,742,854 and
$9,550,271 of this growth, respectively. Included in the $65,779,533 of deposit growth, interest bearing non-maturity
deposits primarily comprised of money market accounts, non-interest bearing demand deposits, and time deposits
were responsible for $32,742,722, $18,964,795, and $14,072,016, respectively.
Net Interest Income
A significant component of our earnings is net interest income. Net interest income is the difference between
the interest we earn on our loans and investments and the interest we pay on deposits and other interest-bearing
liabilities.
Our net interest income is affected by changes in the amount and mix of our interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities, referred to as a “volume change.” It is also affected by changes in the yields we earn on
our interest-earning assets and the rates we pay on our interest-bearing deposits and other borrowed funds, referred to
as a “rate change.”
The short operating period in 2018 (a little over 11 months) and lack of a prior year for comparison means it
is not practical or meaningful to prepare a summary of “changes” in these categories.
Comparison of Six Months Ended June 30, 2019 and period from January 22, 2018 through June 30, 2018
Net interest income for the six months ended June 30, 2019 was $1,604,712 compared to the $240,560
reported during the period from January 22, 2018 through June 30, 2018. This significant increase is a result of
significant average earning asset growth between the periods, due primarily to the fact that the Bank opened for
business in January 22, 2018 and thus commenced the 2018 period, which was shorter than the 2019 period, with no
interest earning assets at all. The net yield on average interest earning assets, or the net interest margin, increased to
3.61% in 2019 as compared to 1.69% in 2018. This increase was due primarily to our increase in average loans
outstanding accompanied by an increase in interest and noninterest-bearing deposits during 2019 and, to a lesser
extent, our overall asset sensitive position during a period of rising interest rates.
Interest income for the six months ended June 30, 2019 was $2,063,424 as compared to $280,021 during the
period from January 22, 2018 through June 30, 2018. Our yield on total average interest-earning assets in 2019 was
4.64% compared to 1.97% in 2018.
During 2019 our average interest earning assets increased to $89,646,615 for the six months ended June 30,
2019 as compared to $32,425,461 during the period from January 22, 2018 through June 30, 2018. This increase in
average interest earning assets was primarily centered in average loans, which increased $52,945,163 to $55,496,549
for the six months ended June 30, 2019 as compared to $2,551,386 during the period from January 22, 2018 through
June 30, 2018. Also contributing to the overall increase in average earning assets between the periods, although to a
much lesser extent, were average interest bearing deposits at other banks, primarily overnight balances in an excess
balance account at the Federal Reserve Bank, which increased $4,152,507 to $34,026,582 for the six months ended
June 30, 2019 as compared to $29,874,075 during the period from January 22, 2018 through June 30, 2018. Again,
the June 30, 2018 average earning assets were low in part due to the fact that the Bank started with none on the day it
opened on January 22, 2018.
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Interest expense also increased significantly from $39,461 in 2018 to $458,712 in 2019. This increase in
interest expense was primarily the result of increased average interest bearing deposits to fund the asset growth
discussed above, and due to the fact that the Bank started with no interest-bearing deposits on January 22, 2018. Our
average cost was 2.02% on all interest-bearing liabilities in 2019 as compared to 1.51% in 2018. The increase in our
average cost was primarily due to the increase in average interest bearing deposits, as the Bank has continued to grow,
and also to increased average interest rates paid on premium rate money market accounts and promotional time
deposits.
Description of Period Ended December 31, 2018
Net interest income for the period from January 22, 2018 through December 31, 2018 was $1,301,575.
During the 2018 period, as the Bank’s business ramped up, it took on deposits, added loans, and began to earn net
interest income.
Interest income for the period from January 22, 2018 through December 31, 2018 was $1,627,009 resulting
in an average yield on total interest-earning assets of 3.43%. This interest income was generated from average interestearning assets of $50,366,019, comprised primarily of $18,685,856 in average loans and $31,667,802 in average
interest bearing deposits at other banks, primarily overnight balances in an excess balance account at the Federal
Reserve Bank.
Interest expense also increased significantly in the period from January 22, 2018 through December 31, 2018
as we increased deposits to fund the asset growth discussed above. During 2018, in conjunction with our business
development initiatives, we offered a variety of premium rate money market account products and promotional time
deposits within our targeted market segments. Interest expense was $325,434 in 2018 resulting in an average cost of
1.80% on all interest-bearing liabilities. Average interest-bearing liabilities increased from zero to $19,221,219
comprised of $393,932 collectively in interest bearing demand, NOW, and savings accounts, $15,271,179 in money
market accounts, and $3,556,108 in time deposits.
Distribution of Assets, Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
The following tables present, for the periods indicated, the distribution of average assets, liabilities and
shareholders’ equity, as well as the total dollar amounts of interest income from average interest-earning assets and
the resultant yields, and the dollar amounts of interest expense and average interest-bearing liabilities, expressed both
in dollars and in rates.
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Analysis of Average Rates and Balances
For the Period January 1, 2019
through June 30, 2019(1)
Average
Interest
Average
Balance
Earned or
Yield or
Paid
Rate
Paid
Assets
Interest-Earning Assets:
Investment Securities
Interest Bearing Deposits
Federal Funds Sold
Loans, net of Deferred
Fees and Costs
Other
Total Interest-Earning
Assets
Noninterest-Earning Assets
Cash and Due from Banks
Premises and Equipment
Operating Lease Right-ofUse Assets
Other Real Estate Owned
Accrued Interest and
Other Assets
Allowance for Loan
Losses
Total Assets
Liabilities and Shareholders’
Equity
Interest-Bearing Liabilities:
Interest-Bearing Demand,
NOW, and Savings
Deposits s
Money Market Deposits
Time Deposits under
$100,000
Time Deposits of
$100,000 or More
Total Interest-Bearing
Liabilities
Noninterest-Bearing Liabilities:
Demand Deposits
Operating Lease
Liabilities
Accrued Interest and
Other Liabilities
Shareholders’ Equity
Total Liabilities and
Shareholders’ Equity
Net Interest Income
Net Yield on Interest Earning
Assets

$
0
34,026,582
0

0
393,952
0

n/a
2.33%
n/a

$
0
29,874,075
0

55,496,549
123,484

1,667,326
2,146

6.06%
3.50%

2,551,386
0

65,000
0

n/a

$89,646,615

$2,063,424

4.64%

$32,425,461

$280,021

1.97%

$

$

For the Period January 22, 2018
through June 30, 2018(1)
Average
Interest
Average
Yield or
Balance
Earned or
Paid
Rate
Paid

933,625
340,598

$

580,497
0

$

0
215,021
0

n/a
1.64%
n/a
5.81%

604,539
470,362
682,454
0
391,362

642,256
(27,669)

(851,160)
$91,292,431

$34,546,509

$ 580,104
29,459,683

$
624
249,882

0.22%
1.71%

$ 189,783
5,637,996

1,238,502

16,146

2.63%

14,610,928

192,060

2.65%

$45,889,217

$458,712

2.02%

140
39,078

0.17%
1.58%

15,095

126

1.90%

105,028

117

0.25%

$5,947,902

$ 39,461

1.51%

$24,536,552

$ 4,006,982

595,812

686,557

441,108
19,829,742

380,325
23,524,743

$91,292,431

$34,546,509

$

$240,560

$1,604,712
3.61%

(1) Average yields and rates paid for the short operating period in 2018 have been annualized where applicable.
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1.69%

Analysis of Average Rates and Balances

Average
Balance
Assets
Interest-Earning Assets:
Investment Securities
Interest Bearing Deposits
Federal Funds Sold
Loans, net of Deferred Fees and Costs
Other
Total Interest-Earning Assets

For the Period January 22, 2018
through December 31, 2018(1)
Interest Earned
Average Yield
or Paid
or Rate Paid

$

0
31,667,802
0
18,685,856
12,361
$50,366,019

Noninterest-Earning Assets
Cash and Due from Banks
Premises and Equipment
Operating Lease Right-of-Use Assets
Other Real Estate Owned
Accrued Interest and Other Assets
Allowance for Loan Losses
Total Assets

$

0
567,013
0
1,059,996
0
$1,627,009

–
1.90%
–
6.02%
0.00%
3.43%

$

698

0.19%

$

237,314
8,368
79,054
325,434

1.65%
2.56%
2.61%
1.80%

$

673,508
444,205
703,790
0
453,140
(274,520)
$52,366,142

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Interest-Bearing Liabilities:
Interest-Bearing Demand, NOW, and Savings
Deposits
Money Market Deposits
Time Deposits under $100,000
Time Deposits of $100,000 or More
Total Interest-Bearing Liabilities

$

393,932

15,271,179
346,369
3,209,739
$19,221,219

Noninterest-Bearing Liabilities:
Demand Deposits
Operating Lease Liabilities
Accrued Interest and Other Liabilities
Shareholders’ Equity
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Net Interest Income
Net Yield on Interest Earning Assets

9,712,577
711,427
304,946
22,415,973
$52,366,142
$1,301,575
2.74%

(1) Average yields and rates paid for the short operating period in 2018 have been annualized where applicable.
Loan Portfolio and Lending Activities
Total loans increased from zero at January 22, 2018 to $43,436,054 at December 31, 2018 and $66,061,451
at June 30, 2019. Our lending focus is on small and medium-sized businesses and their owners. We offer a variety of
commercial and real estate lending products including term loans, lines of credit, and construction loans. With our
primary focus on business lending, we offer a broad range of short to medium term commercial loans and lines of
credit, primarily collateralized, to businesses for working capital (including inventory and receivables), business
expansion (including acquisitions of real estate and improvements) and the purchase of equipment and machinery.
Loan approval authority is set by our board of directors. Our lending officers, in conjunction with our Chief
Executive Officer and President or our Chief Credit Officer, are delegated combined lending authority to approve
certain types of loans in certain amounts. Loans that exceed the scope of authority delegated to our officers are
approved by either a management loan committee or a board level loan committee, each as established by our board
of directors, or by the full board of directors if the loan exceeds the scope of authority delegated to the loan committee.
From time to time our board of directors has approved loans exceeding the scope of authority delegated to the loan
committee.
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Commercial Loans
Commercial Loans totaled $11,742,854 and 19,975,549 and comprised 27.0% and 30.2% of the total loan
portfolio at December 31, 2018 and June 30, 2019, respectively. Under our current loan policy, commercial loans are
to represent 30.0% to 40.0% of our total loan portfolio. We expect this percentage will increase over time to the levels
set in our loan policy through the overall growth, maturity, and further diversification of our loan portfolio. Our
commercial loans are primarily made for the purpose of providing working capital, financing the purchase of
equipment or for other business purposes. Such loans include revolving lines of credit and other short-term loans with
maturities ranging from one to two years, and term loans which are loans with maturities normally ranging from one
to several years. Revolving lines of credit are generally intended to finance current transactions and typically provide
for periodic principal advances and pay downs, with interest payable monthly, and the balance due at maturity. Term
loans normally provide for either floating or fixed interest rates, with monthly payments of both principal and interest
in an amount sufficient to fully amortize the loan over its contractual term.
Generally, our commercial loans are underwritten on the basis of the borrower’s ability to service such debt
from identified cash flow. We usually take as collateral a lien on accounts receivable, equipment, other business assets,
and occasionally real estate, and we obtain a personal guaranty of the business principals. We also selectively make
loans for commercial purposes that are secured by residential properties as the primary collateral, and which are
classified as residential real estate loans for regulatory and financial reporting purposes. Some of our commercial
loans are partially guaranteed by California Southern Small Business Development Corporation.
Risks associated with commercial loans and lines of credit may vary in accordance with concentrations in
any one or group of industries and market locations. Although we seek to avoid concentrations of loans to a single
industry or based upon a single class of collateral, real estate and real estate associated businesses are among the
principal industries in our market area and, as a result, our commercial loan and collateral portfolios are, to some
degree, concentrated in those industries. It is expected that an economic downturn impacting California to a greater
degree than the rest of the country would have a correspondingly greater impact to our commercial loan portfolio.
Construction Loans
Construction loans, which also include land loans, totaled $1,952,701 and $3,903,331 and comprised 4.5%
and 5.9% of the total loan portfolio at December 31, 2018 and June 30, 2019, respectively. Our construction loans are
generally to be made for tenant improvement and expansion projects for business and commercial customers. We
also selectively make commercial loans secured by land and, to a much lesser extent, loans to finance the purchase of
land for development. Under our current loan policy, construction and land loans are to represent 1.0% - 5.0% of our
total loan portfolio.
Construction loans are short-term (generally one year or less), interim loans to finance the construction of
commercial or residential properties. They are generally secured by first liens on real estate and have floating rates.
We require appraisals and we conduct inspections prior to approval of periodic draws on these loans. Land loans are
also generally short term loans to finance land acquisition in anticipation of a future construction loan, and are typically
secured by a first lien at a maximum loan-to-value of 50%.
Construction loans involve additional risks compared with loans secured by existing improved real property.
These include: (i) the inherent uncertainty of the market value of the completed project; (ii) the inherent uncertainty
in estimating construction costs; and (iii) weather, municipal or other governmental-caused delays during construction.
As a result of these uncertainties, repayment is dependent, in a large part, on the success of the ultimate project. If we
are forced to foreclose on a project prior to or at completion because of default, we may not be able to recover all of
the unpaid balance of, and accrued interest on, the loan, as well as the related foreclosure and holding costs. In
addition, we may be required to fund additional amounts to complete a project and may have to hold the property for
an indeterminate period of time. Future local, state or national economic conditions could have an adverse impact on
the potential success of construction projects financed by us and on collateral securing these loans.
Other Real Estate Loans
We make real estate loans to refinance an existing loan or finance the purchase of real property on which
structures have already been completed. Our primary focus is on commercial properties; however, we also selectively
make commercial loans secured by residential properties and, to a much lesser extent, residential loans for consumer
purposes where we have a business relationship with the borrower. Some of our loans secured by residential
properties, made for commercial purposes, are partially guaranteed by California Southern Small Business
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Development Corporation. Commercial real estate loans totaled $17,355,051 and $22,416,770 and comprised 40.0%
and 33.9% of the total loan portfolio at December 31, 2018 and June 30, 2019, respectively. Loans secured by
residential real estate totaled $9,550,271 and $15,899,209 and comprised 22.0% and 24.1% of the total loan portfolio
at December 31, 2018 and June 30, 2019, respectively. Under our current loan policy, commercial real estate loans
are to represent 50.0% - 70.0% of our total loan portfolio. In addition, under our current loan policy, commercial real
estate loans secured by owner-occupied as opposed to investor-owned properties are to represent a majority of total
commercial real estate loans. As of June 30, 2019, of our $22,416,770 in commercial real estate loans, $10,598,862
or 47.3% were secured by owner-occupied properties. We expect this percentage will increase over time to the levels
set in our loan policy through the overall growth, maturity, and further diversification of our loan portfolio. Although
not a key focus of our lending efforts, the Bank may make SBA 7(a) and 504 loans and loans guaranteed in part by
California Southern Small Business Development Corporation which are secured by commercial real estate and are
categorized as commercial real estate loans for reporting purposes. As of June 30, 2019, of our $22,416,770 in
commercial real estate loans, none were SBA 7(a).
We offer a variety of fixed and variable rate real estate mortgage loan products. The value of real estate
collateral for commercial and residential mortgage loans is supported by formal appraisals or evaluations conducted
in accordance with applicable state and federal regulations. As with any loan category, the creditworthiness of the
borrower and a proven track record are primary considerations in the review of all loan requests. In general, the
borrower should provide a verifiable primary source of repayment and a secondary source of repayment.
Repayment on loans secured by commercial mortgages generally depends on successful management of
operations of the collateral properties. The market value of the collateral is subject to the vagaries of the real estate
market and general economic conditions. We address these risks through the underwriting criteria described above.
The collateral quality and type must meet our standards and, where applicable, tenant leases are reviewed and paying
capacity evaluated.
Risks associated with commercial mortgage loans and loans secured by residential real estate will vary in
accordance with local, state and national economic vagaries and the cyclical nature of real estate markets. We attempt
to mitigate these risks by utilizing underwriting criteria described above as well as by closely monitoring the
performance of the portfolio.
Consumer Loans
Consumer loans totaled $2,835,177 and $3,866,592 and comprised 6.5% and 5.9% of the total loan portfolio
at December 31, 2018 and June 30, 2019, respectively. Consumer lending is not a focus of ours, as we are primarily
a business service bank, but we provide these loans from time where we have a business relationship with the borrower.
Consumer loans are made for the purpose of financing automobiles, various types of consumer goods, overdraft
protection, and other personal purposes, including the purchasing and carrying of qualifying equity securities. At June
30, 2019, approximately 45% of our consumer and other loans consisted of stock secured loans. Consumer and other
loan underwriting standards include an examination of the applicant’s credit history and payment record on other debts
and an evaluation of the borrower’s ability to meet existing obligations and payments on the proposed loan. For stock
secured loans, our underwriting standards include the maintenance of minimum margin requirements which are
evaluated periodically throughout the life of the loan.
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The following table sets forth the components of total net loans outstanding, net of deferred fees and costs,
in each category at the date indicated:
June 30, 2019

December 31, 2018

Loans
Real Estate
Construction
Commercial
Residential
Total Real Estate
Commercial
Consumer
Total Loans
Allowance for Loan Losses
Net Loans

$ 3,903,331
22,416,770
15,899,209
42,219,310
19,975,549
3,866,592
66,061,451
(1,050,000)
$65,011,451

$ 1,952,701
17,355,051
9,550,271
28,858,023
11,742,854
2,835,177
43,436,054
(667,000)
$42,769,054

Commitments
Commitments to Extend Credit

$37,007,187

$25,880,644

The following table shows the maturity of our loan categories as of December 31, 2018:
Loan Maturities(1)
As of December 31, 2018
Due After One
Year to Five
Years

Due in One
Year Or Less
Real Estate
Construction
Commercial
Residential
Total Real Estate
Commercial
Consumer
Total

$ 683,216
157,022
5,742,798
6,583,036
5,136,815
2,801,555
$14,521,406

$

518,083
2,777,197
2,339,393
5,634,673
6,605,260
33,622
$12,273,555

Floating Rate(2)
Fixed Rate(2)
Total Loans

Due After Five
Years
$ 751,402
14,420,832
1,468,080
16,640,314
779
0
$16,641,093

Total
$ 1,952,701
17,355,051
9,550,271
28,858,023
11,742,854
2,835,177
$43,436,054
$30,726,224
12,709,830
$43,436,054

(1) Net of deferred fees and costs.
(2) Floating rate loans that have contractual maximum and minimum rate thresholds, and that are fully indexed to
either their maximum or minimum rates at December 31, 2018, are reported as if they were fixed rate loans.
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The following table shows the maturity of our loan categories as of June 30, 2019:
Loan Maturities(1)
As of June 30, 2019
Due in One
Year Or Less
Real Estate
Construction
Commercial
Residential
Total Real Estate
Commercial
Consumer
Total

$ 1,142,493
1,532,273
7,135,450
9,810,216
8,578,787
2,535,315
$20,924,318

Floating Rate(2)
Fixed Rate(2)
Total Loans

Due After One
Year to Five
Years

Due After Five
Years

$ 1,483,456
3,925,405
1,503,098
6,911,959
9,849,899
1,331,277
$18,093,135

$ 1,277,382
16,959,092
7,260,661
25,497,135
1,546,863
0
$27,043,998

Total
$ 3,903,331
22,416,770
15,899,209
42,219,310
19,975,549
3,866,592
$66,061,451
$38,935,887
27,125,564
$66,061,451

(1) Net of deferred fees and costs.
(2) Floating rate loans that have contractual maximum and minimum rate thresholds, and that are fully indexed to
either their maximum or minimum rates at June 30, 2019, are reported as if they were fixed rate loans.
Loan Participations
Based on relationships developed by our senior management, from time to time we have the opportunity to
purchase loan participations from other banks, all of which are subjected to the same underwriting standards as the
loans that we originate. Due to our legal lending limit, from time to time we also sell participations to other financial
institutions when we originate loans. As of December 31, 2018, loan participations in the amount of $514,988 had
been sold to other financial institutions and no loan participations had been purchased. As of June 30, 2019, loan
participations in the amount of $1,673,006 had been sold and no loan participations had been purchased.
Provision for Loan Losses
The risk of nonpayment of loans is an inherent feature of the banking business. The provision for loan losses
is based on our assessment of various factors affecting the allowance for loan losses including, but not limited to,
current and future economic trends, historical loan losses, delinquencies, underlying collateral values, as well as
current and potential risks identified in our loan portfolio. Overall risk varies with the type and purpose of the loan,
the collateral which is utilized to secure payment, and ultimately, the credit worthiness of the borrower.
A loan which has been placed on nonaccrual status is not returned to accrual basis until it has been brought
current with respect to both principal and interest payments, is performing to current terms and conditions, its interest
rate is commensurate with market interest rates and future principal and interest payments are no longer in doubt.
Restructured loans are those loans where we have made concessions in interest rates or repayment terms to assist the
borrower. Nonaccrual loans are generally loans where principal or interest is past due 90 days according to the
contractual terms of the loans or are loans that, in our opinion, there is reasonable doubt as to collectability. Since our
inception of business on January 22, 2018 and as of June 30, 2019, we have had no nonaccrual, restructured or
nonperforming loans.
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The changes in the allowance for loan losses for the six month period ended June 30, 2019 and the period
from January 22, 2018 through December 31, 2018 are summarized as follows:
Analysis of Changes in the Allowance for Loan Losses

Balance at beginning of period
Total charge-offs
Recoveries on prior charge-offs
Net (charge-offs) recoveries
Provision for loan losses
Balance at end of period
Allowance for loan losses to total loans

Six months ended
June 30, 2019
$ 667,000
0
0
0
383,000
$1,050,000
1.59%

Period ended
December 31, 2018
$
0
0
0
0
667,000
$ 667,000
1.54%

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level that is considered adequate to provide for the loan
losses inherent in our loans. Quarterly detailed reviews are performed to identify the risks inherent in the loan portfolio,
assess the overall quality of the loan portfolio and to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses and the
related provision for loan losses to be charged to expense.
A key element of our methodology is the credit classification process. Loans identified as less than
“acceptable” are reviewed individually to estimate the amount of probable losses that need to be included in the
allowance. These reviews include analysis of financial information as well as evaluation of collateral securing the
credit. Additionally, we consider the inherent risk present in the “acceptable” portion of the loan portfolio taking into
consideration the historical losses of peer banks on pools of similar loans, adjusted for trends, conditions and other
relevant factors that may affect repayment of the loans in these pools.
The following table summarizes the allocation of the allowance for loan losses by loan type as of the dates
indicated and the percent of loans in each category to total loans:
June 30, 2019
Amount
Loan Percent
Real Estate
Construction
Residential
Commercial
Total Real Estate
Commercial
Consumer and Other
Unallocated
Total

$ 58,550
336,252
238,488
633,290
354,018
57,999
4,693
$1,050,000

5.9%
33.9%
24.1%
63.9%
30.2%
5.9%
n/a
100.0%

December 31, 2018
Amount
Loan Percent
$ 29,291
260,326
143,254
432,871
176,104
42,528
15,497
$667,000

4.5%
40.0%
22.0%
66.4%
27.0%
6.5%
n/a
100.0%

Investment Portfolio and Investment Activity
The primary objective of our investment portfolio is to contribute to maximizing shareholder value by
enhancing net interest income within our overall asset and liability management objectives while providing adequate
liquidity sources to meet fluctuations in our loan demand and deposit structure. Our board of directors has established
policies designed to accomplish this objective. These policies address liquidity, interest rate risk, credit risk and
pledging needs, as well as providing for regular monitoring and reporting of these areas to the board of directors for
compliance with these policies. To meet this objective we invest in overnight interest bearing deposits in an excess
balance account at the Federal Reserve Bank and other financial institutions, federal funds sold, certificates of deposit
with other financial institutions and high-quality investment securities that generate reasonable rates of return given
our risk assessment and liquidity objectives.
Our investments in overnight interest bearing deposits in an excess balance account at the Federal Reserve
Bank and other financial institutions totaled $42,196,403 and $38,190,800 at December 31, 2018 and June 30, 2019,
respectively.
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Our investment policy also allows us to invest in United States treasury obligations, Unites States government
agency and government guaranteed mortgage-backed securities, municipal securities, corporate debt, banker’s
acceptances, commercial paper and equity securities, including mutual funds that invest in adjustable rate mortgagebacked securities. As of June 30, 2019, we had $38,190,800 invested in overnight interest bearing deposits in an excess
balance account at the Federal Reserve Bank and other financial institutions, and no investments in any other type of
security. At the time of purchase, securities will be classified as available -for-sale or held-to-maturity depending upon
the circumstances in place as to our intent and ability to hold such securities to their contractual maturity. Investment
securities classified as available-for-sale will be recorded at fair value, while investment securities classified as heldto-maturity will be recorded at cost. Unrealized gains or losses on available -for-sale securities, net of the deferred tax
effect will be reported as increases or decreases in shareholders’ equity.
Deposits and Interest Expense
Deposits are the primary source of funding our lending and investing needs. Total deposits grew to
$65,779,533 at December 31, 2018, and to $85,389,385 at June 30, 2019, from zero at January 22, 2018. From January
22, 2018 to June 30, 2019, noninterest-bearing demand accounts grew to $35,656,141, interest-bearing demand, NOW,
and savings accounts collectively grew to $829,307, money market accounts grew to $32,297,707, and time deposits
grew to $16,606,230. Interest expense increased significantly to $325,434 for the period ending December 31, 2018,
and to $458,712 for the six months ended June 30, 2019. This increase is primarily due to our significant growth.
There can be no assurances that we will be able to continue to increase our deposits or be able to retain our existing
deposits. We have found it necessary to offer one premium certificate of deposit campaign for several months in the
past in order to obtain adequate deposits to support our growth and, as of June 30, 2019, substantially all of our
certificates of deposit were derived from that campaign. In addition, we also provide unpublished rate concessions on
deposits from time to time, but there is no assurance we will be able to successfully implement these strategies in the
future.
The following table summarizes the distribution of average deposits and the average rates paid for the periods
indicated:
Six months Ended
June 30, 2019
Average
Average
Balance
Rate
Interest-Bearing Deposits
Interest-Bearing Demand, NOW,
and Savings Deposits
Money Market Deposits
Time Deposits under $100,000
Time Deposits of $100,000 or More
Total Interest-Bearing Deposits
Noninterest-Bearing Demand Deposits
Total Average Deposits

$

Period Ended
December 31, 2018
Average
Average
Balance
Rate

580,104

0.22%

$

393,932

0.19%

29,459,683
1,238,502
14,610,928
$45,889,217
24,536,552
$70,425,769

1.71%
2.63%
2.65%
2.02%
n/a
1.31%

15,271,179
346,369
3,209,739
$19,221,219
9,712,577
$28,933,796

1.65%
2.56%
2.61%
1.80%
n/a
1.19%

The following table summarizes the maturities of time deposits of $100,000 or more as of June 30, 2019:
Maturity of Time Deposits of $100,000 or More

June 30, 2019

< 3 months

3-6 months

6-12 months

>12 months

Total

$1,070,029

$8,728,219

$5,586,549

0

$15,384,797

Noninterest Income
We receive noninterest income primarily from service charges and fee income on deposit accounts and, to a
lesser extent, non-recurring loan referral fees. During our first six months of operations in 2019, we received $26,312
collectively in service charges and fees on deposit accounts and non-recurring loan referral fees. During the period
ended December 31, 2018, we received $9,220 in noninterest income. We expect these fees to grow as our customer
base increases.
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Noninterest Expenses
Noninterest expenses, including stock based compensation to directors, officers, and employees, consists of
salaries and related benefits, occupancy and equipment expense, and other operating and administrative expenses.
Noninterest expenses for the period ended December 31, 2018, including stock based compensation of $1,053,667,
were $5,490,641, and were comprised of $3,659,745 in salaries and related benefits, $435,300 in occupancy and
equipment expense, and $1,395,596 in other operating and administrative expenses. Noninterest expenses for the six
months ended June 30, 2019, including stock based compensation of $300,802, were $3,137,573, and were comprised
of $2,078,909 in salaries and related benefits, $239,702 in occupancy and equipment expense, and $818,962 in other
operating and administrative expenses.
Salaries and related benefits expenses for both periods reflect our focus on building the Bank’s management,
business development, and support teams. Our executive management made a conscious decision to build a core
operating team capable of generating and growing our loan and deposit customer base more aggressively than a typical
de novo. Consequently, our relatively higher noninterest expenses were reflective of our initial period of operations
and growth.
Income Taxes
During 2018, and for the six month period ended June 30, 2019, we recognized income tax expense of $800
in each period equal to the minimum franchise tax for the State of California. The tax benefit related to the operating
loss incurred during 2018 and 2019 was not recognized, as realization of the benefit is dependent upon future income.
As of December 31, 2018, we had a valuation allowance of $1,915,000 established against our potential net deferred
tax assets. Utilization of these benefits, to the extent we are profitable, will enhance our future income.
Liquidity and Asset/Liability Management
The objective of our asset/liability strategy is to manage liquidity and interest rate risks to ensure the safety
and soundness of our capital base, while maintaining adequate net interest margins and spreads to provide an
appropriate return to shareholders.
Our liquidity, which primarily represents the ability to meet fluctuations in deposit levels and provide for
customers’ credit needs, is managed through various funding strategies that reflect the maturity structures of the
sources of funds being gathered and the assets being funded. Our liquidity is further augmented by payments of
principal and interest on loans and increases in short-term liabilities such as demand deposits and certificates of
deposit. Additionally, from time to time we rely upon premium money market account and certificate of deposit
promotions to raise liquidity to meet loan demand, however, there can be no assurance that future promotions will be
successful when additional liquidity is required because such deposits represent a potentially unreliable and volatile
source of funds.
To meet our primary liquidity needs, we maintain a portion of our funds in cash deposits in other financial
institutions, primarily overnight deposits in an excess balance account at the Federal Reserve Bank. In order to meet
our liquidity requirements, we endeavor to maintain an appropriate liquid asset ratio. Under our current asset / liability
management policy, our minimum liquid asset ratio is 10.0% (defined as liquid assets as a percentage of total assets).
As of June 30, 2019, we had a liquid asset ratio considered by management sufficient to meet our liquidity needs of
36.7%. Liquid assets at June 30, 2019 were comprised of $38,190,800 in interest- bearing deposits in other banks,
primarily the Federal Reserve Bank of the United Sates, and $551,919 in cash and balances due from banks.
To further supplement our liquidity needs, we have arranged for an unsecured overnight borrowing line of
$7,500,000 from our primary correspondent bank. This line is subject to availability of funds and has restrictions as
to the number of days used during a month. We also have a credit facility with the Federal Home Loan bank of San
Francisco (“FHLB-SF”) which allows us to borrow up to 25% of our total assets subject to the pledging of qualifying
collateral. As of June 30, 2019, based on pledged collateral, we had borrowing capacity at the FHLB-SF of
$15,092,359, or 14.3% of our total assets. No advances have been made against these lines since our inception of
business on January 22, 2018.
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Capital
Shareholders’ equity at June 30, 2019 was 18,962,563. We were initially capitalized on January 22, 2018
with the net proceeds from our initial offering of common stock of $26,398,375. We also capitalized, as additional
paid in capital, stock based compensation of $1,053,667 for the 2018 period and $300,802 for the first six months of
2019. These collective amounts were reduced to their current level by net pre-opening organizational expenses of
$2,052,286, the 2018 operating loss of $4,847,646, and our net loss in the six months of 2019 of $1,890,349.
In July 2013, the federal bank regulatory agencies approved the final rules implementing the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision’s capital guidelines for U.S. banks (“Basel III Rules”). The new rules became
effective on January 1, 2015, with certain of the requirements phased-in over a multi-year schedule, and fully phased
in by January 1, 2019. Under the Basel III rules, the Bank must hold a capital conservation buffer above the adequately
capitalized risk-based capital ratios. The capital conservation buffer is being phased in from 0.0% for 2015 to 2.50%
by 2019. The capital conservation buffer for 2018 was 1.875%. The net unrealized gain or loss on available for sale
securities, if any, is not included in computing regulatory capital. The following table sets forth the Bank’s capital
ratios for the indicated regulatory requirements:

Minimum
Required
During De
Novo Period
Tier 1 Capital to RiskWeighted Assets
Total Capital to RiskWeighted Assets
Tier 1 Capital to
Average Assets
CET 1 Capital to RiskWeighted Assets
Tangible Equity to
Tangible Assets

8.00%

Minimum
Required

Minimum
Required Plus
Capital
Conservation
Buffer Phasein for 2018

Minimum
Required Plus
Capital
Conservation
Buffer Fully
Phased-In for
2019

June 30,
2019

Dec.
31,
2018

6.00%

7.88%

8.50%

22.87%

37.68%

8.00%

9.88%

10.50%

24.13%

38.93%

19.70%

25.64%

22.87%

37.68%

17.97%

23.56%

4.00%
4.50%

6.38%

8.00%

7.00%

Under the federal banking agencies’ regulatory requirements, we are well capitalized. For a discussion of
capital ratio calculations and the regulatory capital adequacy regulations, see “Supervision and Regulation,” below,
and Note O – Regulatory Matters to our Financial Statements for the period ended December 31, 2018.
The FDIC requires us to maintain, during our initial three years of operations, a Tier 1 capital to average
assets ratio of no less than 8.00%. We are in compliance with this requirement. To comply with this ratio requirement,
a minimum of $7,700,058 and $6,413,346 in Tier 1 capital was required as of June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018,
respectively. See “Supervision and Regulation – Capital Standards,” below.
In addition to the federal banking agencies’ regulatory requirements, the California DBO requires us to
maintain, during our initial three years of operations, a minimum tangible equity to tangible assets ratio of 8.00%. We
are in compliance with this requirement. To comply with this ratio requirement, a minimum of $8,440,369 and
$6,979,237 in tangible equity was required as of June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively.
Our ability to finance our continued growth is unclear. This offering is intended to finance such growth, but
if we continue to grow or suffer losses we may require more capital. There can be no assurance that the capital markets
will be available to us when additional capital is required, especially if our operations are not profitable.
Risk Management
Risk management is an important part of our operations and a key element of our overall financial results.
The FDIC, in recent years, has emphasized appropriate risk management, prompting banks to have adequate systems
to identify, monitor and manage risks. We assess and manage credit risk on an ongoing basis through our lending
policies. We strive to continue our historically low level of credit losses by continuing our emphasis on credit quality
in the loan approval process, active credit administration and regular monitoring.
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In extending credit and commitments to borrowers, we generally require collateral and/or guarantees as
security. The repayment of such loans is expected to come from cash flow or from proceeds from the sale of selected
assets of the borrower. Our requirement for collateral and/or guarantees is determined on a case-by-case basis in
connection with our evaluation of the credit worthiness of the borrower. The collateral held for these loans varies but
may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, income -producing properties, residences
and other real property. We secure our collateral by perfecting our interest in business assets, obtaining deeds of trust,
or outright possession among other means.
We believe that our lending policies and underwriting standards will tend to minimize losses in an economic
downturn, however, there is no assurance that losses will not occur under such circumstances. Credit and interest rate
risks are two areas of particular concern.
Credit Risk. Credit risk generally arises as a result of our lending activities and may be present with our
investment activities. To manage the credit risk inherent in our lending activities, we practice sound, conservative
lending, employ frequent monitoring procedures and take prompt corrective action when necessary. We employ a risk
rating system that identifies the overall potential amount of risk inherent in the loan portfolio. This monitoring and
rating system is designed to help management determine current and potential problems so that corrective actions can
be taken promptly. We grade our loans from “pass” to “loss,” depending on credit quality, with “pass” representing
loans with an acceptable degree of risk given the favorable aspects of the credit with both primary and secondary
sources of repayment. Classified loans or substandard loans are ranked below “pass” loans. As these loans are
identified in the review process, they are added to the internal watch list and additional loss allowances are established.
Additionally, loans are examined regularly by our regulatory agencies.
Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the exposure of a bank’s financial condition, both earnings net interest
income and the market value of assets and liabilities, to adverse movements in interest rates. Interest rate risk results
from the following types of risk that banks often assume as part of their routine operations:
•

Repricing Risk – differences in the maturity or timing of coupon adjustments of bank assets,
liabilities and off-balance-sheet instruments;

•

Yield Curve Risk – changes in the slope of the yield curve over time;

•

Basis Risk – from imperfect correlation in the adjustment of rates earned and paid on different
instruments with otherwise similar characteristics (e.g. three-month Treasury bill versus threemonth LIBOR); and,

•

Option Risk – from interest-rate-related options embedded in bank products (e.g. loan prepayments,
callable investment securities, early withdrawal of time deposits, etc.).

The potential impact of interest rate risk is significant because of the liquidity and capital adequacy
consequences that reduced earnings or losses could imply. We recognize and accept that interest rate risks are a routine
part of bank operations and will from time to time impact our profits and capital position. The objective of interest
rate risk management is to control exposure of net interest income to risks associated with interest rate movements in
the market, to achieve consistent growth in net interest income and to profit from favorable market opportunities.
One method of measuring interest rate risk is to measure our interest rate sensitivity by preparing a rate
sensitive balance sheet, or gap analysis. Traditional gap analysis, although not a complete vie w of these risks, provides
a representation of our current interest rate risk exposure. Traditional gap analysis calculates the dollar amount of
mismatches between assets and liabilities, at certain time periods, whose interest rates are subject to repricing at their
contractual maturity date or repricing date. Even with perfectly matched repricing of assets and liabilities, risks remain
in the form of prepayment of assets and timing lags in adjusting certain assets and liabilities that have varying
sensitivities to market interest rates and basis risk. We actively monitor our short term gap (to one year) to keep it to
a level that is not material. At June 30, 2019, we had a positive cumulative gap of $31,860,000 or 30.2% of total assets
through the one-year period. Thus, our short term interest-rate sensitive assets reprice more quickly than our short
term interest-rate sensitive liabilities, so that in a rising rate environment our net interest income should increase;
conversely, in a declining rate environment our net interest income should decrease.
Given our rate of growth and our rapid acquisition of new assets and liabilities, our interest rate sensitivity is
anticipated to change significantly over time. However, management believes its monitoring of interest rate risk
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provides a reasonable method to control the exposure of our net interest income to changes in the general level of
interest rates.
Since interest rate changes do not affect all categories of assets and liabilities equally or simultaneously, a
cumulative gap analysis alone cannot be used to evaluate our interest rate sensitivity position. To supplement
traditional gap analysis, we perform periodic (i.e., no less frequently that quarterly) simulation modeling to estimate
the potential effects of changing interest rates. This process allows us to explore the complex relationships within the
gap over a variety of time spans and various changes in the interest rate environment.
The following table shows the maturity and repricing of rate sensitive assets and liabilities at June 30, 2019.
For purposes of the following table, an asset or liability is considered rate-sensitive within a specified period at the
soonest time at which we have the ability to reprice the asset or liability or when the asset or liability matures according
to its contractual terms.
Interest Rate Sensitivity
As of June 30, 2019
(dollars in thousands)
Less than
3 months
Interest-Earning Assets:
Federal Funds Sold
Interest Bearing Deposits at FRB and Other
Banks
Gross Loans (before deferred loan fees and
costs)
Other (FHLB Stock)
Interest-Bearing Liabilities:
Interest-Bearing Demand, NOW, and
Savings Deposits
Money Market Deposits
Time Deposits under $250,000
Time Deposits $250,000 and over
Interest Rate Sensitivity GAP
Cumulative Interest Rate Sensitivity Gap
Ratios Based on Total Assets:
Interest Rate Sensitivity GAP
Cumulative Interest Rate Sensitivity GAP

$

3 months
to 1 year

0

$

0

1 to 5
years
$

Over 5
years
0

$

Total
0

$

0

38,191

0

0

0

38,191

39,043
201
$77,435

4,030
0
$4,030

21,627
0
$21,627

1,614
0
$1,614

66,314
201
$104,706

0

$ 0

$0

32,298
657
815
$34,599
$42,836
$42,836

0
4,577
10,429
$15,006
$(10,976)
$31,860

0
128
0
$128
$21,499
$53,359

0
0
0
$0
$1,614
$54,973

32,298
5,362
11,244
$49,733
$54,973

40.60%
40.60%

-10.40%
30.20%

20.38%
50.58%

1.53%
52.10%

52.10%

$

829

$

$

829

Effects of Inflation
The financial statements and related financial information presented herein have been prepared in accordance
with GAAP, which require the measurement of financial position and operating results in terms of historical dollars
without considering changes in the relative purchasing power of money over time due to inflation. Unlike most
industrial companies, virtually all of the assets and liabilities of a financial institution are monetary in nature. As a
result, interest rates have a more significant impact on a financial institution’s performance than the effects of general
levels of inflation. Interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or same magnitude as the price of goods
and services.
Critical Accounting Policies
The discussion and analysis of financial conditions and results of operations in this offering circular are based
on our financial statements and notes thereto, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these financial statements requires management
50

to make a number of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosures. On an ongoing
basis, our management evaluates its estimates and assumptions based upon historical experience and other factors and
circumstances. Our management believes that the estimates and assumptions are reasonable in the circumstances;
however, actual results may differ significantly from these estimates and assumptions that could have a material impact
on the carrying value of assets and liabilities at the balance sheet dates and the results of operations for the reporting
periods. Our significant accounting policies and practices are described in Note A to our audited financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2018, which begins on page F-1 of this offering circular.
Allowance for Loan Losses
We believe the allowance for loan losses is a critical accounting policy, which requires that management
make various significant assumptions and judgments about the collectability of our loan portfolio, including the credit
worthiness of our borrowers and the value of the real estate and other assets serving as collateral for the repayment of
many of our loans. Some or all of these assumptions and judgments may prove inaccurate. For example, our borrowers
may not repay their loans according to their terms and the collateral securing the payment of these loans may be
insufficient to assure repayment. As a result, we may experience significant loan losses, which could have a material
adverse effect on our operating results.
We will maintain an allowance for loan losses in an attempt to cover any loan losses that may occur. However,
there can be no assurance that this allowance will be adequate. To determine the size of the allowance, we will rely
on an analysis of our loan portfolio based on historical loss experience, volume and types of loans, trends in
classifications volume and trends in delinquencies and non-accruals, national and local economic conditions and other
pertinent information. If any of these assumptions are wrong, our current allowance may not be sufficient to cover
future loan losses and adjustment may be necessary to allow for different economic conditions or adverse
developments in our loan portfolio. Material additions to our allowance for loan losses would materially decrease our
net income.
Income Taxes
We also believe the estimation of our income tax liability is a critical accounting policy that requires
significant judgment and estimates on the part of management. We estimate our income tax provision under the
liability method. Deferred taxes result from temporary differences in the recognition of certain income and expense
amounts between our financial statements and our tax return, such as the provision for loan losses, unused net
operating losses and organization and start-up costs. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflected at currently enacted
income tax rates applicable to the period in which the deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be realized or
settled. As changes in the tax laws or rates are enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted through the
provision for income taxes. We make our estimates based on our interpretation of the existing income tax laws as they
relate to our activities. Such interpretations could differ from those of the taxing authorities. Periodically, various
federal and state tax authorities may examine us. In the event management’s estimates and assumptions vary from the
views of the taxing authorities, adjustments to the periodic tax accruals may be necessary.
As of December 31, 2018, we had a valuation allowance in the amount of $1,915,000 established against our
potential deferred tax assets. The realization of this asset is dependent upon our ability to generate taxable income in
future periods.
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MANAGEMENT
Set forth below is certain information as of August 30, 2019, regarding our directors and executive officers.
Each of the directors listed below was elected to our board of directors at our annual meeting of shareholders held on
May 22, 2019, to serve until our next annual meeting of shareholders and until his or her successor is elected and
qualified. See “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management,” below for information pertaining
to the stock ownership of the named individuals.
Name and Title
Julie P. Dubick
Director
Joyce A. Glazer
Director
James W. Ledwith
Director
Lorne R. Polger
Director
Matthew H. Rattner
Director, Chairman of the Board
Steven D. Sefton
Director, President
Christopher J. Woolley
Director
Dan C. Yates
Director, Chief Executive Officer

Age

Year First Elected or
Appointed

69

2017

77

2017

73

2017

56

2017

55

2017

58

2017

60

2017

58

2017

Business Experience and Background of the Directors
Julie P. Dubick. Ms. Dubick is an attorney who served with the United States Department of Justice and
United States Marshals Service and as a partner in the law firm of Seltzer Caplan McMahon Vitek. Since September
2014, Mrs. Dubick has served as an independent management consultant through HG Consulting Group, LLC. In that
capacity, she provides in-depth stakeholder and public engagement, long-term strategic planning and community
dialogue advisory services on a wide range of issues for corporate, public and nonprofit organizations. Since June
2014, she has also taught as an Adjunct Professor of Law at California Western School of Law in San Diego. From
April 2012 to March 2014, Ms. Dubick served as CEO of the Balboa Park Centennial Celebration. From July 2010
to January 2012 she served as Chief of Staff for San Diego Mayor Jerry Sanders, and prior to that held other senior
positions in that administration. Ms. Dubick serves on the boards of a number of local and regional nonprofit
organizations. Ms. Dubick holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Mount Holyoke College and received her Juris
Doctor degree from Case Western Reserve School of Law, where she graduated with honors.
Joyce A. Glazer. Ms. Glazer has been an active member of the San Diego community, serving with
distinction on a number of civic and charitable boards of directors over more than thirty years. Since 2000 and until
her retirement in 2018, Ms. Glazer was a contributing writer at San Diego Magazine, writing a monthly column and
a weekly blog for the magazine. She continues to serve as the Production Manager for Charitable Giving Guide and
manages Woman of the Year and several events at the magazine. She served as a Founding Director of San Diego
Private Bank from August 2006 to May 2013, and on the US Bank San Diego Region advisory board from January
2002 to August 2006. Prior to relocating to San Diego in 1989, she was a Vice President of Norwest Bank in Des
Moines, Iowa with public relations and public affairs responsibilities. Ms. Glazer is a board member of San Diego
Downtown Partnership.
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James W. Ledwith. Mr. Ledwith is a retired Certified Public Accountant with over 40 years of audit and
diversified public accounting experience, serving clients in a variety of industries including banking. Mr. Ledwith
served on the board of directors of San Diego Trust Bank from its inception in 2003 until its sale to Pacific Premier
Bank in 2013. He also served as a director of Inseego Corporation, (formerly Novatel Wireless, Inc.) where he chaired
the Audit Committee and was a member of the Executive Compensation and Corporate Governance Committees. He
was a director of that company from 2008 to 2017 and was its Lead Independent Director from 2012 to 2014. He has
also served on the boards of directors for several nonprofit organizations. Mr. Ledwith received a Bachelor of Science
in Business Administration degree from Babson College and an MBA from the Wharton Graduate Division of the
University of Pennsylvania.
Lorne R. Polger. Mr. Polger is the Co-Founder and Senior Managing Director of Pathfinder Partners, LLC,
a real estate private equity firm he co-founded in San Diego in June 2006. Pathfinder has acquired over $1 billion in
real estate assets primarily in the western United States. Mr. Polger focuses on acquisitions, dispositions, and business
and legal strategies. Mr. Polger practiced real estate law for more than 20 years, most recently as head of the Real
Estate, Environmental and Land Use team at Procopio, Cory, Hargreaves & Savitch, LLP, from December 1999 to
June 2007 Mr. Polger graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Political Science from Colorado College, Cum
Laude, and earned his law degree from UCLA.
Matthew H. Rattner. Mr. Rattner is a co-founder of Karl Strauss Brewing Company (“KSBC”). KSBC
operates as a limited partnership. Mr. Rattner has served as an officer and a director of Associated Microbreweries,
Inc., the general partner of KSBC, since its inception in 1988. Mr. Rattner has served on the Communications
Committee of the National Brewer’s Association, the board of directors for the San Diego Brewer’s Guild, and has
been an advocate for craft beer in San Diego for over 25 years. Mr. Rattner is also a commercial real-estate investor,
with over $100 million in transactions, in which he has acted as principal and syndicator. Mr. Rattner is a graduate of
Stanford University, where he holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics with Distinction and a Master of Science
degree in Industrial Engineering. He also holds an MBA from Stanford Graduate School of Business, where he first
helped develop the craft brew concept for what would become Karl Strauss Brewing Company.
Steven D. Sefton. Mr. Sefton has over 35 years of banking experience in Southern California, including
responsibility for management of multiple offices and more than $650 million in assets as CEO for Regents Bank, a
commercial banking division of Grandpoint Bank. Mr. Sefton joined Regents Bank, N.A. in 2012 and acted as its
President and CEO until its merger with and into Grandpoint Bank in 2013. As a result of the merger he became
President of Regents Bank, the largest division of Grandpoint Bank in terms of loans, deposits and earnings. In 2012
and 2013, Mr. Sefton was responsible for the integration of recently acquired Escondido-based California Community
Bank into Regents Bank, which increased the employees under his supervision from approximately 60 to 110, and the
number of San Diego offices from four to eight. He subsequently managed the closing of four offices and related
reduction in force to increase profitability. Mr. Sefton separated from Regents Bank in June 2017 to join the Bank as
its President. From June 2017 through the commencement of banking operations in January 2018, Mr. Sefton was
compensated as a consultant to CBB Venture Group, LLC, an entity formed for the purpose of organizing the Bank.
Mr. Sefton is currently a board member of Banker Benefits of the California Bankers Association. Mr. Sefton is also
a member of the Salvation Army Advisory Board, serving on the finance committee. Mr. Sefton received a Bachelor’s
Degree in Finance from The University of Texas at Austin in 1984.
Christopher J. Woolley. Mr. Woolley is a business advisor, mentor, and investor in a variety of companies
and funds. From 1990 through 2005, Mr. Woolley held various senior business banking positions with Wells Fargo,
Imperial Bank, and Comerica Bank. In 2005, Mr. Woolley co-founded de novo business bank Square 1 Bank, where
he served in several executive management positions and was responsible for managing and growing the bank’s
national life science practice as well as its Western US technology practice. At various times, he had executive
oversight for practices in San Diego, Orange County, Los Angeles, Palo Alto, Seattle, Denver, Austin, Houston,
Chicago, Boston, and North Carolina. Square 1 went public in 2014 and was sold to PacWest Bancorp in 2015. He is
a past Board Member and President of the San Diego Venture Group, he served for 10 years on the Board and
Executive Committee of Biocom, and he is a graduate of LEAD San Diego. Mr. Woolley holds a California CPA
certificate (currently inactive). He graduated summa cum laude from the University of California Santa Barbara with
a degree in Business Economics.
Dan C. Yates. Mr. Yates has more than 40 years of experience in the banking industry, including as president
or chief executive officer of four community banks, including the Bank. Mr. Yates has served as Chief Executive
Officer of the Bank since June 12, 2017. From June 2017 through the commencement of banking operations in January
2018, Mr. Yates was compensated as a consultant to CBB Venture Group, LLC, an entity formed for the purpose of
organizing the Bank. Mr. Yates served as President and CEO of Neighborhood National Bank, from January 1, 2014
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until his separation from that bank in May 2017. He led the successful effort to recapitalize that bank and improve its
asset quality. Before being named President and CEO of Neighborhood National Bank, Mr. Yates served as a
consultant to that bank from October 15, 2013 to January 1, 2014. Mr. Yates previously served 12 years as CEO of
Regents Bank, N.A. in San Diego County, followed by a year as president of Grandpoint Bank. In September of 2001,
Mr. Yates co-founded Regents Bank and during his tenure he built and led the team that grew the bank into the fifth
largest locally headquartered bank in San Diego County, with over $620 million in assets. From 2003 to 2012 Mr.
Yates served as a Director of National Technical Systems, Inc. (“NTS”) a diversified technical services company that
was previously traded on Nasdaq with annual revenues of $185 million as of 2012. Since 2014, Mr. Yates has been
a board member of the Western Bankers Association, and the California Bankers Association prior to the merger that
created the Western Bankers Association. He has served on the boards of several San Diego charitable and civic
organizations. Mr. Yates obtained his Bachelor of Arts degree in Finance from San Diego State University in 1982.
Resignation of Director

)URPLQFHSWLRQRIWKH%DQNXQWLO$XJXVWZKHQVKHUHVLJQHG0V*LQD&KDPSLRQ&DLQVHUYHGRQ
RXUERDUGRIGLUHFWRUV6KHZDVQRWLQYROYHGLQGD\WRGD\RSHUDWLRQVRIWKH%DQNDQGKHUERDUGGXWLHVKDYHEHHQ
DVVXPHGE\RWKHUGLUHFWRUV0V&KDPSLRQ&DLQUHVLJQHGIURPWKHERDUGRIKHURZQYROLWLRQDIWHUWKH$XJXVW
ILOLQJRIDFLYLO&RPSODLQWDJDLQVWKHUDQG$1,'HYHORSPHQW//&E\WKH6HFXULWLHVDQG([FKDQJH&RPPLVVLRQ
LQ WKH8QLWHG6WDWHV 'LVWULFW&RXUW IRU WKH6RXWKHUQ 'LVWULFW RI &DOLIRUQLD FDVHQXPEHU FY+%/0 WKH
³&RPSODLQW´ 7KH&RPSODLQWDOOHJHVWKDWLQYHVWRUVLQOLTXRUOLFHQVHHVFURZVZHUHPLVOHGUHJDUGLQJWKHLQYHVWPHQWV
DQGWKDWWKHLUIXQGVZHUHPLVDSSURSULDWHG1RQHRIWKHDOOHJDWLRQVLQWKH&RPSODLQWLQYROYHWKH%DQNLQDQ\ZD\DQG
WKH &RPSODLQW GRHV QRW UHIHU WR WKH %DQN  7KH %DQN ZDV QRW LQYROYHG LQ DQ\ RI WKH OLTXRU OLFHQVH HVFURZV RU
LQYHVWPHQWV)XUWKHUQHLWKHU0V&KDPSLRQ&DLQQRUDQ\RIKHUUHODWHGHQWLWLHVDUH%DQNERUURZHUV
Background of the Executive Officers
The following is a brief summary of the background and business experience, including principal occupation,
during the last five years, of the Bank’s executive officers who are not members of the Bank’s Board.
Danna M. Murphy, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Corporate Secretary. Ms.
Murphy has over 22 years of experience in community banking, financial services, and financial institution regulation.
Ms. Murphy commenced service with the Bank as its Director of Accounting on May 13, 2019, following the
announcement by Robert J. Lampert, the Bank’s original Chief Financial Officer, that he would be leaving the Bank.
She was appointed as Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Corporate Secretary on June 26, 2019,
after receipt of required regulatory approvals. Prior to joining the Bank, Ms. Murphy served as Executive Vice
President, Chief Accounting Officer at Commercial Bank of California, based in Irvine, from January 2019 through
May 2019. She also served as Vice President of Finance for the San Diego-based online internet mortgage lender,
American Internet Mortgage, Inc. (Aimloan.com) from January 2018 through August 2018. Ms. Murphy held the
positions of Risk Management Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and Chief Operating Officer during her tenure with
Capital Bank, based in San Juan Capistrano, from its opening in 2008 through its sale to Seacoast Commerce Bank in
2017. Prior to Capital Bank, Ms. Murphy also served as the Chief Financial Officer of San Diego Trust Bank and
Southwest Community Bank, both based in San Diego. After earning a Bachelor of Science degree in Business
Administration - Finance from San Diego State University, where she graduated Cum Laude and with distinction in
the field of Finance, Ms. Murphy joined the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation where she became a
Commissioned safety and soundness Bank Examiner. Ms. Murphy is 53 years old.
Scott T. Parker, Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer. Mr. Parker has 35 years of
commercial banking experience, with a career including executive, C-level positions in a number of community
banking institutions. Mr. Parker was appointed Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer of the Bank
effective in November 2017. Prior to joining the Bank, he served as SVP and Regional Manager of the San Diego
market for Pacific Mercantile Bank (“PMB”), based in Costa Mesa, California, a position he held from August 2014
through October 2017. Prior to his position at PMB, from August 2007 to February 2014, Mr. Parker served as
President/CEO of Vibra Bank in Chula Vista, California, where he was a founding Director. Mr. Parker previously
served as Chief Credit Officer with Rancho Bernardo Community Bank in San Diego, California. He earned an MBA
in Finance from San Diego State University, and is a Graduate of the Pacific Coast Banking School in Seattle,
Washington. Mr. Parker is 58 years old.
Management Securities Ownership
The following table sets forth information as of August 30, 2019, pertaining to beneficial ownership of the
Bank’s common stock by each director and executive officer of the Bank, and all directors and executive officers of
the Bank as a group. The information contained herein has been obtained from the Bank’s records and from
information furnished directly by the individual or entity to the Bank. All shares are held with sole voting and
investment power except as to spousal or community property rights or as otherwise indicated. All directors and
executive officers may be contacted in care of the Bank at 750 B St #3110, San Diego, California 92101. The term
“executive officer” refers to the Bank’s Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Credit Officer and Chief Financial
Officer.
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Securities Ownership Table
Directors and Executive Officers
Common Stock
Beneficially Owned (1)
On August 30, 2019
Number of
Percentage of Shares
Shares
Outstanding

Name
Directors & Executive Officers
Julie P. Dubick
Joyce A. Glazer
James W. Ledwith
Danna M. Murphy
Scott T. Parker
Lorne R. Polger
Matthew H. Rattner
Steven D. Sefton
Christopher J. Woolley
Dan C. Yates
Directors and Executive Officers as a group (10 persons)
________________________

16,666(2)
28,166(3)
28,333(4)
0
16,342(5)
13,333(6)
66,666(7)
44,185(8)
21,666(9)
55,581(10)
290,938(11)

0.62%
1.05%
1.06%
0.00%
0.61%
0.50%
2.48%
1.64%
0.81%
2.06%
10.46%

(1) Included as outstanding for purposes of this calculation are 2,668,595 shares of common stock outstanding as of
August 30, 2019 plus, in the case of each particular holder, the shares of common stock subject to options,
warrants, or other instruments exercisable for or convertible into shares of common stock within 60 days after
August 30, 2019 held by that person, which instruments are specified by footnote. Shares issuable as part or upon
exercise of outstanding options, warrants, or other instruments other than as described in the preceding sentence
are not deemed to be outstanding for purposes of this calculation.
(2) Includes 4,166 shares that may be acquired through the exercise of stock options.
(3) Includes 4,166 shares that may be acquired through exercise of stock options.
(4) Includes 5,208 shares that may be acquired through exercise of stock options.
(5) Includes 13,342 shares that may be acquired through exercise of stock options.
(6) Includes 3,333 shares that may be acquired through exercise of stock options.
(7) Includes 16,666 shares that may be acquired through exercise of stock options.
(8) Includes 26,685 shares that may be acquired through exercise of stock options.
(9) Includes 4,166 shares that may be acquired through exercise of stock options.
(10) Includes 35,581 shares that may be acquired through exercise of stock options.
(11) Includes 113,313 shares that may be acquired through exercise of stock options.
The following table sets forth the ownership of outstanding shares by directors and named executive officers
of the Bank, as well as more detail on their outstanding equity ownership opportunities. As can be seen from the
following table, management’s full potential equity interests give management a significant interest in the future
success of the Bank.
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Pro Forma Beneficial Ownership Analysis of Directors and Named Executive Officers
As of August 30, 2019
Directors and Named
Executive Officers

Issued Shares
Beneficially
Owned

Stock
Options
Exercisable
Within 60
Days

Pro
Forma(1)
Stock
Options
Exercisable
61 Days or
Later

Named Executive Officers
Dan C. Yates
Steven D. Sefton
Danna M. Murphy
Scott T. Parker

20,000
17,500
0
3,000

35,581
26,685
0
13,342

71,162
53,372
10,000
26,686

Outside Directors
Julie P. Dubick
Joyce A. Glazer
James W. Ledwith
Lorne R. Polger
Matthew H. Rattner
Christopher J. Woolley
Total

12,500
24,000
23,125
10,000
50,000
17,500
177,625

4,166
4,166
5,208
3,333
16,666
4,166
113,313

8,334
8,334
10,417
6,667
33,334
8,334
236,640

Pro Forma(2)
Total Stock
Options

Pro
Forma(3)
Total
Issued
Shares Plus
All Stock
Options

Pro
Forma(3)
Total
Percentage
Potential
Ownership

106,743
80,057
10,000
40,028

126,743
97,557
10,000
43,028

4.57%
3.55%
0.37%
1.59%

12,500
12,500
15,625
10,000
50,000
12,500
349,953

25,000
36,500
38,750
20,000
100,000
30,000
527,578

0.93%
1.36%
1.44%
0.75%
3.68%
1.12%
17.48%

(1) Includes all options not exercisable within 60 days, that have been granted but are subject to future vesting.
(2) Includes all options exercisable within 60 days plus all options not exercisable within 60 days, that have been
granted but are subject to future vesting.
(3) Includes as outstanding for purposes of this calculation, 2,668,595 shares of common stock outstanding as of
August 30, 2019 plus, in the case of each particular holder, all options exercisable within 60 days plus all options
not exercisable within 60 days, that have been granted but are subject to future vesting, held by that person.
Board of Director Meetings
Our business affairs are managed by and under the direction of our board of directors. During 2018, our board
of directors held fifteen (15) meetings. During 2018, other than Gina Champion-Cain (who resigned on August 29,
2019), each director attended at least 75% of the aggregate of (i) the total number of board meetings held during such
member’s service and (ii) the total number of meetings of committees of our board of directors on which he or she
served, during the period of such member’s service. Ms. Champion-Cain attended 63% of the aggregate of such
meetings.
Committees
The following are brief descriptions of each of the standing committees of the board of directors and the
members of the committees. The executive officers may participate in all committees.
Audit Committee. The responsibilities of the audit committee include fulfilling duties delineated in the
Bank’s Audit Policy, serving as an independent body reporting to the full Board, attending regulatory examination,
outside audit, and credit review meetings, selecting and appointing the independent registered Public Accounting firm
for the financial audit, and supervising the audit function to verify that auditors, internal and external, are independent
of Bank management and are objective in their findings. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, the audit
committee held a total of three meetings. The members of the audit committee are Julie P. Dubick, Joyce A. Glazer,
James W. Ledwith (Chair) and Christopher J. Woolley.
Nominating Committee. The nominating committee is responsible for ensuring effective governance of the
Bank by recommending to the Board appropriate candidates to serve as directors of the Bank. In carrying out this
responsibility, the committee is empowered to review the composition, skills and qualifications of members of the
Board, identify, evaluate and recruit candidates for any vacancies or newly created positions on the Board, and adopt
processes for review of director performance. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, the nominating
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committee held a total of three meetings. The members of the nominating committee are Julie P. Dubick, Matthew
H. Rattner, and Christopher J. Woolley (Chair).
Asset-Liability and Investment Committee. The primary responsibility of the asset-liability and investment
committee is to fulfill duties required by the Bank’s Asset-Liability and Funds Management, Investment, Capital, and
Liquidity Contingency Policies (collectively, the ALCO policies). The ALCO policies contain specific guidelines,
thresholds, and procedures related to managing the Bank’s exposures to: (i) interest rate risk, (ii) market investment
risk, (iii) liquidity risk, (iv) credit risk, and (v) capital risk. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, the assetliability and investment committee met seven times. The members of the asset-liability and investment committee are
James W. Ledwith, Lorne R. Polger, Matthew H. Rattner (Chair), Steven D. Sefton and Dan C. Yates.
Loan Committee. The loan committee’s responsibilities include evaluating credit applications and making
credit decision on credits above a certain dollar amount, establishing delegated credit authority limits for the CEO,
CCO, and Management Loan Committee, establishing credit risk tolerances and ensuring that an adequate reserve has
been provided against potential losses in the credit portfolio. The committee also oversees management’s handling
of credit risk, and management’s procedures for recognizing adverse trends, identifying problems in the loan portfolio,
and maintaining an adequate allowance for loan and lease losses. The committee also reviews and monitors
compliance with all loan policies. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, the loan committee held a total
of 21 meetings. The members of the loan committee are James W. Ledwith, Lorne R. Polger (Chair), Steven D.
Sefton, Christopher J. Woolley, and Dan C. Yates.
Human Resources/Governance Committee. The human resources/governance committee is appointed by
the Board to assist the Board in overseeing the compensation and human resources programs, governance practices
and management succession policy of the Bank. The committee’s objectives are for the Bank compensation to be: (i)
consistent with the strategic goals of the Bank, based on performance against predetermined goals, and internally
equitable, and (ii) consistent with all regulatory requirements, designed to attract, motivate, retain and fully develop
the executives and employees the Bank needs. The committee is also required to review and approve all titles,
promotions, salary, employment agreements and performance based compensation for the CEO and the President of
the Bank. It establishes and monitors personnel policies of the Bank and reviews and approves performance-based
and other incentive plans and other employee benefits. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, the human
resources/governance committee held a total of three meetings. The members of the human resources/governance
committee are Julie P. Dubick, Joyce A. Glazer (Chair), and Christopher J. Woolley.
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)/ Compliance Committee. The ERM/compliance committee is
appointed by the Board to assist the Board in overseeing the Bank’s compliance with applicable federal and state
banking and financial institution consumer laws, rules, and regulations. It formulates compliance and enterprise risk
management plans and monitors systems to assure compliance. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, the
ERM/compliance committee held a total of two meetings. The members of the ERM/compliance committee are Joyce
A. Glazer, Matthew H. Rattner, Steven D. Sefton, and Dan C. Yates (Chair).
DIRECTOR AND OFFICER COMPENSATION
No fees are expected to be paid to any directors of the Bank for their service as directors for the foreseeable
future. No director fees were paid in 2018 for service on the Board. However, on January 22, 2018, all directors were
granted stock options under the Plan. These awards are summarized in the 2018 Director Compensation table below.
The Board will consider payment of director fees from time to time in the future after consideration of the performance
trends of the Bank, the profitability of the Bank, the time required of the directors to fulfill their responsibilities to the
Bank, and other similar matters.
Once the Bank is no longer considered a de novo institution by the appropriate regulatory authorities, which
the Bank believes will be three years after the Bank opened for business, and assuming no regulatory action has been
taken which would preclude the following action, it is presently the intention of the Board to grant nonqualified options
to all qualifying Bank organizers, including directors, to purchase the Bank’s common stock at an exercise price equal
to the fair market value at the time of grant. All options granted to organizers, including directors, will be issued in
accordance with the Plan. The number of options to be granted to organizers, including directors, after the de novo
period, if any, shall be determined by the Board in its discretion. In making that determination, the Board may consider
the amount of funds placed at risk by the organizer, the length of time such funds were placed at risk, and other factors
deemed relevant by the Board.
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The following table shows compensation information for all individuals who served as non-employee
directors of the Bank during the year ended December 31, 2018. Ms. Champion-Cain is included in the tables that
follow as she served as a director in 2018, but she resigned on August 29, 2019. Please see the Summary
Compensation Table below for information regarding compensation awarded to, earned by or paid to named executive
officers who are also directors of the Bank.
2018 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION
All other compensation
Name
Option awards ($) (1)
($)
Total ($)
Gina Champion-Cain
47,771
0
47,771
Julie P. Dubick
47,771
0
47,771
Joyce A. Glazer
47,771
0
47,771
James W. Ledwith
59,714
0
59,714
Lorne R. Polger
38,217
0
38,217
Matthew H. Rattner
191,085
0
191,085
Christopher J. Woolley
47,771
0
47,771
___________________________________________
(1) Option awards reflect the aggregate grant date fair value computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions: Exercise price, $10.00; grant date
market price, $10.00, estimated volatility, 29.6%, expected term, 7.5 years, expected dividend yield 0.00%, risk
free rate, 2.56%, resulting in a grant date fair value of $3.82 per share subject to option. The actual value that a
director may realize from an option award is contingent upon the satisfaction of the conditions to vesting of that
award and future market conditions. Thus, there is no assurance that the value, if any, eventually realized by a
director will correspond to the amount shown.
At December 31, 2018, the Bank’s non-employee directors had stock options outstanding to purchase the
following number of shares of the Bank’s common stock, all of which were granted on January 22, 2018:
# of Shares Subject to
Outstanding Options
12,500
12,500
12,500
15,625
10,000
50,000
12,500

Name
Gina Champion-Cain
Julie P. Dubick
Joyce A. Glazer
James W. Ledwith
Lorne R. Polger
Matthew H. Rattner
Christopher J. Woolley

All of the awards to non-employee directors are nonstatutory stock options granted under the terms of the
Plan on January 22, 2018. The options vest in equal parts over three years from the date of grant and expire ten years
after the date of grant unless earlier exercised or terminated under the terms of the Plan. Vesting ceases when a
director ceases to be an employee, director or consultant, and the right to exercise the options ceases at that time, or
within a time specified in the Plan thereafter, depending on the circumstances.
Executive Officer Compensation
Compensation Philosophy and Objectives
The Bank’s human resources/corporate governance committee’s philosophy and objectives for Bank
compensation of executive officers are: (i) to be consistent with the strategic goals of the Bank, based on performance
against predetermined goals, internally equitable and (ii) consistent with all regulatory requirements, to provide
compensation designed to attract, motivate, retain and fully develop the executives and employees the Bank needs.
Compensation of the executive officers is intended to reward the achievement of both short- and long-term operating
and financial goals.
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Elements of Executive Compensation
The Bank’s executive compensation program has three primary elements: base salary, bonuses, and the
potential for long-term equity incentives. These primary elements are supplemented by the opportunity to participate
in other benefit plans that are generally available to all of the Bank’s employees. The Board believes these components
work together to provide a reasonable total compensation package for the Bank’s executive officers.
Base Salary
The Bank provides its executive officers with base salaries, the minimum amounts of which are set forth in
their employment agreements. The Board believes the base salaries provided will assist in retaining qualified
leadership with strong banking experience in those positions. Because of the Board’s desire to include elements of
compensation that are performance-based, the Bank has established competitive base salary levels for each executive
officer and may supplement that compensation with cash bonuses. In setting the salary levels for the individual named
executives, the Board considered primarily the competitive pay practices at banks of similar size.
The amounts of the base salaries for each of the executive officers is described below under “Employment
Agreements.”
Bonuses
The human resources/governance committee has not established any bonus plan for 2019 or thereafter. Any
bonuses paid by the Bank will be discretionary with the Board. No bonuses were paid to named executive officers
based upon 2018 performance.
Long-Term Equity Incentives
The Bank’s Plan is intended to help retain employees and officers and align their interests with those of
shareholders. Stock options have value to an employee only if the Bank’s stock price increases above the option
exercise price and the employee remains employed by the Bank for the period required to exercise the stock options.
Stock options thus provide an incentive to improve performance and remain employed by the Bank, and directly link
a portion of compensation to shareholders’ interests by providing an incentive to maximize shareholder value. The
human resources/governance committee oversees the administration of the Plan and specifically reviews and
recommends to the Board any stock option and other grants, if any. In determining the size of any option award to
recommend for an executive officer, the committee considers the officer’s past performance and potential, the position
held by the individual and the officer’s annual base salary compensation.
The numbers of options presently granted to directors and named executive officers are described above
under “Director Compensation,” and below under “2018 Stock Option Awards and Equity Awards Outstanding.” All
of such options were granted on January 22, 2018, except that the options granted to Ms. Murphy were granted on
June 26, 2019.
Our Named Executive Officers
Under SEC rules and regulations, all individuals who served as our principal executive officers during 2018
and our two most highly compensated executive officers (other than our principal executive officer) who were serving
as executive officers at the end of 2018 are referred to as our “named executive officers.” The 2018 executive officer
compensation information includes information regarding Mr. Lampert’s compensation. Mr. Lampert resigned as an
officer, and as of June 26, 2019 was replaced by Ms. Murphy. Our Board of Directors has determined that the
following individuals were our named executive officers for 2018:
Name
Dan C. Yates
Steven D. Sefton
Scott T. Parker
Robert J. Lampert

Title
Chief Executive Officer
President
Chief Credit Officer
Chief Financial Officer
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Summary Compensation Table
The following table sets forth information concerning compensation during the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2018 awarded to, earned by or paid to our named executive officers.
2017-2018 Summary Compensation Table
Named Executive Officers

Name & principal position
Dan C. Yates (CEO)
Steven D. Sefton (President)
Scott T. Parker (CCO)
Robert J. Lampert (CFO)

Year
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
2018

Salary
($)(1)
162,270
250,000
28,125
221,875
21,683
182,456
110,000
180,000

Bonus
($)
0
0
0
0
0
10,000(3)
0
0

Option
awards
($)(2)
0
407,939
0
305,953
0
152,975
0
203,968

All other
compensation
($)
9,200
23,239
94
21,281
1,018
18,691
3,121
9,897

Total ($)
171,470
681,178
28,219
549,109
22,701
364,122
113,121
393,865

(1) All the named executive officers served as officers during part of 2017, and were compensated for the portions
of 2017 during which they were paid for services. All compensation paid to the named executive officers prior
to January 22, 2018, when the Bank opened for business, was paid by CBB Venture Group, LLC, which was
reimbursed for those payments by the Bank after the Bank opened for business. CBB Venture Group, LLC was
formed for the purpose of organizing the Bank. All such payments made by CBB Venture Group, LLC in 2017
and 2018 are included as salary expense for those years.
(2) Option awards reflect the aggregate grant date fair value computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions: Exercise price, $10.00; grant date
market price, $10.00, estimated volatility, 29.6%, expected term, 7.5 years, expected dividend yield 0.00%, risk
free rate, 2.56%, resulting in a grant date fair value of $3.82 per share subject to option. The actual value that an
executive officer may realize from an option award is contingent upon the satisfaction of the conditions to vesting
of that award and future market conditions. Thus, there is no assurance that the value, if any, eventually realized
by an executive officer will correspond to the amount shown.
(3) This amount reflects the payment of a $10,000 signing bonus per Mr. Parker’s employment agreement.
Employment Agreements
Messrs. Yates, Sefton, and Parker each entered into employment agreements with the Bank effective as of
January 22, 2018. Each has a three year term, subject to earlier termination by the officer or the Bank, but employment
is “at will.” Each employment agreement provides for the award of the stock options described below under “2018
Stock Option Awards and Equity Awards Outstanding.” The executive officers are each provided with life insurance
coverage of up to 1.5 times their initial base salary, increasing to up to $1 million for Mr. Yates and Mr. Sefton after
two quarters of profitability. Each is provided with the Bank’s group medical, health, and life insurance benefits.
Business related expenses are reimbursed by the Bank. Subject to applicable law, the Bank agrees to indemnify each
executive for costs, charges and expenses incurred in connection with any action, suit or proceeding to which he may
be made a party by reason of being an officer, director or employee of the Bank or of any subsidiary or affiliate of the
Bank.
The executive is entitled to severance pay in two circumstances. (i) in the event the Bank terminates the
executive’s employment without cause, and (ii) the executive terminates his employment for “good reason” after 90
days’ notice and opportunity to cure. “Good reason” consists of any of: (a) in the case of Mr. Yates and Mr. Sefton,
the failure to nominate or elect the executive to the board of directors; (b) material diminution in title, duties or
responsibilities; (c) material breach by the Bank of compensation or benefit provisions; (d) material breach by the
Bank of any material terms of the employment agreement, and if curable has not been cured within the 90-day cure
period stated above; or (e) relocation of the executive more than 50 miles from the Bank’s headquarters’ location.
In each case the executive receives a lump sum payment equal to 12 months of base salary, or in the case of
Mr. Parker, nine months of base salary. In addition, the executive also receives a prorated incentive bonus, any
deferred compensation owed, any unpaid salary and vacation, and continued benefits at the Bank’s cost for 12 months,
or in the case of Mr. Parker, nine months.
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Dan C. Yates, Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Yates’ base salary is set at $250,000 for the first year, $275,000
for the second year and $300,000 for the third year, and may be increased in the discretion of the board of directors.
Effective 24 months after opening or when the Bank first turns a quarterly net profit, Mr. Yates will participate in a
board of directors-approved executive incentive plan. Target annual cash bonus awards will be no less than 30% of
annual base salary. The board of directors may also award discretionary bonuses. Mr. Yates is entitled to three weeks
of vacation in the first year and four weeks of vacation each year thereafter in addition to any paid-time-off policy
which may be adopted by the Bank. Mr. Yates also receives an auto allowance of $600 per month, a membership in
The University Club atop Symphony Towers, and participation in all Bank employee benefit programs provided to
senior executives from time to time.
Steven D. Sefton, President. Mr. Sefton’s base salary is set at $225,000 and may be increased in the
discretion of the board of directors. Effective 24 months after opening or when the Bank first turns a quarterly net
profit, Mr. Sefton will participate in a board of directors-approved executive incentive plan. Target annual cash bonus
awards will be no less than 30% of annual base salary. The board of directors may also award discretionary bonuses.
Mr. Sefton is entitled to three weeks of vacation in the first year and four weeks of vacation each year thereafter in
addition to any paid-time-off policy which may be adopted by the Bank. Mr. Sefton also receives an auto allowance
of $600 per month, a membership in The University Club atop Symphony Towers or another club, and participation
in all Bank employee benefit programs provided to senior executives from time to time.
Scott T. Parker, Chief Credit Officer. Mr. Parker’s base salary is set at $185,000 for the first year,
increased to at least $195,000 for the second year, and may be increased in the discretion of the board of directors.
Mr. Parker also received a signing bonus of $10,000. Effective 24 months after opening or when the Bank first turns
a quarterly net profit, Mr. Parker will participate in a board of directors-approved executive incentive plan. Target
annual cash bonus awards will be no less than 20% of annual base salary. The board of directors may also award
discretionary bonuses. Mr. Parker is entitled to three weeks of vacation in the first year and four weeks of vacation
each year thereafter in addition to any paid-time-off policy which may be adopted by the Bank. Mr. Parker also
receives an auto allowance of $500 per month, and participation in all Bank employee benefit programs provided to
senior executives from time to time.
Danna M. Murphy, Chief Financial Officer. Ms. Murphy’s base salary is set at $180,000 for the first year,
increased to $187,500 in 2021 and $195,000 in 2022 and ongoing adjustments will be made pursuant to the Bank’s
compensation policies in effect from time to time. Ms. Murphy will also receive a signing bonus of $5,000 payable
90 days after her date of hire. Ms. Murphy is eligible for annual incentive bonuses based on criteria established by
the Bank. Ms. Murphy has been granted stock options under the Plan providing Ms. Murphy the right to purchase
10,000 shares of the Bank’s stock. The stock options vest over three years. Ms. Murphy is entitled to four weeks of
vacation or paid-time off each year. Ms. Murphy also receives an auto allowance of $500 per month, and participation
in all Bank employee benefit programs provided to employees from time to time. Ms. Murphy’s employment is “at
will.”
Change in Control
The employment agreements with the executive officers, other than Ms. Murphy, all provide for payments
due to them upon a “change in control” of the Bank. Each executive will receive a payment of 12 months of base
salary in this event. The executive is entitled to payment regardless of whether the executive is terminated in
connection with a change of control. In the case of Messrs. Yates, Sefton and Parker, if they are terminated and would
receive severance related to termination, the payment resulting from the change in control is in lieu of the annual base
salary portion of the severance payment otherwise due to them related to the termination.
A “change in control” is defined in the employment agreements as a change of control as described in Internal
Revenue Code Section 409A, including without limitation: (i) consummation of a plan of dissolution or liquidation;
(ii) consummation of a reorganization, consolidation or merger where the shareholders of the Bank do not own more
than 50% of the voting power of the resulting entity, a 50% or more shareholder does not own at least 50% of the
voting power of the resulting entity, or the majority of the Board of Directors changes; (iii) the sale of substantially
all of the assets of the Bank; or (iv) the acquisition of more than 50% of the voting power by a non-affiliate.
A “change in control,” as defined in the Plan, also has certain consequences for the stock options held by the
executives. The definition of “change in control” in the Plan is different from the definition in the employment
agreements. If a “corporate transaction” resulting from a “change in control” occurs, the Bank may: (i) cancel the
vested or unvested options in exchange for a payment in cash or stock equal to the fair market value of the
consideration to be paid per share less the exercise price, (ii) after the de novo period, accelerate the vesting of the
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options, (iii) provide that the options will be assumed or substituted for, and/or (iv) provide that exercisable options
be exercised following notice or they shall terminate.
2018 Stock Option Awards and Equity Awards Outstanding
All of the awards to executive officers are intended to constitute incentive stock options, to the extent
permitted by the Internal Revenue Code, and were granted under the terms of the Plan on January 22, 2018. The
options granted to any each executive officer will not qualify for incentive stock option treatment to the extent the
annual vesting exceeds $100,000. The options vest in equal parts over three years from the date of grant and expire
ten years after the date of grant unless earlier exercised or terminated under the terms of the Plan. Vesting ceases
when an officer ceases to be an employee, director or consultant, and the right to exercise the options ceases at that
time, or within a time specified in the Plan thereafter, depending on the circumstances.
The following table sets forth information concerning equity awards held by the named executive officers
that were outstanding as of December 31, 2018:
Named Executive Officers (NEO’s) – Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

Name
Dan C. Yates
Steven D. Sefton
Scott T. Parker
Robert J. Lampert

Number of
securities
underlying
unexercised
options
exercisable
(#)
0
0
0
0

Equity incentive
plan awards:
Number of
securities
underlying
unexercised
unearned options
(#)
0
0
0
0

Number of
securities
underlying
unexercised
options
unexercisable
(#)
106,743
80,057
40,028
53,371

Option
exercise Price
($)
10.00
10.00
10.00
10.00

Option
expiration
date
1/21/2028
1/21/2028
1/21/2028
1/21/2028

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
Many of the directors, officers and employees of the Bank, and companies with which they are associated,
have and will continue to have banking transactions with the Bank in the ordinary course of business. It is the firm
policy of the board of directors that any loans and commitments to lend included in such transactions will be made in
accordance with all applicable laws and on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as
those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons of similar creditworthiness, and which do
not involve more than the normal risk of collectability.
During 2018, the Bank made no loans to Bank directors. In 2019 the Bank extended a line of credit of up to
$1,500,000 to Mr. Polger on standard terms and conditions.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION
General
The Bank is subject to significant regulation and restrictions by federal and state laws and regulatory
agencies. This regulation is intended primarily for the protection of depositors and the deposit insurance fund, and
secondarily for the stability of the U.S. banking system. It is not intended for the benefit of shareholders of financial
institutions. The following discussion of statutes and regulations is a summary and does not purport to be complete
nor does it address all applicable statutes and regulations. This discussion is also qualified in its entirety by reference
to the full text and to the implementation and enforcement of the statutes and regulations referred to in this discussion.
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De Novo Bank Requirements
As a “de novo” bank, during our first three years of operations, we are subject to certain additional regulatory
requirements not applicable to most banks, under conditions imposed by a permit issued by the Commissioner and an
order issued by the FDIC prior to our opening for business. Both the Commissioner and the FDIC require that we
meet additional capital requirements (see “- Capital Standards,” below), and their permission is required for the
payment of dividends (see “Dividends”) and any change in our business plans. Changes in our executive officers or
directors require their prior approval. The FDIC requires that our financial statements be audited (see “- Supervision
and Examination of the Bank – Audit Requirements,” below), and must approve any stock benefit plan or change in
stock benefit plan. We have acted and will continue to act in accordance with these requirements.
Capital Standards
In July 2013, the federal bank regulatory agencies adopted final regulations which revised their risk-based
and leverage capital requirements for banking organizations to meet the requirements of the Dodd–Frank Act and to
implement international agreements reached by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (the “Basel
Committee”) intended to improve both the quality and quantity of banking organizations’ capital (“Basel III”). The
Dodd-Frank Act requires the Federal Reserve to apply consolidated capital requirements to depository institution
holding companies that are no less stringent than those currently applied to depository institutions. Although many of
the rules contained in these final regulations are applicable only to large, internationally active banks, some of them
will apply on a phased-in basis to all banking organizations, including the Bank.
The following are among the new requirements that are being phased in, with the following requirements
being implemented as of January 1, 2015 unless otherwise noted:
•

An increase in the minimum Tier 1 capital ratio from 4.00% to 6.00% (8.00% to be considered well
capitalized) of risk-weighted assets;

•

A new capital ratio requirement of “common equity Tier 1” (“CET1”) to risk-weighted assets of no
less than 4.50% (6.50% to be considered “well capitalized”);

•

A minimum non-risk-based leverage ratio is set at 4.00% eliminating a 3.00% exception for higher
rated banks;

•

Changes in the permitted composition of Tier 1 capital to exclude trust preferred securities,
mortgage servicing rights and certain deferred tax assets and include unrealized gains and losses on
available for sale debt and equity securities;

•

A new additional capital conservation buffer of 2.50% of risk-weighted assets over each of the
required capital ratios has started to be phased in, beginning January 2016, in annual increments of
0.625% of risk-weighted assets per year until fully implemented in January 2019. This conservation
buffer level must be met to avoid limitations on the ability to pay dividends, repurchase shares or
pay discretionary bonuses;

•

The risk weights of certain assets for purposes of calculating the risk-based capital ratios are changed
for high volatility commercial real estate acquisition, development and construction loans, certain
past due non-residential mortgage loans and certain mortgage-backed and other securities
exposures; and

•

An additional “countercyclical capital buffer” is required for larger and more complex institutions.

Including the capital conservation buffer of 2.50% above, the new regulatory minimum capital ratios
established under the new final capital rule result in the following minimum ratios: (i) a common equity Tier 1 capital
ratio of 7.00%, (ii) a Tier 1 capital ratio of 8.50%, and (iii) a total capital ratio of 10.50%. The Bank does not expect
the countercyclical capital buffer to be applicable to the Bank.
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The new capital rules also revise the prompt corrective action framework as of January 1, 2015. Under the
new prompt corrective action requirements, which are designed to complement the capital conservation buffer, insured
depository institutions will be required to meet the following increased capital level requirements in order to qualify
as “well capitalized:” (i) a new common equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 6.50%; (ii) a Tier 1 capital ratio of 8.00%
(increased from 6.00%); (iii) a total capital ratio of 10.00% (unchanged from current rules); and (iv) a Tier 1 leverage
ratio of 5.00% (increased from 4.00%).
While the new final capital rule sets higher regulatory capital standards for the Bank, bank regulators may
also continue their past policies of expecting banks to maintain additional capital beyond the new minimum
requirements. The implementation of the new capital rules or more stringent requirements to maintain higher levels
of capital or to maintain higher levels of liquid assets could adversely impact the Bank’s net income and return on
equity, restrict the ability to pay dividends and require the raising of additional capital. The FDIC has imposed as a
condition of its approval of the Bank opening for business that it maintain a ratio of Tier 1 capital to average total
assets of at least 8.00% for three years. In addition, the California DBO requires us to maintain, during our initial
three years of operations, a minimum tangible equity to tangible asset ratio of 8.00%.
The Bank already meets all of these requirements and will exceed them further with the proceeds of this
offering.
Final Volcker Rule
In December 2013, the federal bank regulatory agencies adopted final rules that implement a part of the
Dodd-Frank Act commonly referred to as the “Volcker Rule.” Under these rules and subject to certain exceptions,
banking entities, including the Bank, will be restricted from engaging in activities that are considered proprietary
trading and from sponsoring or investing in certain entities, including hedge or private equity funds that are considered
“covered funds.” These rules were originally scheduled to become effective on April 1, 2014; however, the Federal
Reserve granted banking institutions two additional one-year extensions to conform their ownership interests in and
sponsorship of these covered funds. Certain collateralized loan obligations (“CLO”) securities backed by trust
preferred securities were initially defined as covered funds subject to the investment prohibitions of the final rule.
Action taken by the Federal Reserve in January 2014 exempted many such securities to address the concern that many
community banks holding such CLO securities may have been required to recognize losses on those securities.
The Bank does not hold any investment positions that will be subject to the Volcker Rule. Therefore, while
these new rules may require the Bank to conduct certain internal analyses and reporting, the Bank does not believe
that the rules will require any material changes in the Bank’s operations or business.
Consumer Financial Protection Bureau
The Dodd-Frank Act established a new Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (the “CFPB”), as an
independent entity within the Federal Reserve with broad powers to supervise and enforce consumer protection laws.
The CFPB has broad rule-making authority for a wide range of consumer protection laws that apply to all banks and
savings institutions, including the authority to prohibit “unfair, deceptive or abusive” acts and practices. In addition
to its rule making authority, the CFPB has examination and enforcement authority over all banks and savings
institutions with more than $10 billion in assets. For financial institutions like the Bank, enforcement of CFPB
regulations and examination of compliance with CFPB regulations continue to be the primary obligation of the FDIC
and the DBO.
Significant recent CFPB developments that may affect the operations and compliance costs of the Bank
include:
•

The issuance of final rules for residential mortgage lending, which became effective January 10,
2014, including definitions for “qualified mortgages” and detailed standards by which lenders must
satisfy themselves of the borrower’s ability to repay the loan and revised forms of disclosure under
the Truth in Lending Act and the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act;

•

Actions taken to regulate and supervise credit bureaus and debt collections; and

•

Positions taken by CFPB on fair lending, including applying the disparate impact theory in auto
financing, which could make it harder for lenders to charge different rates or apply different terms
to loans to different customers.
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Payment of Dividends
Effective January 1, 2012, Section 1132 of the California Financial Code restricts the amount available for
cash dividends to the lesser of a bank’s retained earnings or net income for its last three fiscal years (less any
distributions to shareholders made during such period). Where this test is not met, cash dividends may still be paid
with the prior approval of the Commissioner in an amount not exceeding the greatest of (1) retained earnings of the
bank; (2) the net income of the bank for its last fiscal year; or (3) the net income of the bank for its current fiscal year.
When applicable, the new Basel III minimum capital rules may restrict dividends by the Bank if the additional capital
conservation buffer is not achieved. See “—Capital Standards” above.
Stock Redemptions and Repurchases
Stock redemptions by California banking corporations are considered distributions to shareholders and are
subject to the same restrictions as the payment of dividends, except that a bank may: (1) with the prior approval of the
Commissioner, make a distribution to its shareholders by means of redeeming its redeemable shares; and (2) with the
prior approval of the outstanding shares and of the Commissioner, otherwise make a distribution to its shareholders
in connection with a reduction of its contributed capital.
Unsafe and Unsound Banking Practices
In addition to these explicit limitations, the federal regulatory agencies have general authority to prohibit a
bank from engaging in an unsafe or unsound banking practice. Depending upon the circumstances, the agencies could
take the position that paying a dividend would constitute an unsafe or unsound banking practice.
Acquisition of Control
Under Section 1251 of the California Financial Code, a person or entity proposing to directly or indirectly
acquire control of a California bank must obtain permission from the DBO. “Control” is defined in Section 1250 as
either (i) indirectly or directly owning, controlling or having power to vote 25.00% or more of the voting securities of
a bank; or (ii) to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a person, whether through the
ownership of voting securities, by contract (other than a commercial contract for goods or non-management services),
or otherwise; provided, however, that no individual shall be deemed to control a person solely on account of being a
director, officer, or employee of such person. Also, a person who, directly or indirectly, owns, controls, holds with the
power to vote, or holds proxies representing, 10.00% or more of the then outstanding voting securities issued by a
California bank is presumed to control such other person. Similar federal laws apply, and during our first three years
of operation, the FDIC must approve the proposed ownership of 10.00% or more of our stock.
Supervision and Examination of the Bank
The Bank, as a California state-chartered bank, is subject to primary supervision and examination by the
DBO as well as the FDIC. Specific federal and state laws and regulations which are applicable to banks regulate,
among other things, the scope of their business, their investments, their reserves against deposits, the timing of the
availability of deposited funds, the nature and amount of and collateral for certain loans, borrowings, capital
requirements, certain check-clearing activities, branching, and mergers and acquisitions.
In addition to the foregoing, the following summary identifies some of the more significant laws, regulations,
and policies that affect operations of the Bank. This summary is not intended to be a complete listing or description
of all laws and regulations that apply to the Bank and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the applicable laws
and regulations.
Supervision and Enforcement Authority
The federal and California regulatory structure gives bank regulatory agencies extensive discretion in
connection with their supervisory and enforcement activities and examination policies, including policies with respect
to the classification of assets and the establishment of adequate loan loss reserves for regulatory purposes. Bank
regulatory agencies have adopted guidelines to assist in identifying and addressing potential safety and soundness
concerns before an institution’s capital becomes impaired. The guidelines establish operational and managerial
standards generally relating to: (1) internal controls, information systems, and internal audit systems; (2) loan
documentation; (3) credit underwriting; (4) interest-rate exposure; (5) asset growth and asset quality; and (6)
compensation, fees and benefits. Further, the regulatory agencies have adopted safety and soundness guidelines for
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asset quality and for evaluating and monitoring earnings to ensure that earnings are sufficient for the maintenance of
adequate capital and reserves. If, as a result of an examination, the DBO or the FDIC should determine that the
financial condition, capital resources, asset quality, earnings prospects, management, liquidity, or other aspects of the
operations of the Bank are unsatisfactory or that either it or its management is violating or has violated any law or
regulation, the DBO and the FDIC, and separately the FDIC, as insurer of the Bank’s deposits, have residual authority
to:
•

require affirmative action to correct any conditions resulting from any violation or practice;

•

direct an increase in capital and the maintenance of higher specific minimum capital ratios, which
may preclude the Bank from being deemed “well-capitalized” and restrict its ability to accept certain
brokered deposits;

•

restrict its growth geographically, by products and services, or by mergers and acquisitions;

•

enter into informal or formal enforcement orders, including memoranda of understanding, written
agreements and consent or cease and desist orders or prompt corrective action orders to take
corrective action and cease unsafe and unsound practices;

•

require prior approval of senior executive officer or director changes; remove officers and directors
and assess civil monetary penalties; and

•

terminate FDIC insurance, revoke the charter and/or take possession of and close and liquidate the
bank or appoint the FDIC as receiver of the Bank.

Prompt Corrective Action Authority
The FDI Act provides a framework for regulation of depository institutions and their affiliates, including
parent holding companies, by their federal banking regulators. Among other things, it requires the relevant federal
banking regulator to take “prompt corrective action” with respect to a depository institution if that institution does not
meet certain capital adequacy standards, including requiring the prompt submission of an acceptable capital restoration
plan. Supervisory actions by the appropriate federal banking regulator under the prompt corrective action rules
generally depend upon an institution’s classification within five capital categories as defined in the regulations. The
relevant capital measures are the capital ratio, the Tier 1 capital ratio, and the leverage ratio. However, the federal
banking agencies have also adopted non-capital safety and soundness standards to assist examiners in identifying and
addressing potential safety and soundness concerns before capital becomes impaired. These include operational and
managerial standards relating to: (i) internal controls, information systems and internal audit systems, (ii) loan
documentation, (iii) credit underwriting, (iv) asset quality and growth, (v) earnings, (vi) risk management, and (vii)
compensation and benefits.
A depository institution’s capital tier under the prompt corrective action regulations will depend upon how
its capital levels compare with various relevant capital measures and the other factors established by the regulations.
An institution may be downgraded to, or deemed to be in, a capital category that is lower than indicated by its capital
ratio if it is determined to be in an unsafe or unsound condition or if it receives an unsatisfactory examination rating
with respect to certain matters.
The FDI Act generally prohibits a depository institution from making any capital distributions (including
payment of a dividend) or paying any management fee to its parent holding company, if the depository institution
would thereafter be “undercapitalized.” “Undercapitalized” institutions are subject to growth limitations and are
required to submit a capital restoration plan. The regulatory agencies may not accept such a plan without determining,
among other things, that the plan is based on realistic assumptions and is likely to succeed in restoring the depository
institution’s capital. In addition, for a capital restoration plan to be acceptable, the depository institution’s parent
holding company must guarantee that the institution will comply with such capital restoration plan. The bank holding
company must also provide appropriate assurances of performance. The aggregate liability of the parent holding
company is limited to the lesser of (i) an amount equal to 5.00% of the depository institution’s total assets at the time
it became undercapitalized and (ii) the amount which is necessary (or would have been necessary) to bring the
institution into compliance with all capital standards applicable with respect to such institution as of the time it fails
to comply with the plan. If a depository institution fails to submit an acceptable plan, it is treated as if it is “significantly
undercapitalized.” “Significantly undercapitalized” depository institutions may be subject to a number of requirements
and restrictions, including orders to sell sufficient voting stock to become “adequately capitalized,” requirements to
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reduce total assets, and cessation of receipt of deposits from correspondent banks. “Critically undercapitalized”
institutions are subject to the appointment of a receiver or conservator.
Brokered Deposit Restrictions
Well-capitalized institutions are not subject to limitations on brokered deposits, while an adequately
capitalized institution is able to accept, renew or roll over brokered deposits only with a waiver from the FDIC and
subject to certain restrictions on the yield paid on such deposits. Undercapitalized institutions are generally not
permitted to accept, renew, or roll over brokered deposits.
Loans to One Borrower
With certain limited exceptions, the maximum amount that a California bank may lend to any borrower at
any one time (including the obligations to the bank of certain related entities of the borrower) may not exceed 25.00%
(and unsecured loans may not exceed 15.00%) of the sum of the bank’s shareholders’ equity, allowance for loan loss,
and any capital notes and debentures of the bank.
Extensions of Credit to Insiders and Transactions with Affiliates
The Federal Reserve Act and Regulation O and parallel California law and regulations place limitations and
conditions on loans or extensions of credit to:
•

a bank or bank holding company’s executive officers, directors and principal shareholders (i.e., in
most cases, those persons who own, control or have power to vote more than 10% of any class of
voting securities);

•

any company controlled by any such executive officer, director or shareholder; or

•

any political or campaign committee controlled by such executive officer, director or principal
shareholder.

Among other restrictions, such loans and leases:
•

must comply with loan-to-one-borrower limits;

•

require prior full board approval when aggregate extensions of credit to the person exceed specified
amounts;

•

must be made on substantially the same terms (including interest rates and collateral) and follow
credit-underwriting procedures no less stringent than those prevailing at the time for comparable
transactions with non-insiders;

•

must not involve more than the normal risk of repayment or present other unfavorable features; and

•

must not exceed the bank’s unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus in the aggregate.

Concentration in Commercial Real Estate Lending
In 2006, the federal bank regulatory agencies issued guidelines on sound risk management practices to
address a financial institution’s concentrations in commercial real estate (“CRE”) lending activities. The guidelines
identify certain concentration levels that, if exceeded, will expose the institution to additional supervisory analysis
surrounding the institution’s CRE concentration risk. The guidelines are designed to promote appropriate levels of
capital and sound loan and risk management practices for institutions with a concentration of CRE loans. In general,
the guidelines establish two concentration levels. First, a concentration is deemed to exist if the institution’s total
construction, land development and other land loans represent 100.00% or more of total risk-based capital (“CRE 1
Concentration”). Second, a concentration will be deemed to exist if total loans for construction, land development and
other land and loans secured by multifamily and non-owner occupied, non-farm, non-residential properties (excluding
loans secured by owner-occupied properties) represent 300.00% or more of total risk-based capital (“CRE 2
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Concentration”) and the institution’s commercial real estate loan portfolio has increased by 50.00% or more during
the prior 36-month period.
Deposit Insurance
The FDIC is an independent federal agency that insures deposits, up to prescribed statutory limits, of federally
insured banks and savings institutions and safeguards the safety and soundness of the banking and savings industries.
The FDIC insures customer deposits through the Deposit Insurance Fund (the “DIF”) up to prescribed limits for each
depositor. Pursuant to Dodd-Frank, the maximum deposit insurance amount in any one insured institution has been
permanently increased to $250,000 per depositor. As required by Dodd-Frank, the FDIC adopted a DIF restoration
plan which became effective on January 1, 2011. Among other things, the plan: (1) raises the minimum designated
reserve ratio, which the FDIC is required to set each year, to 1.35% (from the former minimum of 1.15%) and removes
the upper limit on the designated reserve ratio (which was formerly capped at 1.50%) and consequently on the size of
the fund; (2) requires that the fund reserve ratio reach 1.35% by 2020; (3) eliminates the requirement that the FDIC
provide dividends from the fund when the reserve ratio is between 1.35% and 1.50%; and (4) continues the FDIC’s
authority to declare dividends when the reserve ratio at the end of a calendar year is at least 1.50%, but grants the
FDIC sole discretion in determining whether to suspend or limit the declaration or payment of dividends. The FDI
Act continues to require that the FDIC’s Board of Directors consider the appropriate level for the designated reserve
ratio annually and, if changing the designated reserve ratio, engage in notice-and-comment rulemaking before the
beginning of the calendar year. The FDIC has set a long-term goal of getting its reserve ratio up to 2% of insured
deposits by 2027.
In 2011, the FDIC approved a final rule, as mandated by Dodd-Frank, changing the deposit insurance
assessment system from one that is based on total domestic deposits to one that is based on average consolidated total
assets minus average tangible equity. On May 20, 2016, the FDIC issued a final rule to refine the deposit insurance
system for small insured depository institutions with less than $10 billion in assets that have been federally insured
for at least five years (“established small institutions”). The prior system placed each institution into one of four risk
categories (I, II, III or IV) based on capital levels and supervisory ratings. Most small institutions fell under Risk
Category I, where risk was further differentiated using a financial ratios method. The current system, which became
effective July 1, 2016, eliminates the risk categories and uses only a financial ratios method to determine assessment
rates for all established small institutions. The FDIC has published an online assessment calculator that allows
institutions to estimate their assessment rates.
Depositor Preference
The FDI Act provides that, in the event of the “liquidation or other resolution” of an insured depository
institution, the claims of depositors of the institutions, including the claims of the FDIC as subrogee of insured
depositors, and certain claims for administrative expenses of the FDIC as a receiver, will have priority over other
general unsecured claims against the institution. If an insured depository institution fails, insured and uninsured
depositors, along with the FDIC, will have priority in payment ahead of unsecured non-deposit creditors, with respect
to any extensions of credit they have made to such insured depository institution.
Audit Requirements
The Bank is required to have an annual independent audit for at least the first three years of its operations,
and to prepare all financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles under
commitments made in its application for Federal Deposit Insurance. It is also the Bank’s intent to have independent
audits even after the initial three-year period.
Anti-Money Laundering and OFAC Regulation
A major focus of governmental policy on financial institutions in recent years has been in regards to
compliance with anti-money laundering (“AML”) laws and regulations. The Financial Recordkeeping and Reporting
of Currency and Foreign Transactions Act of 1970 is often referred to as the Bank Secrecy Act (“BSA”). The purpose
of the BSA is to require financial institutions to maintain certain records and file certain reports that have a high degree
of usefulness in criminal, tax and regulatory investigations or proceedings and to implement an anti-money laundering
program. The Department of the Treasury has been given the authority to administer and issue regulations to
implement the BSA requirements. The Secretary of the Treasury delegated its authority in this regard to the Financial
Crimes Enforcement Network (FinCEN), which is a bureau of the Treasury Department. In general, BSA regulations
can be divided into three parts: (i) reporting, (ii) recordkeeping, and (iii) establishing anti-money laundering programs.
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The USA Patriot Act of 2001 (“Patriot Act”) significantly expanded the AML and financial transparency
laws and regulations by imposing significant new compliance and due diligence obligations, creating new crimes and
penalties and expanding the extra-territorial jurisdiction of the United States. Regulations promulgated under the
Patriot Act impose various requirements on financial institutions, such as standards for verifying client identification
at account opening and maintaining expanded records (including “Know Your Customer” and “Enhanced Due
Diligence” practices) and other obligations to maintain appropriate policies, procedures and controls to aid the process
of preventing, detecting, and reporting money laundering and terrorist financing.
An institution subject to the Patriot Act must provide AML training to employees, designate an AML
compliance officer and annually audit the AML program to assess its effectiveness. The federal regulatory agencies
continue to issue regulations and new guidance with respect to the application and requirements of BSA and AML.
The United States has imposed economic sanctions that affect transactions with designated foreign countries, nationals
and others. The rules are administered by Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC”) which are
promulgated in regulations. The OFAC regulations require financial institutions to block or reject payments, transfers,
withdrawals or other dealings with respect to accounts and assets of countries that are identified by the President as
being a threat to national security. Financial institutions may also be required to block or reject payments, transfers,
withdrawals, and dealings with the accounts and assets of nationals of the sanctioned countries and with other
specifically designated individuals (such as designated narcotics traffickers). Financial institutions are also required
to report all blockings to OFAC within 10 business days of the occurrence.
On May 11, 2016, the federal regulatory agencies published a final rule addressing customer due diligence
under the BSA intended to clarify and strengthen customer due diligence requirements for financial institutions. The
final rule contains explicit requirements for institutions to identify both the beneficial owners of a legal entity customer
as well as the individual or individuals who control that customer. Beneficial owners include: (i) each individual who
(directly or indirectly, through any contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship or otherwise) owns 25.00% or
more of the equity interests of a legal entity customer; and (ii) an individual with significant responsibility to control,
manage, or direct a legal entity customer. Additionally, the final rule incorporates current customer due diligence
elements on the nature and purpose and ongoing monitoring of customers into the AML program requirements. While
the effective date of the final rule was July 11, 2016, the date financial institutions had until May 11, 2018 to comply
with the rule.
Failure of a financial institution to maintain and implement adequate BSA, AML, CIP (Customer
Identification Program) and OFAC programs, or to comply with all of the relevant laws or regulations, could have
serious legal and reputational consequences for the institution.
Federal Banking Agencies Compensation Guidelines
Guidelines adopted by the federal banking agencies prohibit excessive compensation as an unsafe and
unsound practice and describe compensation as excessive when the amounts paid are unreasonable or disproportionate
to the services performed by an executive officer, employee, director or principal shareholder. In June 2010, the federal
bank regulatory agencies jointly issued additional comprehensive guidance on incentive compensation policies (the
“Incentive Compensation Guidance”) intended to ensure that the incentive compensation policies of banking
organizations do not undermine the safety and soundness of such organizations by encouraging excessive risk-taking.
The Incentive Compensation Guidance, which covers all employees that have the ability to materially affect the risk
profile of an organization, either individually or as part of a group, is based upon the key principles that a banking
organization’s incentive compensation arrangements should (i) provide incentives that do not encourage risk-taking
beyond the organization’s ability to effectively identify and manage risks, (ii) be compatible with effective internal
controls and risk management, and (iii) be supported by strong corporate governance, including active and effective
oversight by the organization’s board of directors. Any deficiencies in compensation practices that are identified may
be incorporated into the organization’s supervisory ratings, which can affect its ability to make acquisitions or perform
other actions. The Incentive Compensation Guidance provides that enforcement actions may be taken against a
banking organization if its incentive compensation arrangements or related risk-management control or governance
processes pose a risk to the organization’s safety and soundness and the organization is not taking prompt and effective
measures to correct the deficiencies.
On February 7, 2011, the Board of Directors of the FDIC approved a joint proposed rulemaking to implement
Section 956 of the Dodd-Frank for banks with $1 billion or more in assets. Section 956 prohibits incentive-based
compensation arrangements which encourage inappropriate risk taking by covered financial institutions and are
deemed to be excessive, or that may lead to material losses. The rule would move the U.S. closer to aspects of
international compensation standards by 1) requiring deferral of a substantial portion of incentive compensation for
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executive officers of particularly large institutions described above; 2) prohibiting incentive-based compensation
arrangements for covered persons that would encourage inappropriate risks by providing excessive compensation; 3)
prohibiting incentive-based compensation arrangements for covered persons that would expose the institution to
inappropriate risks by providing compensation that could lead to a material financial loss; 4) requiring policies and
procedures for incentive-based compensation arrangements that are commensurate with the size and complexity of
the institution; and 5) requiring annual reports on incentive compensation structures to the institution’s appropriate
Federal regulator.
The scope, content and application of the U.S. banking regulators’ policies on incentive compensation
continue to evolve in the aftermath of the economic downturn.
Community Reinvestment Act
Under the Community Reinvestment Act of 1977 (“CRA”), the Bank will have a continuing and affirmative
obligation consistent with safe and sound banking practices to help meet the credit needs of its communities, including
low and moderate income neighborhoods. CRA generally requires the federal banking agencies to evaluate the record
of a financial institution in meeting the credit needs of its local communities and to take that record into account in its
evaluation of certain applications by such institution, such as applications for charters, branches and other deposit
facilities, relocations, mergers, consolidations and acquisitions or engage in certain activities pursuant to the GrammLeach Bliley Act.
CRA does not establish specific lending requirements or programs for financial institutions nor does it limit
an institution’s discretion to develop the types of products and services that it believes are best suited to its particular
community consistent with CRA. The CRA regulations provide for a streamlined assessment method for “small
banks” that is intended to reduce examination burden by focusing chiefly on lending and not the bank’s community
development and provision of financial services to low- and moderate-income neighborhoods. Under the CRA
regulations, the term “small bank” means a bank that, as of December 31 of either of the prior two calendar years, had
assets of less than $1.226 billion. The Bank qualifies as a “small bank” under the CRA regulations.
Economic Growth, Regulatory Relief, and Consumer Protection Act (“EGRRCPA”)
The EGRRCPA directs the federal banking agencies to develop a specified Community Bank Leverage Ratio
(i.e., the ratio of a bank’s equity capital to its consolidated assets) of not less than 8% and not more than 10%. Banks
and bank holding companies with less than $10 billion in total assets that maintain capital in excess of this ratio will
be deemed to be in compliance with all other capital and leverage requirements. Federal banking agencies may
consider a company’s risk profile when evaluating whether it qualifies as a community bank for purposes of the
Community Bank Leverage Ratio.
Other key provisions of the EGRRCPA as it relates to community banks and bank holding companies include,
but are not limited to: (i) designating mortgages held in portfolio as “qualified mortgages” for banks with less than
$10 billion in assets, subject to certain documentation and product limitations; (ii) exempting banks with less than $10
billion in assets (and total trading assets and trading liabilities of 5% or less of total assets) from Volcker Rule
requirements relating to proprietary trading; (iii) simplifying capital calculations for banks with less than $10 billion
in assets by requiring federal banking agencies to establish a community bank leverage ratio of tangible equity to
average consolidated assets of not less than 8% or more than 10%, and provide that banks that maintain tangible equity
in excess of such ratio will be deemed to be in compliance with risk-based capital and leverage requirements; (iv)
assisting smaller banks with obtaining stable funding by providing an exception for reciprocal deposits from FDIC
restrictions on acceptance of brokered deposits; (v) raising the eligibility for use of short-form Call Reports from $1
billion to $5 billion in assets; and (vi) changing the eligibility for use of the small bank holding company policy
statement from institutions with under $1 billion in assets to institutions with under $3 billion in assets.
At this time, it is difficult to anticipate the continued impact this expansive legislation will have on the Bank,
its customers and the financial industry generally. To the extent the Dodd-Frank Act remains in place or is not further
amended, it is likely to continue to increase the Bank’s cost of doing business, limit the Bank’s permissible activities,
and affect the competitive balance within the industry and market.
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Federal and State Taxation
The Bank reports its income using the cash method of accounting, and is subject to federal income taxation
in the same manner as other corporations with some exceptions. For the 2018 tax year, the maximum federal income
tax rate was 21.00% and the California state income tax rate was 10.84%.
Customer Information Security
The FDIC and other bank regulatory agencies have adopted final guidelines for safeguarding confidential,
personal customer information. These guidelines require each financial institution, under the supervision and ongoing
oversight of its board of directors or an appropriate committee thereof, to create, implement and maintain a
comprehensive written information security program designed to ensure the security and confidentiality of customer
information, protect against any anticipated threats or hazard to the security or integrity of such information and protect
against unauthorized access to or use of such information that could result in substantial harm or inconvenience to any
customer. The Bank has adopted a customer information security program to comply with such requirements.
Privacy
The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (the “GLB Act”) and the California Financial Information Privacy Act require
financial institutions to implement policies and procedures regarding the disclosure of nonpublic personal information
about consumers to non-affiliated third parties. These provisions limit the ability of banks and other financial
institutions to disclose non-public information about consumers to affiliated companies and non-affiliated third parties.
These rules require disclosure of privacy policies to clients and, in some circumstance, allow consumers to prevent
disclosure of certain personal information to affiliates or non-affiliated third parties by means of “opt out” or “opt in”
authorizations. Pursuant to the GLB Act and certain state laws (including California) companies are required to notify
clients of security breaches resulting in unauthorized access to their personal information. The Bank has implemented
privacy policies addressing these restrictions which will be distributed regularly to the Bank’s customers after the
Bank opens for business.
Impact of Monetary Policies
Banking is a business which depends on rate differentials. In general, the difference between the interest rate
paid by the Bank on its deposits and its other borrowings and the interest rate earned by the Bank on loans, securities
and other interest-earning assets will comprise the major source of the Bank’s earnings. These rates are highly
sensitive to many factors which are beyond the control of the Bank and, accordingly, the earnings and growth of the
Bank will be subject to the influence of economic conditions generally, both domestic and foreign, including inflation,
recessions, and unemployment; and also to the influence of monetary and fiscal policies of the United States and its
agencies, particularly the Federal Reserve Board. The Federal Board implements national monetary policy, such as
seeking to curb inflation and combat recession, by its open-market dealings in United States government securities,
by adjusting the required level of reserves for financial institutions subject to reserve requirements, by placing
limitations upon savings and time deposit interest rates, and through adjustments to the discount rate applicable to
borrowings by banks which are members of the Federal Reserve System. The actions of the Federal Reserve Board
in these areas influence the growth of bank loans, investments, and deposits and also affect interest rates. The nature
and timing of any future changes in such policies and their impact on the Bank cannot be predicted; however,
depending on the degree to which the Bank’s interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities are positively rate
sensitive, increases in rates would have the temporary effect of increasing the Bank’s net interest margin, while
decreases in interest rates would have the opposite effect.
In addition, adverse economic conditions could make a higher provision for loan losses prudent and could
cause higher loan charge-offs, thus adversely affecting the Bank’s income.
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DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK
The Bank’s authorized capital stock consists of 20,000,000 shares of Common Stock without par value. A
class of preferred stock, consisting of 20,000,000 shares without par value and without any specific terms or
preferences, is also currently authorized under the Bank’s Articles of Incorporation. There is no present intention to
issue any shares of Preferred Stock. Currently there are no Preferred Stock shares that have been issued or which are
outstanding. Set forth below is a description of the relative rights, preferences and privileges of the Common Stock
and the Preferred Stock. Neither our Common Stock nor our Preferred Stock is eligible collateral for a loan by the
Bank.
Common Stock
Holders of Common Stock are entitled to one vote for each share on all matters submitted to a vote of
shareholders (such as the election of directors, approval and any amendments to the Bank’s Plan, certain amendments
to the Bank’s articles of incorporation and bylaws, and certain mergers, sale of assets and other consolidation
transaction), provided that shareholders may cumulate votes in the election of the Bank’s directors (that is, to give any
candidate or any number of candidates standing for election, a number of votes equal to the number of directors to be
elected multiplied by the number of votes to which the shareholder’s shares are entitled), provided that such candidate
or candidates’ names have been placed in nomination prior to voting and a shareholder has given notice at the meeting,
prior to the vote on the election of directors, of the shareholder’s intention to cumulate his or her votes. If any one
shareholder has given such notice, all shareholders may cumulate their votes for nominated candidates. The candidates
who receive the highest number of votes will be elected as directors.
The holders of Common Stock are entitled to receive such cash dividends, if any, as may be declared by the
board of directors out of legally available funds, which consist of retained earnings or current earnings of the Bank.
However, the ability of the Bank to pay dividends also will depend on the extent to which the Bank’s capital exceeds
minimum capital requirements under applicable federal and state banking laws and regulations and the rate of growth
of the Bank, which may require earnings to be retained to support such growth. Upon liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the Bank, after payment of all debts and liabilities, including funds of depositors, the holders of the
Common Stock will be entitled to all assets that are legally available for distribution (See “Supervision and Regulation
– Payment of Dividends” herein).
Since it is anticipated that the Bank will have less than 2,000 shareholders at the conclusion of the Offering,
the Bank will not be required to file a Registration Statement with the FDIC with respect to its Common Stock pursuant
to the requirements of Section 12(g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Therefore, it is not anticipated that the
Bank will be a “reporting company’ pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for the foreseeable future.
However, the Bank will provide annual and other reports to its shareholders, such as an annual disclosure statement
as required under Part 350 of the FDIC rules and regulations. However, if the Bank should have 2,000 or more
shareholders, the Bank will be required to register its securities with the FDIC pursuant to Section 12(g) of the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, and the Bank will be required to file various quarterly, annual and current reports
with the FDIC.
Preferred Stock
The Articles of Incorporation of the Bank provide that the 20,000,000 shares of authorized Preferred Stock
may be divided into such number of series as the board of directors may determine. The Board is authorized to
determine and alter the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions granted to and imposed upon any wholly
unissued series of Preferred Stock, and to fix the number of shares of any series of Preferred Stock and the designation
of any such series of Preferred Stock. The Board, within the limits and restrictions stated in any resolution or
resolutions of the Board originally fixing the number of shares constituting any series, may increase or decrease (but
not below the number of shares of such series then outstanding) the number of shares of any series subsequent to the
issue of shares of that series. As noted above, there is no present intention to issue any shares of Preferred Stock.
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AUTHORIZATION FOR THE OFFERING
The Bank’s Common Stock is exempt from qualification under the California Corporate Securities Law of
1968 (pursuant to Section 25100(c) of the California Corporations Code) and from registration with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (pursuant to Section 3(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933). This Offering has been authorized
by a permit issued by the Commissioner (the “Permit”).
THE PERMIT IS PERMISSIVE ONLY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A RECOMMENDATION OR
ENDORSEMENT OF ANY OF THE SECURITIES WHICH THE BANK IS AUTHORIZED TO SELL.
Shares of the Bank’s Common Stock which may be offered and sold in certain other states are exempt from
the registration or qualification under state securities laws (pursuant to Section 18(b)(4)(C) of the Securities Act of
1933). However, the Bank may be subject to notification filings and/or fees as well as broker/dealer registration
statements (generally, banks and issuers are excluded from broker/dealer registration requirements) under state
securities laws.
AUDITORS
Our audited financial statements included in this offering circular have been audited by Vavrinek, Trine, Day
& Co., LLP, independent certified public accountants (which has since merged with Eide Bailly LLP), to the extent
and for the periods set forth in their report included herein, and have been included herein in reliance upon the authority
of said accounting firm as experts in accounting and auditing.
CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS
Certain legal matters related to this offering have been reviewed for the Bank by Breakwater Law Group,
LLP. However, subscribers should not construe such review as constituting any opinion as to the merits of the
offering.
INDEMNIFICATION
Section 317 (“Section 317”) of the California Corporations Code grants to California corporations, including
state-chartered banks such as us, the power to indemnify directors, officers, employees and other agents against certain
liabilities and expenses incurred in the performance of their duties. In addition, rights of indemnification provided by
a corporation’s articles of incorporation may go beyond those provided in Section 317.
With respect to all proceedings other than shareholder derivative actions, Section 317 permits a California
state-chartered bank to indemnify any of its directors, officers, employees or other agents only if they acted in good
faith and in a manner reasonably believed to be in the best interests of the bank and, in the case of a criminal
proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe the conduct in question was unlawful. In the case of derivative actions,
a California state-chartered bank may indemnify any of its directors, officers, employees or other agents only if they
acted in good faith and in a manner believed to be in the best interests of the bank and its shareholders. Furthermore,
in derivative actions, no indemnification is permitted under Section 317 with respect to (i) any matter in which the
person to be indemnified has been held liable to the bank unless such indemnification is approved by the court; (ii)
amounts paid in settling or otherwise disposing of a pending action without court approval; or expenses incurred in
defending a pending action which is settled or otherwise disposed of without court approval. To the extent that a
director, officer, employee or other agent of a bank has been successful on the merits in defense of any proceeding for
which Section 317 permits indemnification, such bank is obligated to indemnify such person against expenses actually
and reasonably incurred in connection with the proceeding.
Our articles of incorporation grant us the power to indemnify our directors, officers, employees and other
agents through agreements, bylaw provisions and votes of our shareholders or disinterested directors in excess of the
indemnification otherwise permitted by Section 317, subject to applicable prohibitions upon indemnification in
Corporations Code Section 204, Section 18(k) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, and Part 359 of Title 12 of the
Code of Federal Regulations. Our articles of incorporation further provide that the liability of our directors for
monetary damages shall be eliminated to the fullest extent permissible under California law.
We have entered into employment agreements with certain of our officers that provide for indemnification.
These are described in “Director and Officer Compensation,” above.
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We have entered into separate indemnity agreements with all directors and named executive officers of the
Bank for their indemnification if made a party to or threatened to be made a party to, or otherwise involved in, any
proceeding by reason of the fact that the individual is or was an agent of the Bank. The Bank is also obligated to
advance expenses of the director or officer upon an undertaking to repay the advances if it is ultimately determined
that the person is not entitled to indemnification.
While the indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, may be
permitted to our directors and officers pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, we have been advised that
in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed
in the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable.
We have purchased liability insurance covering all of our officers and directors. However, no assurance can
be given that the proceeds of the policy would be adequate to protect us in all circumstances.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Endeavor Bank
San Diego, California
Report on Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Endeavor Bank, which are comprised of the statements
of financial condition as of December 31, 2018 and the related statements of operations, changes in shareholders'
equity and cash flows for the period from January 22, 2018 (inception of business) through December 31, 2018,
and the related notes to the financial statements.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Endeavor Bank as of December 31, 2018, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the period from
January 22, 2018 (inception of business) through December 31, 2018, in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
Laguna Hills California
February 27, 2019
F-1
25231 Paseo De Alicia, Suite 100, Laguna Hills, CA 92653
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ENDEAVOR BANK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018
ASSETS
Cash and Due from Banks
Interest-Bearing Deposits at Other Banks
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Interest-Bearing Time Deposits at Other Banks
Loans:
Real Estate
Commercial
Consumer
TOTAL LOANS
Allowance for Loan Losses
NET LOANS
Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") Stock, at Cost
Premises and Equipment, net
Operating Lease Right-of-Use Assets
Accrued Interest and Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$

401,241
42,196,403
42,597,644
250,000

28,858,023
11,742,854
2,835,177
43,436,054
(667,000)
42,769,054
74,600
378,374
659,152
511,636
$ 87,240,460

ENDEAVOR BANK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits:
Noninterest-Bearing Demand
Interest-Bearing Demand, Savings, NOW and Money Market Accounts
Time Deposits Under $250,000
Time Deposits $250,000 and Over
TOTAL DEPOSITS
Operating Lease Liabilities
Accrued Interest and Other Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
Commitments and Contingencies - Notes D and J
Shareholders' Equity:
Preferred Stock - 20,000,000 Shares Authorized, None Outstanding
Common Stock - 20,000,000 Shares Authorized, No Par Value;
2,668,595 Shares Issued and Outstanding
Additional Paid-in Capital
Accumulated Deficit
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$ 18,964,795
32,742,722
5,656,361
8,415,655
65,779,533
672,014
236,803
66,688,350
-

26,398,375
1,053,667
(6,899,932)
20,552,110
$ 87,240,460

ENDEAVOR BANK
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 22, 2018 (INCEPTION OF BUSINESS)
THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018
INTEREST INCOME
Interest and Fees on Loans
Interest on Interest-Bearing Deposits and Other
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME

$

INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on Interest-Bearing Demand, Savings,
Now and Money Market Accounts
Interest on Time Deposits
TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE

1,059,996
567,013
1,627,009

238,012
87,422
325,434

NET INTEREST INCOME

1,301,575

Provision for Loan Losses
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

667,000
634,575

NONINTEREST INCOME
Service Charges, Fees and Other
TOTAL NONINTEREST INCOME

9,220
9,220

NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries and Employee Benefits
Occupancy and Equipment Expenses
Other Expenses
TOTAL NONINTEREST EXPENSE

3,659,745
435,300
1,395,596
5,490,641

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES
Income Taxes
NET LOSS
NET LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC
NET LOSS PER SHARE - DILUTED

(4,846,846)
800
$ (4,847,646)
$
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1.82
1.82

ENDEAVOR BANK
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 22, 2018 (INCEPTION OF BUSINESS)
THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2018

Common Stock

Additional

Number of
Shares
Balance at January 22, 2018

Amount
-

$

-

Paid-in

Accumulated

Capital

Deficit

$

-

$

Total
-

$

-

Initial Capitalization, Net of
Offering Costs of $287,575

2,668,595

26,398,375

26,398,375

Organizational Expenses

(2,052,286)

Stock-Based Compensation
Net Loss
Balance at December 31, 2018

1,053,667

2,668,595

$ 26,398,375

$

1,053,667

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(2,052,286)
1,053,667

(4,847,646)
$ (6,899,932)

(4,847,646)
$ 20,552,110

ENDEAVOR BANK
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 22, 2018 (INCEPTION OF BUSINESS)
THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Loss
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Loss to Net Cash
From Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization
Provision for Loan Losses
Stock-Based Compensation
Other Items
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

$ (4,847,646)

143,161
667,000
1,053,667
(261,971)
(3,245,789)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net Change in Interest-Bearing Time Deposits in Other Banks
Net Increase in Loans
Net Change in Federal Home Loan Bank and Other Stock
Purchases of Premises and Equipment
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(250,000)
(43,436,054)
(74,600)
(521,535)
(44,282,189)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Change in Demand Deposits and Savings Accounts
Net Change in Time Deposits
Proceeds from Initial Capitalization
Organizational Expenses, net
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

51,707,517
14,072,016
26,398,375
(2,052,286)
90,125,622

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF PERIOD

$ 42,597,644

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Interest Paid
Taxes Paid

$
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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42,597,644
-

308,939
800

ENDEAVOR BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations
Endeavor Bank (the "Bank") commenced business on January 22, 2018 after receiving the requisite approvals of
regulatory authorities. The Bank has been incorporated in the State of California and organized as a single operating
segment that operates one full-service branch in San Diego, California and a loan production and administrative
office in Carlsbad, California.
The Bank operates in the local market offering traditional products and services, serving the needs of small-tomedium sized businesses, business owners and professionals, and real estate owners and investors. The majority
of deposits and loans are expected to be originated from within the San Diego County metropolitan marketplace
and its surrounding areas.
Organizational Costs
As discussed in Note I, costs incurred for the period of the Bank’s organization through the inception of business
have been charged directly to shareholder’s equity.
Subsequent Events
The Bank has evaluated subsequent events for recognition and disclosure through February 27, 2019, which is the
date the financial statements were available to be issued.
Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash, due from banks, federal funds sold
and time deposits in other bank’s with original maturities of three months or less. Generally, federal funds are sold
for one-day periods.
Cash and Due from Banks
Banking regulations require that banks maintain a percentage of their deposits as reserves in cash or on deposit with
the Federal Reserve Bank. The Bank complied with the reserve requirements as of December 31, 2018.
The Bank maintains amounts due from banks, which may exceed federally insured limits. The Bank has not
experienced any losses in such accounts.
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ENDEAVOR BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
Loans
Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or
payoff are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances reduced by any charge-offs or specific valuation
accounts and net of any deferred fees or costs on originated loans, or unamortized premiums or discounts on
purchased loans.
Loan origination fees and certain direct origination costs are capitalized and recognized as an adjustment of the
yield of the related loan. Amortization of deferred loan fees, net of origination costs are discontinued when a loan
is placed on nonaccrual status.
Loans on which the accrual of interest has been discontinued are designated as nonaccrual loans. The accrual of
interest on loans is discontinued when principal or interest is past due 90 days based on the contractual terms of the
loan or when, in the opinion of management, there is reasonable doubt as to collectability. When loans are placed
on nonaccrual status, all interest previously accrued but not collected is reversed against current period interest
income. Income on nonaccrual loans is subsequently recognized only to the extent that cash is received and the
loan's principal balance is deemed collectible. Interest accruals are resumed on such loans only when they are
brought current with respect to interest and principal and when, in the judgment of management, the loans are
estimated to be fully collectible as to all principal and interest.
Allowance for Loan Losses
The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowance for probable incurred credit losses. Loan losses are charged
against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent
recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. Management estimates the allowance balance required using past
loan loss experience, the nature and volume of the portfolio, information about specific borrower situations and
estimated collateral values, economic conditions, and other factors. Allocations of the allowance may be made for
specific loans, but the entire allowance is available for any loan that, in management's judgment, should be charged
off. Amounts are charged off when available information confirms that specific loans or portions thereof, are
uncollectible. This methodology for determining charge-offs is consistently applied to each portfolio segment.
The Bank determines a separate allowance for each portfolio segment. The allowance consists of specific and
general reserves. Specific reserves relate to loans that are individually classified as impaired. A loan is impaired
when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Bank will be unable to collect all amounts
due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered in determining impairment include
payment status, collateral value and the probability of collecting all amounts when due. Measurement of
impairment is based on the expected future cash flows of an impaired loan, which are to be discounted at the loan's
effective interest rate, or measured by reference to an observable market value, if one exists, or the fair value of the
collateral for a collateral-dependent loan. The Bank selects the measurement method on a loan-by-loan basis except
that collateral-dependent loans for which foreclosure is probable are measured at the fair value of the collateral.
The Bank recognizes interest income on impaired loans based on its existing methods of recognizing interest income
on nonaccrual loans. Loans, for which the terms have been modified resulting in a concession, and for which the
borrower is experiencing financial difficulties, are considered troubled debt restructurings and classified as impaired
with measurement of impairment as described above.
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ENDEAVOR BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
Allowance for Loan Losses - Continued
If a loan is impaired, a portion of the allowance is allocated so that the loan is reported, net, at the present value of
estimated future cash flows using the loan's existing rate or at the fair value of collateral if repayment is expected
solely from the collateral.
General reserves cover non-impaired loans and are based on historical loss rates for each portfolio segment, adjusted
for the effects of qualitative or environmental factors that are likely to cause estimated credit losses as of the
evaluation date to differ from the portfolio segment's historical loss experience. Qualitative factors include
consideration of the following: changes in lending policies and procedures; changes in economic conditions,
changes in the nature and volume of the portfolio; changes in the experience, ability and depth of lending
management and other relevant staff; changes in the volume and severity of past due, nonaccrual and other adversely
graded loans; changes in the loan review system; changes in the value of the underlying collateral for collateraldependent loans; concentrations of credit and the effect of other external factors such as competition; and, legal and
regulatory requirements. Portfolio segments identified by the Bank include real estate, commercial, and consumer
loans. Relevant risk characteristics for these portfolio segments generally include debt service coverage, loan-tovalue ratios and financial performance on non-consumer loans, and credit scores, debt-to income, collateral type
and loan-to-value ratios for consumer loans.
Allowance for Credit Losses on Off-Balance Sheet Credit Exposures
The Bank also maintains a separate allowance for off-balance sheet commitments. Management estimates
anticipated losses using historical data and utilization assumptions. The Allowance for off-balance sheet
commitments totaled $44,000 at December 31, 2018, and is included in other liabilities on the statement of financial
condition.
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock
The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") system. Members are required to own a certain
amount of stock based on the level of borrowings and other factors, and may invest in additional amounts. FHLB
stock is carried at cost, classified as a restricted security, and periodically evaluated for impairment based on the
ultimate recovery of par value. Both cash and stock dividends are reported as income.
Premises and Equipment
Premises and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives, which ranges from three to five years for
furniture, equipment and computer equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line
method over an estimated useful life of seven years or the remaining lease term, whichever is shorter. Expenditures
for betterments or major repairs are capitalized and those for ordinary repairs and maintenance are charged to
operations as incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
Leases
The Bank early adopted the provisions of ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), on January 22, 2018, upon the
commencement of operations, and all subsequent ASUs that modified Topic 842. The determination if an
arrangement is a lease is made at inception. Operating leases are included in operating lease right-of-use (“ROU”)
assets and operating lease liabilities in the statement financial condition.
ROU assets represent a right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent an obligation
to make lease payments arising from the lease. Operating lease ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at the
lease commencement date based on the present value of the lease payments over the lease term, discounted at an
incremental borrowing rate. The lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is
reasonably certain that the option will be exercised. Lease expense for lease payments is recognized on a straightline basis over the lease term.
Lease agreements with lease and non-lease components are accounted for as a single lease component.
Loss Contingencies
Loss contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business, are recorded as
liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable and the amount or range of loss can be reasonably estimated.
Management does not believe there are any such matters that will have a material effect on the financial statements.
Revenue Recognition – Noninterest Income
The Bank adopted the provisions of ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), on
January 22, 2018, upon the commencement of operations, and all subsequent ASUs that modified Topic 606. The
Bank recognizes revenue as it is earned and noted no impact to its revenue recognition policies as a result of the
adoption of ASU 2014-09. All of the Bank’s revenue from contracts with customers within the scope of ASC 606
is recognized in non-interest income.
In accordance with Topic 606, revenues are recognized when control of promised goods or services is transferred
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Bank expects to be entitled to in exchange for those
goods or services. To determine revenue recognition for arrangements that an entity determines are within the scope
of Topic 606, the Bank performs the following five steps: (i) identify the contract(s) with a customer; (ii) identify
the performance obligation in the contract; (iii) determine the transaction price; (iv) allocate the transaction price to
the performance obligation in the contract; and (v) recognize revenue when (or as) the Bank satisfies a performance
obligation. The Bank only applies the five-step model to contracts when it is probable that the entity will collect the
consideration it is entitled to in exchange for the goods or services it transfers to the customer. At contract inception,
once the contract is determined to be within the scope of Topic 606, the Bank assesses the goods or services that
are promised within each contract and identifies those that contain performance obligation, and assesses whether
each promised good or service is distinct. The Bank then recognizes as revenue the amount of the transaction price
that is allocated to the respective performance obligation when (or as) the performance obligation is satisfied.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
Revenue Recognition – Noninterest Income - Continued
The following is a discussion of key revenues within the scope of the new revenue guidance.
Service Charges and Fees on Deposit Accounts
The Bank earns fees from its deposit customers for account maintenance, transaction-based and overdraft
services. Account maintenance fees consist primarily of account fees and analyzed account fees charged
on deposit accounts on a monthly basis. The performance obligation is satisfied and the fees are recognized
on a monthly basis as the service period is completed. Transaction-based fees on deposits accounts are
charged to deposit customers for specific services provided to the customer, such as non-sufficient funds
fees, overdraft fees, and wire fees. The performance obligation is completed as the transaction occurs and
the fees are recognized at the time each specific service is provided to the customer.
Transfers of Financial Assets
Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales, when control over the assets has been relinquished. Control
over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when the assets have been isolated from the Bank, the transferee
obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the
transferred assets, and the Bank does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement
to repurchase them before their maturity.
Advertising Costs
The Bank expenses the costs of advertising in the period incurred.
Stock-Based Compensation
The Bank recognizes the cost of employee services received in exchange for awards of stock options, or other equity
instruments, based on the grant-date fair value of those awards. This cost is recognized over the period which an
employee is required to provide services in exchange for the award, generally the vesting period. The Bank treats
each tranche of each stock option award as if it were a separate award with its own vesting date. Generally, for
each tranche granted, compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis from the grant date until the
vesting date of the respective tranche. The cost of other awards is generally recognized over the vesting period, on
a straight-line basis.
The Bank has elected to account for forfeitures of stock-based awards as they occur. Excess tax benefits and tax
deficiencies relating to stock-based compensation are recorded as income tax expense or benefit in the income
statement when incurred.
See Note L for additional information on the Bank's equity incentive plan.
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DECEMBER 31, 2018
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
Income Taxes
Deferred income taxes are computed using the asset and liability method, which recognizes a liability or asset
representing the tax effects, based on current tax law, of future deductible or taxable amounts attributable to events
that have been recognized in the financial statements. A valuation allowance is established to reduce the deferred
tax asset to the level at which it is "more likely than not" that the tax asset or benefits will be realized. Realization
of tax benefits of deductible temporary differences and operating loss carry forwards depends on having sufficient
taxable income of an appropriate character within the carry forward periods.
The Bank has adopted guidance issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") that clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return and provides that the tax
effects from an uncertain tax position can be recognized in the financial statements only if, based on its merits, the
position is more likely than not to be sustained on audit by the taxing authorities. Interest and penalties related to
uncertain tax positions are recorded as part of income tax expense.
Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)
Basic EPS excludes dilution and is computed by dividing income available to common Shareholders by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution
that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common
stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that then shared in the earnings of the entity. All of the
outstanding stock options were not considered in computing diluted earnings per share for 2018 because they were
antidilutive. Weighted-average shares used in the computation of basic EPS were 2,668,595 in 2018.
Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Comprehensive income (loss) is comprised solely of the net loss for the period.
Financial Instruments
In the ordinary course of business, the Bank has entered into off-balance sheet financial instruments consisting of
commitments to extend credit as described in Note J. Such financial instruments are recorded in the financial
statements when they are funded or related fees are incurred or received.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in
the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants on the measurement date. Current accounting guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy, which
requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when
measuring fair value. The guidance describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the
ability to access as of the measurement date.
Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can
be corroborated by observable market data.
Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a Company's own assumptions about the assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.
As of December 31, 2018, the Bank did not have any financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring or
non-recurring basis.
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which requires an entity to
recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers. The ASU replaces most existing revenue recognition guidance in GAAP. The new standard was
effective for the Bank on January 22, 2018, upon the commencement of operations. Adoption of ASU 2014-09
did not have a material impact on the Bank’s financial statements and related disclosures as the Bank’s primary
sources of revenues are derived from interest and dividends earned on loans and other financial instruments that are
not within the scope of ASU 2014-09. The Bank’s revenue recognition pattern for revenue streams within the scope
of ASU 2014-09, including but not limited to service charges on deposit accounts and gains/losses on the sale of
loans, did not change significantly from current industry practice.
In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments–Overall: Recognition and Measurement
of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. The new standard was effective for the Bank on January 22, 2018,
upon the commencement of operations. Adoption of ASU 2016-01 did not have a material impact on the Bank’s
financial statements. Changes made to the current measurement model primarily affect the accounting for equity
securities with readily determinable fair values, where changes in fair value impact earnings instead of other
comprehensive income. Equity securities without readily marketable fair values are to be carried at amortized cost,
less impairment (if any) plus or minus changes resulting from observable price changes in orderly transactions for
an identical investment or similar investment of the same issuer. The accounting for other financial instruments,
such as loans, investments in debt securities, and financial liabilities is largely unchanged. Additionally, the Bank
refined the calculation used to determine the disclosed fair value of loans held for investment as part of adopting
this standard reflecting an exit price notion instead of an entrance price. The refined calculation did not have a
significant impact on fair value disclosures.
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DECEMBER 31, 2018
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements - Continued
In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The most
significant change for lessees is the requirement under the new guidance to recognize right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for all leases not considered short-term leases, which is generally defined as a lease term of less than
12 months. This change will result in lessees recognizing right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for most leases
currently accounted for as operating leases under current lease accounting guidance. The amendments in this
Update are effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018 for public business entities
and one year later for all other entities. The Bank has adopted this ASU early, upon the commencement of business
on January 22, 2018, and recorded operating lease ROU assets and operating lease liabilities of approximately
$912,000.
Recent Accounting Guidance Not Yet Effective
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments (Topic
326). This ASU significantly changes how entities will measure credit losses for most financial assets and certain
other instruments that aren't measured at fair value through net income. In issuing the standard, the FASB is
responding to criticism that today's guidance delays recognition of credit losses. The standard will replace today's
"incurred loss" approach with an "expected loss" model. The new model, referred to as the current expected credit
loss ("CECL") model, will apply to: (1) financial assets subject to credit losses and measured at amortized cost, and
(2) certain off-balance sheet credit exposures. This includes, but is not limited to, loans, leases, held-to-maturity
securities, loan commitments, and financial guarantees. The CECL model does not apply to available-for-sale
("AFS") debt securities. For AFS debt securities with unrealized losses, entities will measure credit losses in a
manner similar to what they do today, except that the losses will be recognized as allowances rather than reductions
in the amortized cost of the securities. As a result, entities will recognize improvements to estimated credit losses
immediately in earnings rather than as interest income over time, as they do today. The ASU also simplifies the
accounting model for purchased credit-impaired debt securities and loans. ASU 2016-13 also expands the
disclosure requirements regarding an entity's assumptions, models, and methods for estimating the allowance for
loan and lease losses. In addition, public business entities will need to disclose the amortized cost balance for each
class of financial asset by credit quality indicator, disaggregated by the year of origination. ASU No. 2016-13 is
effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 for SEC filers, one year later
for non SEC filing public business entities and two years later for nonpublic business entities. Early adoption is
permitted for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Entities will apply the
standard's provisions as a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the first reporting
period in which the guidance is effective (i.e., modified retrospective approach). The Bank is currently evaluating
the provisions of ASU No. 2016-13 for potential impact on its financial statements and disclosures.
In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-13, “Disclosure Framework - Changes to the Disclosure
Requirements for Fair Value Measurement.” This ASU eliminates, adds and modifies certain disclosure
requirements for fair value measurements. Among the changes, entities will no longer be required to disclose the
amount of and reasons for transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, but will be required to
disclose the range and weighted average used to develop significant unobservable inputs for Level 3 fair value
measurements. ASU No. 2018-13 is effective for all entities for interim and annual reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted. As ASU No. 2018-13 only revises disclosure requirements,
it will not have a material impact on the Bank’s Financial Statements and disclosures.
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NOTE B - LOANS
The Bank's loan portfolio consists primarily of loans to borrowers within the San Diego County metropolitan
marketplace and its surrounding areas. Although the Bank seeks to avoid concentrations of loans to a single industry
or based upon a single class of collateral, real estate and real estate associated businesses are among the principal
industries in the Bank's market area and, as a result, the Bank's loan and collateral portfolios are, to some degree,
concentrated in those industries.
A summary of the changes in the allowance for loan losses for the period ended December 31 is as follows:

2018
Beginning Balance
Additions to the Allowance Charged to Expense
Recoveries on Loans Charged Off

$

Less Loans Charged Off
Ending Balance

$

667,000
667,000
667,000

The following table presents the activity in the allowance for loan losses for the current period and the recorded
investment in loans and impairment method as of December 31 by portfolio segment:
2018
Allowance for Loan Losses:
Beginning of Period
Provisions
Charge-offs
Recoveries
End of Year
Reserves:
Specific
General

Real Estate
$

$

$

$

$

180,322
180,322

$

11,742,854
$ 11,742,854

$

$

$

28,858,023
$ 28,858,023

$

$

Consumer

180,322
180,322

443,141
443,141

$
Loans Evaluated for Impairment:
Individually
Collectively

443,141
443,141

Commercial

$

$

$

$

43,537
43,537

Total
$

$

43,537
43,537

$

2,835,177
2,835,177

$

$

667,000
667,000

667,000
667,000

43,436,054
$ 43,436,054

The Bank categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant information about the ability of borrowers to
service their debt such as current financial information, historical payment experience, collateral adequacy, credit
documentation, and current economic trends, among other factors. The Bank analyzes loans individually by
classifying the loans as to credit risk. This analysis typically includes larger, non-homogeneous loans such as
commercial real estate and commercial and industrial loans. This analysis is performed on an ongoing basis as new
information is obtained.
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NOTE B - LOANS - Continued
The Bank uses the following definitions for risk ratings:
Pass - Loans classified as pass include loans not meeting the risk ratings defined below.
Special Mention - Loans classified as special mention have a potential weakness that deserves
management's close attention. If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the
repayment prospects for the loan or of the institution's credit position at some future date.
Substandard - Loans classified as substandard are inadequately protected by the current net worth and
paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified have a well-defined weakness
or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They are characterized by the distinct possibility that the
institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.
Impaired - A loan is considered impaired, when, based on current information and events, it is probable
that the Bank will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.
Additionally, all loans classified as troubled debt restructurings are considered impaired.
The risk category of loans by class of loans as of December 31 was as follows:

2018
Real Estate:
Construction
Commercial
Residential
Commercial
Consumer

Special
Mention

Pass
$ 1,952,701
17,355,051
9,550,271
11,742,854
2,835,177
$ 43,436,054

Substandard

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

Impaired

Total

$

-

$

-

$ 1,952,701
17,355,051
9,550,271
11,742,854
2,835,177
$ 43,436,054

The Bank had no past due, nonaccrual or impaired loans as of December 31, 2018. The balance of unamortized
loan fees, net of loan origination costs included in total loans was $238,416 as of December 31, 2018.
NOTE C - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
A summary of premises and equipment as of December 31 is as follows:

Leasehold Improvements
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment

$

Less Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization
$

F-16

2018
199,300
322,235
521,535
(143,161)
378,374

ENDEAVOR BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018
NOTE D - LEASES
The Bank has entered into operating leases for its branch, loan production and administrative offices, which expire
on various dates through July 2022 and is responsible for rent, common area maintenance, taxes and insurance. The
leases provide for options to renew. The components of lease expense for the period ended December 31 was as
follows:

2018
275,649
1,355
$ 277,004

Operating Lease Expense
Short-Term Lease Expense
Variable Lease Expense

$

Supplemental cash flow information related to operating leases for the period ended December 31 was as follows:

2018
Cash Paid for Amounts Included in the Measurement of Lease Liabilities $ 262,787
Right-of-Use Assets Obtained in Exchange for Lease Obligations

$

912,184

Supplemental statement of financial condition information related to operating leases as of December 31 was as
follows:

Lease Right-of-Use Assets

2018
$ 659,152

Lease Liabilities

$

Weighted Average Remaining Lease Term

3.12 Years

Weighted Average Discount Rate

3.16%

Maturities of operating lease liabilities as of December 31 were as follows:

Year Ending
2019
2020
2021
2022
Total Lease Payments
Less Imputed Interest
Total Operating Lease Liability

672,014

$

$

2018
273,132
161,937
169,167
101,241
705,477
(33,463)
672,014
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NOTE E - DEPOSITS
At December 31, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows:

2018
$ 10,529,630
3,415,938
126,448
$ 14,072,016

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

As of December 31, 2018, the Bank had 11 deposit relationships that exceeded 2.0% of total deposits, collectively
aggregating $30,609,185 and representing 46.5% of the total deposits of the Bank.
NOTE F - BORROWINGS
The Bank has unused unsecured lines of credit with a correspondent bank with a total borrowing capacity of $7.5
million at December 31, 2018.
NOTE G - INCOME TAXES
The income tax expense for the period ended December 31 is comprised of the following:
2018
Current:
Federal
State

$

Deferred
Valuation Allowance
$

800
800
(1,915,000)
1,915,000
800
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NOTE G - INCOME TAXES - Continued
Deferred taxes are a result of differences between income tax accounting and generally accepted accounting
principles with respect to income and expense recognition. The following is a summary of the components of the
net deferred tax asset accounts recognized in the accompanying statements of financial condition at December 31:

2018
Deferred Tax Assets:
Organization Expenses
Allowance for Loan Losses Due to Tax Limitations
Stock-Based Compensation
Net Operating Loss Carryovers
Operating Lease Liability
Other Items

$

Valuation Allowance

569,000
183,000
197,000
922,000
199,000
49,000
2,119,000
(1,915,000)

Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Right of Use Asset
Other Items
Net Deferred Tax Assets

$

(195,000)
(9,000)
(204,000)
-

The valuation allowance was established because the Bank has not reported earnings sufficient to support the
recognition of the deferred tax assets. The Bank has net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $3,116,000
for federal income purposes and $3,127,000 for California franchise tax purposes. Federal net operating loss
carryforwards, do not expire and California net operating loss carryforwards, to the extent not used will expire in
2038.
The Bank records interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as part of income tax expense. There was
no penalty or interest expense recorded as of December 31, 2018. The Bank does not expect the total amount of
unrecognized tax benefits to significantly increase or decrease within the next twelve months.
The Bank is subject to federal income tax and California franchise tax. Federal and California income tax returns
for years ended on or after December 31, 2018 are open to audit by the federal and California authorities.
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NOTE H - OTHER EXPENSES
Other expenses as for the period ended December 31 are comprised of the following:

Data Processing
Legal and Professional
Advertising and Business Development
Regulatory Assessments
Director Stock-Based Compensation and Other
Loan Expenses
Office and Telephone Expense
Insurance
Other

$

$

2018
469,316
207,398
124,337
31,289
283,125
60,480
46,336
38,558
134,757
1,395,596

NOTE I - ORGANIZATIONAL PERIOD
The Bank incorporated on May 1, 2017, shortly after receiving conditional approval from the State of California to
organize as a state chartered bank. Prior to that date and up to the inception of business on January 22, 2018,
organizers of the Bank incurred costs in connection with the organizational process and raising of the initial
capitalization of the Bank. These organization expenses were comprised of the following:

Salaries and Benefits
Legal and Professional
Occupancy
Other

$

$

1,323,617
365,618
207,398
155,653
2,052,286

Costs incurred during the organizational period have been charged directly to shareholders’ equity and are reflected
in the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity.
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NOTE J - COMMITMENTS
In the ordinary course of business, the Bank enters into financial commitments to meet the financing needs of its
customers. These financial commitments include commitments to extend credit. Those instruments involve to
varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk not recognized in the Bank's financial statements.
The Bank's exposure to loan loss in the event of nonperformance on commitments to extend credit and standby
letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. The Bank uses the same credit
policies in making commitments as it does for loans reflected in the financial statements.
As of December 31, the Bank had the following approximate outstanding financial commitments whose contractual
amounts represent credit risk:

Commitments to Extend Credit

2018
$ 25,881,000

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the
total amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank evaluates each client's credit
worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained if deemed necessary by the Bank is based
on management's credit evaluation of the customer. The majority of the Bank's commitments to extend credit
generally are secured by real estate or other commercial business assets.
NOTE K - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In the ordinary course of business, certain executive officers, directors and companies with which they are
associated may have loans and deposits with the Bank. At December 31, 2018, related party deposits were
approximately $3,739,000, and there were no related party loans.
NOTE L – STOCK – BASED COMPENSATION PLAN
The board of directors of the Bank approved the 2017 Equity Incentive Plan ("2017 Plan"). The plan was approved
in April 2018 by the shareholders. Under the terms of the 2017 Plan, officers and key employees may be granted
both nonqualified and incentive stock options, and directors and other consultants, who are not also an officer or
employee, may only be granted nonqualified stock options. The 2017 Plan also permits the granting of restricted
stock and restricted stock units. The 2017 Plan provides for the total number of awards of common stock that may
be issued over the term of the plan not to exceed 800,578 shares, of which a maximum of 720,520 shares may be
granted as incentive stock options. Stock options are granted at a price not less than 100% of the fair market value
of the stock on the date of grant. The 2017 plan provides for accelerated vesting if there is a change of control as
defined in the 2017 Plan. Equity awards generally vest over three to five years. Stock options expire no later than
ten years from the date of grant.
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NOTE L – STOCK – BASED COMPENSATION PLAN - Continued
The Bank recognized stock-based compensation cost of $1,053,667 for the period ended December 31, 2018.
Stock options, with a weighted-average grant date fair value of $3.83 issued in 2018 were estimated on the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

2018
Expected Volatility
Expected Term
Expected Dividends
Risk Free Rate
Grant Date Fair Value

29.6%
7.5 Years
None
2.57%
$3.83

Since the Bank has a limited amount of historical stock activity, the expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility of similar banks that have a longer trading history. The expected term represents the estimated average
period of time that the options remain outstanding. Since the Bank does not have sufficient historical data on the
exercise of stock options, the expected term is based on the "simplified" method that measures the expected term
as the average of the vesting period and the contractual term, adjusted for management’s estimate on the period of
time that options granted are expected to be outstanding. The risk free rate of the return reflects the grant date
interest rate offered for zero coupon U.S. Treasury bonds over the expected term of the options.
A summary of the status of the Bank's stock option plan as of December 31, 2018 and changes during the period
ended thereon is presented below:

Shares
Outstanding at Beginning of Period
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited or Expired
Outstanding at End of Year

500,666
(15,000)
485,666

WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price
$
$
10.00
$
$
10.00
$
10.00

WeightedAverage
Remaining
Contractual
Term

9.08 Years

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

$

508,574

As of December 31, 2018, there were no exercisable options. As of December 31, 2018, there was $804,474 of
total unrecognized compensation cost related to the outstanding stock options that will be recognized over a
weighted average period of 2.08 years.
It is the Bank’s intention to grant nonqualified stock options to organizers of the Bank once the Bank is no longer
considered a de novo institution by the appropriate regulatory authorities, which the Bank believes will be three
years after the bank opens for business. The options will be granted at an exercise price equal to the fair market
value of the common stock at the time of grant. All options granted to organizers will be issued in accordance with
the Bank’s 2017 Plan.
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NOTE M - EMPLOYEE 401K PLAN
The Bank has adopted a 401(k) for its employees. Under the plan, eligible employees may defer a portion of their
salaries. The plan provides for a discretionary matching contribution. The Bank made no contributions and incurred
no associated expense for the period ended December 31, 2018.
NOTE N - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the asset or obligation could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Fair value estimates are made
at a specific point in time based on relevant market information and information about the financial instrument.
These estimates do not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering for sale at one time the entire
holdings of a particular financial instrument. Because no market value exists for a significant portion of the financial
instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding future expected loss experience, current
economic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial instruments, and other factors. These estimates are
subjective in nature, involve uncertainties and matters of judgment and, therefore, cannot be determined with
precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.
Fair value estimates are based on financial instruments both on and off the balance sheet without attempting to
estimate the value of anticipated future business and the value of assets and liabilities that are not considered
financial instruments. Additionally, tax consequences related to the realization of the unrealized gains and losses
can have a potential effect on fair value estimates and have not been considered in many of the estimates.
The fair value hierarchy level and estimated fair value of significant financial instruments at December 31 are
summarized as follows (amounts in thousands):

2018
Fair Value
Hierarchy
Financial Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Time Deposits in Other Banks
Loans, net

Level 1
Level 1
Level 3

Financial Liabilities:
Demand and Other Non-Maturity Deposits
Time Deposits

Level 1
Level 2
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Carrying
Value
$

42,598
250
42,769

51,708
14,072

Fair
Value
$

42,598
250
43,004

51,708
14,086

ENDEAVOR BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018
NOTE O - REGULATORY MATTERS
The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure
to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory - and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank's financial statements.
Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank's assets, liabilities, and certain off-balancesheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank's capital amounts and classification are
also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.
In July, 2013, the federal bank regulatory agencies approved the final rules implementing the Basel Committee on
Banking Supervision's capital guidelines for U.S. banks (Basel III rules). The new rules became effective on
January 1, 2015, with certain of the requirements phased-in over a multi-year schedule, and fully phased in by
January 1, 2019. Under the Basel III rules, the Bank must hold a capital conservation buffer above the adequately
capitalized risk-based capital ratios. The capital conservation buffer is being phased in from 0.0% for 2015 to 2.50%
by 2019. The capital conservation buffer for 2018 is 1.875%. The net unrealized gain or loss on available for sale
securities, if any, is not included in computing regulatory capital.
Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum
amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total, Tier 1 and CET1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to
risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined). Management
believes, as of December 31, 2018, that the Bank meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.
As of December 31, 2018, the most recent notification from the FDIC categorized the Bank as well capitalized
under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action (there are no conditions or events since that notification
that management believes have changed the Bank's category). To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must
maintain minimum ratios as set forth in the table below. In addition to the capital requirements below, the FDIC
requires the Bank to maintain its Tier 1 Capital to average assets at 8% during the first three years of operations.
The following table also sets forth the Bank's actual capital amounts and ratios (dollar amounts in thousands):

As of December 31, 2018:
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)
CET1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)

Actual
Amount
Ratio

Amount of Capital Required
To Be WellCapitalized
For Capital
Under Prompt
Adequacy
Corrective
Purposes
Provisions
Amount
Ratio
Amount
Ratio

$ 21,234
20,552
20,552
20,552

$ 4,364
3,273
2,455
3,207

38.9%
37.7%
37.7%
25.6%

8.0%
6.0%
4.5%
4.0%

$ 5,455
4,364
3,546
4,008

10.0%
8.0%
6.5%
5.0%

The California Financial Code also provides that a bank may not make a cash distribution to its shareholders in
excess of the lesser of the bank's undivided profits or the bank's net income for its last three fiscal years less the
amount of any distribution made by the bank's shareholders during the same period.
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ENDEAVOR BANK
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(Unaudited)

ASSETS
2019
Cash and Due from Banks
Interest-Bearing Deposits at Other Banks
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Interest-Bearing Time Deposits in Other Banks

$

2018

551,919
38,190,800
38,742,719
-

Loans:
Real Estate
Commercial
Consumer
TOTAL LOANS
Allowance for Loan Losses
NET LOANS
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock, at Cost
Premises and Equipment
Operating Lease Right-of-Use Assets
Accrued Interest and Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
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42,219,310
19,975,549
3,866,592
66,061,451
(1,050,000)
65,011,451
201,000
296,857
518,134
734,446
$ 105,504,607

$

1,842,326
33,340,000
35,182,326
250,000
10,265,833
1,882,218
1,115,206
13,263,257
(206,000)
13,057,257

451,518
798,032
513,925
$ 50,253,058

ENDEAVOR BANK
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
(Unaudited)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
2019
Deposits:
Noninterest-Bearing Demand Accounts
Interest-Bearing Demand, Savings, NOW and Money Market Accounts
Time Deposits Under $250,000
Time Deposits $250,000 and Over
TOTAL DEPOSITS
Operating Lease Liabilities
Accrued Interest and Other Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Equity:
Preferred Stock - 20,000,000 Shares Authorized, None Outstanding
Common Stock - 20,000,000 Shares Authorized, No Par Value;
2,668,595 Shares Issued and Outstanding
Additional Paid-in Capital
Accumulated Deficit
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
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2018

$ 35,656,141
33,127,014
5,362,246
11,243,984
85,389,385

$

8,683,454
17,997,829
130,003
26,811,286

534,985
617,674
86,542,044

805,667
218,187
27,835,140

-

-

26,398,375
1,354,469
(8,790,281)
18,962,563
$ 105,504,607

26,398,375
482,513
(4,462,970)
22,417,918
$ 50,253,058

ENDEAVOR BANK
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 22, 2018
(INCEPTION OF BUSINESS) THROUGH JUNE 30, 2018
(Unaudited)

INTEREST INCOME
Interest and Fees on Loans
Interest on Interest-Bearing Deposits and Other
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME

2019
$

INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on Interest-Bearing Demand, Savings, Now
and Money Market
Interest on Time Deposits
TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE
NET INTEREST INCOME
Provision for Loan Losses

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

NONINTEREST INCOME
Service Charges, Fees and Other
NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries and Employee Benefits
Occupancy Expenses
Other Expenses
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65,000
215,021
280,021

250,506
208,206
458,712

39,218
243
39,461

1,604,712
383,000

240,560
206,000

1,221,712

34,560

26,312
26,312

773
773
1,684,472
193,163
567,582
2,445,217
(2,409,884)
800

$ (1,890,349)

$ (2,410,684)

$
$

$
$

Income Taxes

NET LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC
NET LOSS PER SHARE - DILUTED

$

2,078,909
239,702
818,962
3,137,573
(1,889,549)
800

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES
NET LOSS

1,667,326
396,098
2,063,424

2018

(0.71)
(0.71)

(0.90)
(0.90)

ENDEAVOR BANK
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 22, 2018
(INCEPTION OF BUSINESS) THROUGH JUNE 30, 2018
(Unaudited)

Common Stock
Number of
Shares
Amount
Balance at January 22, 2018
Initial Capitalization, Net of
Offering Costs of $287,575

-

2,668,595

$

-

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

$

$

-

-

26,398,375

$

-

26,398,375

Organizational Expenses

(2,052,286)

Stock-Based Compensation

Total

482,513

Net Loss

(2,052,286)
482,513

(2,410,684)

(2,410,684)

Balance at June 30, 2018

2,668,595

$ 26,398,375

$ 482,513

$ (4,462,970)

$ 22,417,918

Balance at January 1, 2019

2,668,595

$ 26,398,375

$ 1,053,667

$ (6,899,932)

$ 20,552,110

Stock-based Compensation

300,802

Net Loss

Balance at June 30, 2019

300,802
(1,890,349)

2,668,595

$ 26,398,375
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$ 1,354,469

$ (8,790,281)

(1,890,349)

$ 18,962,563

ENDEAVOR BANK
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 22, 2018
(INCEPTION OF BUSINESS) THROUGH JUNE 30, 2018
(Unaudited)

2019

2018

$ (1,890,349)

$ (2,410,684)

81,198
383,000
300,802
162,369
(962,980)

63,211
206,000
482,513
(300,545)
(1,959,505)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net Change in Interest-Bearing Time Deposits in Other Banks
Net Increase in Loans
Net Change in Federal Home Loan Bank and Other Stock
Purchases of Premises and Equipment
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

250,000
(22,625,397)
(126,400)
(22,501,797)

(250,000)
(13,263,257)
(502,287)
(14,015,544)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Increase in Demand Deposits and Savings Accounts
Net Increase in Time Deposits
Proceeds from Initial Capitalization
Organizational Expenses, net
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

17,075,638
2,534,214
19,609,852

26,681,283
130,003
26,398,375
(2,052,286)
51,157,375

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Loss
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash
From Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization
Provision for Loan Losses
Stock-based Compensation
Other Items
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

(3,854,925)
42,597,644
$ 38,742,719

35,182,326
$ 35,182,326

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Interest Paid
Taxes Paid

$
$

$
$
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456,114
800

39,340
800

ENDEAVOR BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019 AND JUNE 30, 2018
(Unaudited)
NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATION
The accompanying financial information has been prepared in accordance with the Securities and Exchange
Commission rules and regulations for interim reporting and therefore does not necessarily include all information
and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America.
Operating results for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of operating results for an entire fiscal year. In
the opinion of management, the unaudited financial information for the periods ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
reflects all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring accruals and provisions, necessary for a fair
presentation thereof.
NOTE 2 – EARNINGS PER SHARE (“EPS”)
Basic EPS excludes dilution and is computed by dividing income available to common Shareholders by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution
that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common
stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that then shared in the earnings of the entity. All of the
outstanding stock options were not considered in computing diluted earnings per share for 2019 and 2018 because
they were antidilutive. Weighted-average shares used in the computation of basic EPS were 2,668,595 in 2019 and
2018.
NOTE 3 – COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Comprehensive income (loss) is comprised solely of the net loss for the periods.
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